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Company Profile A7

In 2000, to accommodating the development of the information
industry in the era of internet, the original Legend Group was
reorganized into two divisions, thereby Digital China was born. In
2001, Digital China was listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock Code: 00861.HK).

Since its establishment, Digital China has adhered to the objective
of “Industry Serving the Country” and the mission of “Digitalizing
China”. Through continuous innovation, a comprehensive [T
services value chain is structured. Services involve areas such
as IT planning consultation, IT infrastructure system integration,
solution design and implementation, application software design
and development, outsourcing of [T system operation and
maintenance, logistics maintenance and warranty, providing end-to-
end integrated IT services to customers. As the largest integrated
IT services provider in China, Digital China was widely recognized,
as evidenced by its inclusion in “Forbes Asia’s Fab 50" for four
consecutive years, and “Fortune China 500" (Chinese edition) for
five consecutive years.

Prospectively anticipating the significant changes in the
information industry in 2010, Digital China launched Sm@rt City
Strategy, in response to the macro trend of “industrialization,
informatization, urbanization, agricultural modernization with
Chinese characteristics”. With four years’ continuous -efforts,
Digital China has become the No.1 brand of China’s smart city
construction, driving the development of the industry as well as
Digital China’s overall operation.

Digital China Information Service Company Ltd., a member of
Digital China, was successfully listed in 2014 [Chinese Stock
Name: M58 ; English Stock Name: DCITS; Stock Code:
000555.5Z]. The company successfully acquired Zhongnong

Xinda, a leading enterprise of the agricultural informatization
sector in China. A new strategy concerning intelligent village was
released, which optimized the digitalized Chinese strategic blueprint
of “Sme@rt City + Sm@rt Agriculture”.
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Financial Highlights gt &&=

FY2014 FY2013* FY2012/13 FY2011/12 FY2010/11
—ZF—0 —F—= FT—=/) ZEF——/ ZE-EZ/
B & B g —=BF ——MF ——HF
HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$mM HK$m
L AER- P S E s BEEET BEEET A¥EET
For the Year REER
Revenue A 52,265 73,499 70,319 56,804
Profit/(loss) from Operating R (EE)
Activities (180) 2114 1,945 1,462
Profit Attributable to Equity & 25 B 3R ek i F
Holders 84 1,372 1,245 1,005
Earnings per Share (HK cents) FRRZR (B 7.87 128.01 116.32 9613
Dividends per Share (HK cents) &% % 8 (&1L 17.80 38.80 39.80 32.25
At Year-end REEXR
Total Assets wEE 30,100 28,408 26,822 19,946
Shareholders’ Funds REE S 7726 7.826 6,821 6,033
Financial Ratio Bt EHE R
Return on Equity (%) BRESOBRE(ED L) 1.09 17.47 18.25 16.66
Interest Cover (times) MEBELE(R) -0.63 7.31 5.93 6.38
Current Ratio (times) BN = (F) 1.36 1.44 1.36 1.44
Total Interest Bearing Debts to ~ M{ B EHELRRE St X
Shareholders’ Funds Ratio G))
(times) 0.78 0.70 0.59 0.33
( N ( Profit Attributabl
. rori ripucanie
Profit/(loss) from .
Ri\ée;\ue Oper'ati/rfg Ac]tivities to Equity Holders
pera it 15 24 51 B 58 1 I
T F S (B518) '
73,499 1.372
70,319 2114 .
; . 68,343 1,945 1245
i - ;
56.804 | s 1482 1005
| v 1,305 ;
701
BC.] 84
i i | | (180) i (-
FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY
10/11  1/12  12/13  13* 14 10/11 1112 12/13 3% 14 10/11  11/12  12/13  13* 14
HK$m B8 B & T HK$m E#¥ B ST HK$m #B B &t
\§ L \§ J
* For the nine months ended 31 December 2013
* HE-T-=-—F+-_A=+—HIt @A
N EIEERAERAR | 20145 K 03
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oignificant Events A= & &

1/2014

At the FY13 Cisco Asia Pacific General Distributors’ Summit
held in Cambodia, Digital China received the “FY13 Cisco Data
Center Best Service Distribution Award” — Asia Pacific on
the back of its outstanding performance.

Digital China was named among the “Best Employers in China
2013” nominated by 21st Century Business Herald, a famous
financial news media.

2/2014

Xuzhou Municipal Government entered into a “Smart City”
strategic cooperation framework agreement with Digital
China.

3/2014

On 18 March, “ST Techo” was officially renamed “DCITS”
under the stock code of 0O00555.5Z, marking the successful
restructuring and listing of DCITS.

Digital China signed the Big Data Industry Strategic
Cooperation Framework Agreement with Guizhou Province
Government on behalf of the China Smart City Industry
Alliance.

Qinhuangdao Municipal Government entered into a “Smart
City” strategic cooperation agreement with Digital China.

Digital China won the “Best Deals Award”, “Best Solutions
Award” and “Special Contribution Award” for Microsoft
Surface commercial channels at FY14 Microsoft China
Partners Conference.

4/2014

Luoyang New District entered into a “Smart City” strategic
cooperation agreement with Digital China.

Digital China established the “Smart City Development
Alliance” jointly with 10 entities and the NDRC City and Village
Reform and Development Centre in Shanghai as one of the
founding members.

Chengdu Municipal Government entered into a “Smart City”
strategic cooperation agreement with Digital China.

Wouxi Municipal Government entered into the “Smart Wuxi”
strategic cooperation agreement with Digital China.
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5/2014

Digital China won three major awards from Motorola
Solutions for 2013: “Best Partner”, “Best Innovation” and
“‘Best Credit”.

Digital China showcased its self-developed brand “Morning
Star” digital matrix interchange system at the 66th
China Education Equipment Exhibition and Trade Fair with
enthusiastic response.

Digital China Networks Ltd. (DCN) became the first Chinese
manufacturer to obtain OpenFlow Conformance Certification.

6/2014

DCITS led to form the “Union of Safety and Reliability
Information System Improvement” and “Joint Laboratory for
Safe and Reliable Solutions” in association with four other
well-known companies.

On 18 June, a ceremony marking the official establishment
of Digital China Big Data Business in Chongging and the
commencement of Chongqging Integrated Citizen Service
Platform in the Liangjiang New District was held at the
New District Management Committee Office in Northern
Chongging, signifying major progress of the Smart City
business in Chongging.

Digital China signed up the “British — Chinese Smart Green
City: Planning and Administration” project with U.K. Trade and
Investment Division and European Commission e-Government
Forum to broaden the international scope of Smart City.

Digital China received the “AMD Best Partner 2013 Award”.

Digital China Holdings Limited | 2014 Annual Report
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7/2014

Digital China was named among Fortune China 500 in
2014 for the fifth year, ranking 104th on the back of 2013
revenue of HK$69.09 billion and ranking 1st in the electronic
and components sector.

DCITS won seven major awards at the “2014 China Solution
Providers’ Summit and 2014 Top 500 China Solution
Providers” on the back of its outstanding achievements.

At the "“Cisco China 20th Anniversary Ceremony”, Digital
China received two major awards: Cisco China 20th
Anniversary Outstanding Product Contribution Award
and Cisco China 20th Anniversary Outstanding Service
Contribution Award.

Digital China City Discovery campaign was launched in
Jiangsu and the summit of Smart City Development with Big
Data application was successfully held in Nanjing.

8/2014

Weihai Municipal Government entered into an integrated
citizen service platform implementation agreement with
Digital China.

Luohe Municipal Government entered into a “Smart City”
strategic cooperation agreement with Digital China.
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9/2014

Hebei Province Government entered into a “Smart City”
strategic cooperation agreement with Digital China.

The Benxi Citizen Website based on the integration citizen
service platform version 3.0 developed by Digital China in
association with Benxi Municipal Government was officially
online.

Heihe Municipal Government entered into a “Smart City”
strategic cooperation agreement with Digital China.

Digital China City Discovery campaign was launched in Wuxi
to explore the development of Smart Wuxi with Big Data
application.

ZBuilder, a proprietary mobile application development
platform by Digital China, was officially launched.

The Daxing E-commerce Warehouse of Instant Logistics in
Beijing officially came into operation.

10/2014

The Weihai Citizen Website developed by Digital China won
the unanimous compliments from the municipal government,
citizens and media on its debut, as it was held in a
new manner integrating launching, marketing and user
development together.

Nantong Municipal Government entered into a “Smart City”
strategic cooperation agreement with Digital China.

Ma’anshan Municipal Government entered into the “Smart
Ma'anshan” strategic cooperation agreement with Digital
China.

Digital China Holdings Limited | 2014 Annual Report
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11/2014

On 5 November, China Yang Ling Agricultural Big Data Centre
built by Digital China was officially unveiled and commissioned
at the 21st Yang Ling Agricultural Summit.

On 20 November, a summit forum entitled “Smart City in
the Age of Cloud Computing — Major Change in Urban
Industries” hosted by Digital China was held in Beijing, with
over 300 administrators and national-grade experts in [T,
urban development, industrial IT, agriculture informatisation
and representatives of leading IT companies from more than
70 cities participate to discuss changes brought out by the
rise of cloud computing.

On 21 November, the launch of DCITS smart agriculture
strategy entitled “New Starting Point, New Blue Ocean
and New Journey of Conquest” was held at Digital China
headquarters in Beijing.

Digital China was named “Avaya Best Partner of the Year for
Global Emerging Market Video Solutions 2014".

On 26 November, Beijing Smart City Research Institute, a
joint venture between Digital China and Beijing University of
Technology, was officially established.

Digital China and Guiyang Municipal Government signed the
“Memorandum for Strategic Cooperation to Facilitate Smart
City Building at Guiyang.”

The Suzhou Session of Jiangsu Tour under the Digital China
City Discovery campaign was successfully launched.

Digital China showcased its industry cloud application
products, including public information service platform, at
the 3rd China Huizhou Expo of Internet of Things & Cloud
Computing Technology Applications.

12/2014

Cangzhou Municipal Government entered into a “Smart City”
strategic cooperation agreement with Digital China.

Jingmen Municipal Government entered into a “Smart City”
strategic cooperation agreement with Digital China.
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Awards #1§

Business group: Smart City Service Group + Holding Company

XBER E2RATRBEEEERER

Date of award
RS
7/15/2014
10/17/2014

12/19/2014

Name of award

Fortune China 500 (2014)

“PRC Computer Industry
Development Achievement
Award” — “Smart City Core
Support System” Award

Top 10 Leader Enterprises of
China’s Software and Information
Service Industries 2014

Business group: Digital China Group

EEEE: HMNHBEEER

Date of award

ERAM
1/14/2014

2/1/2014

2/2/2014

2/3/2014

3/1/2014

4/1/2014

4/1/2014

5/1/2014
6/24/2014

6/24/2014

9/1/2014

10/1/2014

10/1/2014

Name of award

FY13 Cisco Data Center Best
Service Distribution Award —
Asia Pacific

Best Deals Award, Commercial
Channel, Microsoft Surface
2013

Best Solutions Award,
Commercial Channel, Microsoft
Surface 2013

Special Contribution Award,
Commercial Channel, Microsoft
Surface 2013

Outstanding Generator
Distributor Award

Best Progress and Innovation
Award

FY14 CISCO Best Partner —
Greater China

Best Partner 2013

Cisco 20th Anniversary
Outstanding Contribution Award
Cisco 20th Anniversary
Outstanding Service Contribution
Award

FY14 Cisco Data Center Best
Partner — Greater China
2014 Asia Pacific Best
Improvement of Core Business
FY14 Cisco Data Center Best
Service Distribution Award —
Greater China

RELR

20145 B {55008 £ B
[ EIRT E 7T 2R 3 R PR 4

ZIBEBRBROLERR] &

2014 F E R B4 5 R
BTREEDE

REAR

FY1IBERI T K@ EER O &
EDEBRE

20134 [£ i $ Surface i %
REREARESE

20134 € M X Surface 7 %
REREBRIRE

20134 & ¥ ¥t Surface & %
REBERHRERE

BHBEHAE

A R AI T 82

BR0M4ARFERFEAE
[E283

2013 F R EARIEZ M
BR20BAF 28 E R 48

BRe0BEF = BRY% H B R

BRI20148 F AP E R K
POREAEBHE

2014 K EZ L EB R E#
i
FY1ARHREEBIFEFRLRE
W IE g

Authority

Fortune China

The 3rd PRC
Computer Industry
Development
Achievement

Award Prize-giving
Ceremony and PRC
New Generation IT
Innovation Assembly
2014

China Software
Assembly 2014

Authority

Cisco

Microsoft

Microsoft

Microsoft

Huawei Technologies
Co., Ltd.
Intel

Cisco

AMD

Cisco

Cisco

Cisco

Seagate Asia Pacific

Cisco

MINBBERARAT |

BB

Bt &) ( 3ChR)
FEoETEGERTE
R RIR ML B

20147 BT — K5 B
BlETKE

2014 EEHF R
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Business group: Digital China Group (Continued)

XBER: wMNBBEEEHE)

Date of award
BRAH
10/1/2014

10/1/2014

10/17/2014

11/1/2014

11/1/2014

12/1/2014

12/1/2014

12/1/2014

1/1/2015

1/1/2015

1/1/2015

Name of award

Best Partner of the Year for
Global Emerging Market Video

Solutions

2014 Outstanding Service

Support Award
PRC Computer Industry

Development Achievement Award
— Groundbreaking Innovative

Product 2014

Trustworthy Enterprise of Wuhan

National Outstanding Safety
Protection Work Enterprises

Best Channel Development

Award

2014 Polycom Best Solution

Implementation

Wuhan Outstanding Service

Outsourcing Enterprises

2014 Outstanding ASP Service

Support Class Il Award

2014 Outstanding Service Team

Class Il Award

IBM 2014 General Partner

Award

Business group: Digital China IT Services

EBEE:MBBEERE

Date of award
ERAH
2/1/2014
5/1/2014

5/1/2014

6/1/2014

Digital China Holdings Limited |

Name of award

Successful Enterprises in China’s
IT Service Market 2013-2014

Gold Award — The 18th Int’l Soft

China

Innovation Award — The 18th

Int’l Soft China

Top 100 Software Business
Enterprises of China 2014 (13th

Session)

2014 Annual Report

RELR

ERMETGRATRFE

BIEBH

2014 M EHE L HER

2014 PR HEBITERR

BCEL B — SRR E &

RETEARRTEMALE

EEEFRHIELE

RERERME

2014Polycom 5 £ i R 77 %

i

REMRBIBESLE

2014FASPRRI = ZE 28

F_FE

0M4FEFEEEBF _FR

IBM 201445 & & 1E# 4 58

RIEEHE

2013-2014H BEITAR % T 5

FERDEER

FTNETERERTEES

&8

FTNETERRERTEES

Bl 88

2014F (E+=/8) R E &+

ES VISR

Authority

Avaya (China)
Communication Co.,
Ltd.

Huawei Technologies
Co., Ltd.

China Computer
Industry Association

Wuhan Bureau

of Industrial

and Commercial
Administration,
Wuhan Association
for the Administration
of Corporate
Contracts

China Security &
Protection Industry
Association

Intel

Polycom
Communication
Solutions (Beijing) Co.,
Ltd

Wuhan Service
Outsourcing
Association, Donghu
Gaoxin District
Management
Committee

Huawei Technologies
Co., Ltd.

Huawei Technologies
Co., Ltd.

IBM

Authority

CCID Consulting
Company Limited
Organising Committee
of Int’l Soft China
Organising Committee
of Int’l Soft China
Ministry of Industry
and Information
Technology of the
PRC
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Business group: Digital China IT Services (Continued)

XBER:  wMNEBREERE (E)

Date of award
RS
6/1/2014

6/1/2014

7/1/2014

7/1/2014

10/1/2014

10/1/2014

10/1/2014

10/17/2014

12/1/2014

Name of award

The 18th Int’l Soft China 2014
“Beijing Pavilion” Outstanding

Organisation Award

Top 5 Gold Service Providers of

China 2014

Top 10 IT Consultant Service

Providers 2014

Top 100 Solution Providers of

China 2014

Premium Service Provider for
Industry Informatisation of China

2014

Outstanding Cloud Service
Provider of China 2014

PRC Computer Industry

Development Achievement Award

Outstanding Achievement
Enterprise

Most Influential IT Service

Enterprise of China’s Information

Industry 2014

Business group: DCN+Sobey
¥E&EE DCN+R R

Date of award
ERAH
9/1/2014

9/1/2014

10/1/2014

10/7/2014

Name of award

“Safe Construction”

Recommended Outstanding

Safety Protection Product
(Network Speed Dome)

“Safe Construction”

Recommended Outstanding
Safety Protection Product (Smart
Video Inter-network Application

Platform)

TOP 10 Security Brands in China

(Video Monitors)

Certificate of High-tech
Enterprises

RELR

2014 % 1)\ J& B 2 B 8 14
HEgt 7B EHEERE

20M4FEHFEE RBH KA
e AR 75 7

2014+ EITH AR B

20147 B 5 R B &

2014+ B 1T % E BL BE R
%

2014F P B Z AR 75 48 L 1 4
7 42
PR R E TR A L 1R

= K Bt 1 2

20145 EHFREBEXEITR
BHRATENES

RELR

[PRER | EBESRMER
(848 =& BN

[FRERIEBESLZHER
(BB ERERTE)

% B+ A R 1R 8 (1R 5
g
CEE U T

Authority

Beijing Software
Industry Association

Software and
Information

Service Magazine,
China Center for
Information Industry
Development

Business Partner

Business Partner

China Computer
Users Association

CCID Consulting
Company Limited
China Computer
Industry Association
The 3rd PRC
Computer Industry
Development
Achievement

Award Prize-giving
Ceremony and PRC
New Generation IT
Innovation Assembly
2014

China Computer
Industry Association

Authority

China Security &
Protection Industry
Association (CSPIA)

China Security &
Protection Industry
Association (CSPIA)

A&S Magazine
(Media)

Beijing Municipal
Science and
Technology
Commission
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Chairman’s Statement =E#H%

2014 is the year of phenomenal development for Mobile Internet as well as the
year of continuous correction in the wake of the international financial crisis.
More importantly, it is also the year China starts to intensify the reforms. In
the foreseeable future, China’s economic transformation will be penetrated by
the reforms: the dividends of which will provide the driving force for stronger
retail spending, advanced urbanization, as well as agricultural modernization
and Internet-based technological innovation will form the new “Troika” that
empowers the country’s economy.

“E-NEERBEBRARREREN-F  EERSREHRRREARY BR
PERERENTE - EAUFAENAR  XESEFHTRHEEER 28K » £X
FAMNEBT HEAR FEHBAELCKRERRA  MUEBERESZONRE
R AEBTEIEENH=EEE -

2014 marks the beginning of Sm@rt City implementation
in China. The “National Planning for Advanced Urbanization
(2014-2020)" issued by the State Council in March had
specifically called for the advancement of Sm@rt City
construction and promotion of innovative applications
of new-generation information technologies such as The
Internet of Things, Cloud Computing and Big Data. 2014
also marks the commencement of further development
of Sm@rt City in Digital China, underpinned by the launch
of the Public Information Service Platform Version 3.0, a
Sme@rt City core supporting system based on the urban
virtual image infrastructure embodying dedicated efforts
of Digital China’s R&D team, which has accelerated the
implementation of the integrated citizen service platform,
integrated enterprise service platform and integrated city
administration platform. In October, Digital China's “Public
Information Service Platform” won the “Sm@rt City Core
Support System” Award of the series of “PRC Computer
Industry Development Achievement Awards”, which are the
only awards for computer industry approved by the State
in China, signifying national recognition for Digital China’s
effort in the Sm@rt City sector. As of now, the deployment
of Digital China's Sm@rt City has footprints in more than 70
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cities, among which we have signed Sm@rt City strategic
cooperation agreements with 33 provinces or municipalities.
In Fuzhou, Foshan, Zhangjiagang and Benxi, the public
information service platforms have commenced operation. On
another note which is even more delighting, we have signed
up with the entire Hebei Province for strategic cooperation
across all business areas as part of the Beijing — Tianjin —
Hebei integration process.

Informatisation is essential to agricultural modernization
in China. In mid-2014, we acquired Zhongnong Xinda,
the leading brand in agricultural informatisation which
had devoted in the agricultural market of China for 16
years, through our controlling company DCITS, arousing
strong interest and enthusiastic discussion on agricultural
informatisation in the domestic capital market. Backed by
Digital China’s software technologies and market influence,
Zhongnong Xinda has not only solidified its business
network in the multi-billion dollar value market relating to
land use right registration, but has also set its sight on
land transferring and trading, as well as the development
of agricultural database which holds out even greater
prospects. The acquisition of Zhongnong Xinda has been
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an innovative move in the process of amalgamating Sm@rt
City construction with the new “four modernizations”. In
the future, we aim to be not only the leader for China’s
Sm@rt City development, but also the vanguard for China’s
agricultural informatisation.

The Internet has not only brought changes to the business
models of various industries, but has also presented
challenges to business operators. Corporate management
in an Internet environment should be more virtualized,
network-based and synergized. In view of the above, we
have started in early 2014 the most significant structural
reform since Digital China’s incorporation: the adoption of a
fleet management model that does away with headquarters
and de-centralizes business management under the guiding
principles of focused strategy, controllable process and
independent auditing. The operations were reorganized into
five principal business groups and the management pyramid
was replaced by a parallel structure. The five principal
business groups of Sm@rt City Service Group, Digital
China Group, Digital China Information Service Company
Ltd. (DCITS), Supply Chain Management Strategy Unit and
Financial Service Strategy Unit are complementary to each
other under the core of Sm@rt City strategy. Following a
period of fine-tunes and consolidation over the past year,
the five business groups are currently operating in sound
conditions:

(1) Sm@rt City Service Group — In 2014, we completed the
technological development and application verification work
for one centre (urban multi-dimensional digital virtual image)
and three platforms (integrated citizen service platform,
integrated enterprise service platform and integrated city
administration platform), launched Cloud platforms in 16
cities and fulfilled basic coverage applications of the public
information service platform for one province. In the next
three years, we will strive to cover 100 cities and provide
public services to enterprises and citizens through the
Internet to become China’'s largest public service platform.
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(2) Digital China Group — The market for the product
distribution business has been subject to massive changes
for the past few years, presenting challenges and
opportunities. In 2014, the Group upheld its advantages
in traditional distribution channels and made tremendous
efforts to explore opportunities in new fields, with the view
to a stable transition. Meanwhile, business deployment and
active exploration were made in 2014 based on the strategy
of “omni-channel, owned brands and Cloud services”. Severe
market conditions still prevail for Distribution and Systems,
our two major traditional businesses. In the future, Digital
China Group aims to create an omni-channel marketing
platform and a sales and service delivery platform for
enterprise-grade products as a domestic market leader.

(3) DCITS — Following its official listing in the A share
market in 2014, the IT service business of DCITS maintained
leadership in the domestic market, while its technology
service business also sustained rapid growth in the back
of its highly efficiently Wising IT Service Management
Platform. Its application software development service
business embarked on a fast track for growth in scale and
profitability on the back of technology building-up over the
years, enjoying competitive edge in the financial, taxation
service and Sm@rt City sectors. DCITS also boasts its first-
grade Cloud Computing and Big Data platform businesses by
the international standard and the work of implementation is
underway. Moreover, DCITS claimed first-mover advantage in
the agricultural IT sector following the successful acquisition
of Zhongnong Xinda. In 2014, DCITS led to form the “Union
of Safety and Reliability Information System Improvement” in
association with 4 other well-known companies leveraging
our leadership in industry application, seeking to play an
active role in the national strategy for IT autonomy and
controllability. In the future, DCITS aims to become the
most valuable platform service provider in China by stepping
up with business model innovation and business value
enhancement and creating synergies with the Sm@rt City
strategy with Cloud Computing and Big Data at the core, on
the back of its existing strengths in technical service and
software.
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(4) Supply Chain Management Strategy Unit — In 2014,
Instant Technology Logistics had become an influential brand
in China’s e-commerce industry. At present, more than half
of the Apple i-phones sold in China are dispatched using
the service of Instant Technology Logistics, while we are
also responsible for the supply-chain management of well-
known domestic vehicle companies. In 2014, we achieved
notable growth in e-commerce revenue and we completed the
development of China’s first smart warehouse administration
system. In the future, Instant Technology Logistics aims to
become a leading brand in China’s e-commerce logistics
sector, providing integrated supply-chain solutions based on
inventory management under the Cloud model.

(5) Financial Service Strategy Unit — Following the business
structure adjustments of Digital China, financial service has
become an important business department of the Company.
In 2014, after obtaining a number of financial franchising
licenses, we commenced new institutional businesses in
full scale such as finance leasing, commercial factoring
and microcredit loans. In the future, the financial service
department aims to grow into an Internet-driven financial
service group by leveraging the integrated strengths provided
by its various financial franchising licenses and create
synergies with Sm@rt City construction and operation.
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2015 will remain a year full of challenges for Digital China.
Profit forecast in traditional businesses will be increasingly
difficult given the volatility of RMB exchange rates, while
the structural corrections of the Chinese economy will
inevitably put pressure on our overall business. Meanwhile,
technology applications based on the Mobile Internet and
Cloud Computing will continue to pose threats to traditional
IT industries. As for Sm@rt City, while the business has
entered into a period of fast growth, its profit model is still
under exploration. | have deep feelings from years of field
experiences that transforming a business is more challenging
than starting one, because the former requires more
courage and patience on the part of the management to
provide leadership. In face of such challenges, we will remain
firmly committed to Sm@rt City as our unequivocal business
focus as we continue to steer Digital China’s transformation
from a traditional IT company to an Internet-driven enterprise
in order to deliver greater value to our shareholders. On
behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to take this
opportunity to thank our investors for their understanding
and support for Digital China during this period of transition;
and | would also like to thank all staffs for their unrelenting
efforts in helping to achieve the Company’s objectives. \We
have no doubt that the day will come when we ride the wind
and plough the waves. By setting the sail, we will cross the
sea and long for a bright future and realize our dream.

20154 - MBS K - AR TEW
BN —F ARBEXNREHFESFY
BHREBZFTER K EEE N FEL
ERNAEEMAR VRS HRBEERSK
B e E B MERE A %O
EREBERTTXEELERENTE S
EHMBERAEARENERFELY - BRF
BRAMAERERBER  ZFRKNHEE
BEBRZDEALAIETE AR
EREEmMs TREEANEBANFTEETLE
R c AEEZRE  RMODBER
S REERMEEERANER &
W MNEIERERITAERBECENE
A BRRAEEANEE - £t &
EREESFT  RHFEEALEBINEE
EANEBERNZF RHE2BET AR
AIEBEMMEAO RS - HMBIE:
REBREER BEHENERE -

HWNEBIERERAT | 2014F K

19



20

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWNE DN

In 2014, the Group’s traditional businesses were confronted
with tremendous challenges under the enormous impact of
the national policy guidance of IT autonomy and controllability,
the evolution of industry model underpinned by the Mobile
Internet and Cloud Computing and the in-depth correction of
the domestic economic structure. The Group Management
responded to such challenges proactively. In terms of
strategy, we persist and accelerate the implementation of
Sm@rt City strategy. In terms of management, we adopt
the fleet management model with further de-centralization
of business management which is the most significant
organizational reform of Digital China since its incorporation.
In terms of business, the Group actively participated in
technologically-advanced frontiers such as “Cloud Computing,
Mobile Internet, Big Data and Sm@rt Agriculture” and
obtained strong competitive edge. The Sm@rt City Group
reported unprecedented pace in the expansion progress,
highlighted by the promotion on “provincial level” underlying
the provincial Sm@rt City strategic cooperation agreement
with Hebei Province. Meanwhile, Digital China Group’s
business operations gradually stabilized, as it sought to
drive development under the three segments of “omni-
channel, proprietary innovation and Cloud service”. The Digital
China Information Service Company Ltd. (namely, DCITS and
hereafter) continued to optimize its business structure,
while the acquisition of Zhongnong Xinda put it in a leading
position in agricultural informatisation. The Supply Chain
Service business began to develop “Large Customer Service”
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model in logistics to form the e-commerce business based
on “intermediary platform”, while breakthroughs were made
in the exploration of 020 business of maintenance services.
The Financial Service Business was rolling out financial
institution businesses such as micro-credit loans, leasing
and commercial factoring, in addition to providing capital
resources to the Group’s businesses.

11 Stable business operation as a whole with
continuous improvements in profitability though
vulnerable to foreign exchange volatility

The Group maintained stability or made improvements
in a number of business indicators as we persisted
in “focusing on strategies, fortifying foundation and
transforming to upgrade” in response to challenges
posed by the rapid changes in the macro-economy and
industry structure. The Group reported revenue of
approximately HK$68.34 bhillion for the financial year
under review (namely, from January to December 2014
and hereafter), a decrease of 1.08% as compared
to the corresponding period of last year (namely,
from January to December 2013 and hereafter). The
overall gross profit margin for the year improved
by 34 basis points to 7.05% as compared to the
corresponding period of last year. Profit attributable
to equity shareholders for the financial year amounted
to approximately HK$701 million, an increase of
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1.2

Digital China Holdings Limited |

149.91% as compared to the corresponding period
of last year or a decrease of 15.53% if we exclude
the one-off expenses related to DCITS listing recorded
in 2013 (if we exclude the foreign exchange gains or
losses occurred in the financial year under review as
well as the corresponding period of last year and add
back the one-off expenses related to DCITS listing
then it increased by 50.15% vyear-on-year). In face
of the in-depth correction of the domestic economic
structure, the Group persisted in stringent controls
over business risks and operating costs. Thanks to
enhanced management of trade receivables, the Group
sustained strong cash inflow from operating activities
and reported cash flow from operating activities of
approximately HK$2.08 billion for 2014, representing
a substantial increased from approximately HK$389
million over the corresponding period of last year.
Through downsizing and organizational restructuring,
overall operating expenses decreased by 25.77%, as
compared to the corresponding period of last year or
decreased by 6.30% if we exclude the foreign exchange
losses occurred in the financial year and the one-off
expenses related to DCITS listing recorded in 2013.

Ongoing optimization of organizational structure
as reform was basically completed

In face of the enormous challenges and changes both
inside and outside the company, the Group instituted
the most significant organizational restructuring since
its incorporation, which was also a restructuring

in the model of management and control. Under
the guiding principle of “focusing on strategies
and assuring process controllability”, our pyramid

management framework was reorganized into a flat
and parallel structure comprising five principal business

groups: Sm@rt City Service Group, Digital China
Group, Digital China Information Service Company
Ltd. (DCITS), Supply Chain Management Strategy

Unit and Financial Service Strategy Unit. This is a
fleet management model under which the business
groups can complement each other as one unit
while operating independently as a standalone group.
Each business group has completed its own three-
year strategic plan and established mechanisms and
institutions conducive to its strategic objectives, as well
as a forward-looking business structure. All business
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1.3

2.1

groups made significant progress in 2014 to cement
the organizational infrastructure for the Company’s
sustainable development in future.

Sm@rt City progressed in full speed with

support of technology research and development

2014 marks the beginning of Sm@rt City
implementation in China with the government’s
announcements of a number of guiding policies in
connection with Sm@rt City development providing a
direct driving force for the construction of Sm@rt
Cities in China. 2014 also marks the commencement
of Digital China's Sm@rt City strategy, as Digital
China’s position and influence as a leading “Sm@rt
City expert in China” were initially established. Product
research and development was enhanced with the
formation of the comprehensive framework of “one
centre and three platforms” to facilitate inter-
connection between national platforms and their local
or municipal platforms. The enhancement in product
development and system maintenance ability will lay
a firm foundation for the full-scale expansion of the
Sm@rt City. The Sm@rt City was promoted in various
cities at unprecedented pace, as we implemented the
platform construction in 13 cities in 2014 and signed
a Sme@rt City strategic cooperation agreement with
Hebei Province. This development signified the success
of the promotion model on the provincial level and
brought new ideas for the accelerating city coverage,
which provides strong support for the achievement of
the target on implementation in 100 cities.

Sm@rt City Service Group: provision of all-
encompassing Sm@rt City services for city
administrators, enterprises and citizens based
on “one centre and three platforms”.

Expediting Sm@rt City promotion and information
platform construction with active exploration of
commercial operation model. The launch of the
Urban Public Information Service Platform Version
3.0 in 2014, a Sm@rt City core supporting system
based on the urban virtual image infrastructure has
accelerated the implementation of the integrated
citizen service platform, integrated enterprise service
platform and integrated urban administration platform
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(three platforms) as well as the urban information
management centre (one centre). With the launch of
the national central platform in 2014, we included
Cloud Computing and Internet service resources to
facilitate interactive application of resources and
drive the upgrade of city services. On the back of our
forward-looking research ability, the Group will continue
to invest more in technical research and development
to expedite the promotion and implementation
of Sm@rt City and provide high-quality, efficient
information services for citizens, enterprises and city
administrators.

Sme@rt City operation — On the back of Sm@rt City
operation and data resources generated over the past
three years, the Group expedited its exploration in the
commercial operation of Sm@rt City based on public
information service platforms. During the financial year,
we added Weihai and Benxi to the commercial operation
in addition to Foshan, Fuzhou and Zhangjiagang. \We
took the first step in commercialization trial although
it's far away from our target. In the future, we will
continue to focus on expanding our data resources and
enhancing our ability in data utilization, and seek to
integrate existing government and enterprise data with
stronger consolidation and analysis capability to roll out
a broad range of Sm@rt City application services to
strive for steady increase in revenue.

Digital China Group: In corporate IT sector,

provision of products and solutions covering
application structures, such as system, network,
storage and security. In consumer electronics
sector, consolidation of online and offline
resources to provide customers with end-to-end
value chain services centered on omni-channel

marketing strategy.

The Systems Business: fourth quarter results
stabilized and rebounded as we cemented our
dominant position in traditional businesses and seized
growth opportunities in sub-segments. Despite of
the adversity of general market doldrums and the
continued decline of international brands, the Group
sustained stable performance for the core product
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lines registering growth in market share management.
Overall revenue of the Systems Business for the fourth
quarter of 2014 grew by 4.23% as compared to the
corresponding period of last year, as the segment
seized growth opportunities in the sub-segments
of servers and national brands. While revenue for
the full year amounted to approximately HK$20.85
billion, representing a 7.89% decline as compared to
the corresponding period of last year, the quarter-
on-quarter decrease was substantially narrowed
and gross profit margin for the year was stable at
8.76%, which was basically unchanged compared to
the corresponding period of last year. In view of the
prevalence of “nationalization” in the longer term, the
Group seized growth opportunities in connection with
national brands such as Huawei and reported an 80%
growth in the full-year revenue from Huawei business,
which partially offset the impact from the international
brand business declines. Meanwhile, the Group also
accelerated the development of other network brands
and national brands in security products. A whole
new and independent business department was set up
to embark on cooperation on all fronts, in order to
capitalize opportunities arising from Lenovo’'s acquisition
of the IBM x86 server business. In connection
with the Cloud Computing business, which is an
important segment for breakthroughs in the Group’s
transformation and upgrade, the Group will strengthen
cooperation with strategic manufacturers and plan
for the construction of integrated Cloud service
platforms to drive the transformation of its traditional
businesses.

The Distribution Business: Revenue stabilized and
increased following the implementation of the omni-
channel strategy. Amid a lackluster consumer IT
market in China in 2014, the Group’s traditional
Distribution Business reported gross profit margin of
3.28% with a year-on-year improvement of 64 basis
points, following enhanced cooperation with mainstream
brands through the strategic setup of omni-channel.
The Group’s omni-channel strategy comprises four
distinct business directions: online distribution, online
retail sales, offline distribution and offline retail sales.
The CES business, the offline retail segment, seized the
growth opportunities for Apple products and introduced
retail management of Dell by exploring offline retail
management models, as revenue from these two major
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brands through the CES channels registered year-on-
year growth of 14.46% and 210%, respectively, driving
a full-year growth of 9.94% in overall CES revenue.
The e-commerce departments, the online segment,
enhanced cooperation with mainstream customers in
the market, such as JD.com and Amazon, while setting
up the Digital China flagship store on the Tmall platform
which is a successful attempt of online distribution.
Full-year revenue of the e-commerce business as
a whole increased by 16.47% compared with the
corresponding period of last year. However, due to
insignificant proportion of CES revenue, the whole
distribution business revenue reached to approximately
HK$36.51 billion and increased by 2.95% compared
with the corresponding period of last year.

DCITS: The leading IT service provider in China’s
IT industry specialized in proprietary software,
and Big Data
analysis with the persistent implementation of

services, Cloud Computing

integrating Sm@rt City and Sm@rt Agriculture.

Ongoing optimization of business structure following
successful listing in the stock market, tapping into
the Sm@rt Agriculture sector through acquisition of
Zhongnong Xinda. 2014 marks the first year following
the completion of the asset reorganisation of the
Group’s IT service business and the listing of DCITS
on the A share market. The award of the “Certificate
of National Chartered System Integration Enterprises
in Safety and Reliability Computing Information” by the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology to the
company, as one of only eight recipients, will favour
our rapid business expansion. DCITS continued to drive
the optimisation of its business structure and focus on
businesses with higher added-value, such as technical
services, application software development and
specialized equipment for the finance industry, which
in aggregate accounted for approximately 41% of the
total revenue for the financial year under review, which
represented an increase of approximately 900 basis
points as compared with the corresponding period of
last year, driving up the overall gross profit margin for
the full year to 17.95%, which represented an increase
of 278 basis points as compared to the corresponding
period of last year. For the financial year under review,
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the systems integration business reported revenue of
approximately HK$4.73 billion, a year-on-year decrease
of 26.97%, as it continued to adjust its operations and
strengthen cooperation with domestic manufacturers
with a special focus on the municipal enterprises and
Internet businesses based on prudent selection of
customers and businesses. Affected by the above, the
revenue of DCITS for the reporting period decreased by
14.94%, as compared with the corresponding period of
last year, to approximately HK$8.14 billion. Net profit
grew 15.67%, year-on-year to approximately HK$361
million.

Agricultural informatisation — In mid-2014, DCITS
acquired Zhongnong Xinda and formed the new business
segment of agricultural informatisation. Based on the
consolidation of the existing government software
business, the Digital China Sm@rt Agricultural Strategy
was launched as an extension of the Sm@rt City
strategy, targeting at the immensely huge market of
agricultural villages consisting of a population 670
million and farmland of 2 billion mu. Zhongnong Xinda
is the vanguard in China’s agricultural informatisation,
with comprehensive business setups in the three major
sectors of e-government, e-commerce and e-agriculture
for villages with No.1 market share. For the financial
year under review, revenue from agricultural
informatisation amounted to HK$37.92 million
(Zhongnong Xinda's financial data were consolidated into
Group’s financial statement since December 2014 so
revenue of agricultural informatisation only reflected
the data in December 2014) with gross margin
reaching to 53.49%. The company's land use right
registration business newly entered into 15 provinces
with dominant market shares. A new model of province-
wide land use right registration with Hebei Province
was established in a tag-along with the Sm@rt City
business of Digital China, the parent company. The
company focused on the development of products and
services for the informatisation of agricultural village
administration, such as agricultural land use right
registration, agricultural land property transaction and
Sunshine anti-corruption agricultural platform, in close
tandem with national agricultural strategy. Leveraging
the rapidly developing agricultural land use right
registration business, an integrated solution for the
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geographic information service chain of farmland was
successfully developed to assure leading market shares
in the agricultural land use right registration sector.

Supply Chain Management Strategy Unit:
Operating through Instant Logistics to provide
comprehensive intermediary and backstage
logistics services for corporate customers,
branded

providers and individuals, while actively exploring

e-commerce platforms, service

Internet-based self-branded maintenance

services.

Creating a new service business model with rapid
development in e-commerce and breakthroughs in
the 020 model. The supply chain business seized
market opportunities and reported overall revenue of
approximately HK$2.85 billion for 2014, representing
an increase of 100.11% as compared to the
corresponding period of last year. The overall gross
profit margin of the supply chain business decreased
from 19.26% for last year to 11.65%, reflecting
the structural effect of substantial growth in the
e-commerce business which has a lower gross profit
margin.

Logistics business — Instant Logistics sustained rapid
growth during the financial year under review, reporting
an increase of 30.17% in revenue to approximately
HK$673 million, as compared to the corresponding
period of last year. Instant Logistics signed up popular
B2C brands such as Toread and P&G in 2014, while
solidifying its position as a leading logistics service
provider for the telecommunications industry. It
established a sound reputation in the industry as it
handled orders in doubled volume during the November
11th peak season of e-commerce marketing in 2014
with assured operating efficiency and quality on the
back of its strengths in storage informatisation. In
2014, Instant Logistics established a basic “Large
Customer Service” model. The business begins to enjoy
scales of economy brought by the expansion, with the
core customer contributing over revenue RMB100
million.
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2.5

E-commerce business — The e-commerce business
reported breakthrough in the financial year under
review with revenue growing to approximately HK$1.92
billion, an increase of 183.78% as compared with
the corresponding period of last year. In 2014,
the e-commerce business was engaged in in-depth
cooperation with Dell and Huawei manufacturers
to create an ‘“intermediary platform” e-commerce
model that integrated business orders, financial and
invoice services, systems and process management
and operated in conjunction with the storage,
transportation and system services of Instant Logistics
to give a significant boost to the value of customers’
businesses.

Maintenance service business — The maintenance
service business was stable in the financial year
under review with revenue growing to approximately
HK$253 million, an increase of 10.71% as compared
to the corresponding period of last year. In 2014,
the maintenance service business created a new
020 model of “Internet marketing + remote support
+ in store delivery”, forming an offline maintenance
service network comprising 57 self-owned maintenance
centres and 960 authorised service outlets in over
1000 cities, which was complemented by online
marketing through Weizhan, WeChat, Taobao and
bang.360.cn. Tremendous efforts were also made to
develop partners in new 3C sectors, such as mobile
terminals, Internet equipment and home appliances,
under the self-owned brand of “K-boy”.

Financial Service Strategy Unit: provision of
financial services, such as financing, investment,

credit lending, financial risk management and

financial information consultation, etc, to
internal departments as well as third-party
customers.

Breakthroughs in the financial institution business
with persistent innovation and risk control. During
the financial year under review, the Group endeavoured
to maintain and increase its bank loan facilities
against increasingly tough conditions in the domestic
finance market and secured total credit lending of
close to HK$37.24 billion to provide sufficient financial
backing for the business development of Digital China.
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Against the backdrop of generally tightened overseas
finance markets in 2014, the Company was able to
control its overall funding costs at a relatively low
level. In 2014, the Company was engaged in full-scale
development of its financial institution business, as it
actively recruited relevant staff, built business teams,
developed standardised management procedures and
commenced new institutional businesses such as
financial leasing, commercial factoring and micro-credit
loans, confirming these operations as representing the
strategic direction of the Financial Service Group in the
next three years.

Financial institution business — During the financial
year, we completed financial leasing and commercial
factoring businesses each over 100 projects, with the
drawdown of loans having started in some cases. The
self-operated micro-credit loan company completed
dozens of deals. The micro-credit loan business
operated in joint venture with HC International reported
total loan drawdowns in excess of RMB1.3 billion as
at the end of 2014. Currently, the Group is actively
exploring innovations in supply chain finance, Internet
finance and PPP (Public Private Partnership), seeking
to develop governmental and industrial clients and
create an influential brand name in financial services
by leveraging the brand advantage and industry
background of Digital China and working in tandem with
the Sm@rt City strategy.

Management Outlook

Looking to 2015, Group's core business and traditional
business model face great challenges as China
enters into a crucial period of transformation in line
with adjustments in national policies, technological
innovations and changing business patterns. The
volatility of RMB exchange rate increases the
uncertainties of our major businesses’ profitability.
The Management will continue to drive the Sm@rt
City strategy with strong determination and seek to
enhance the core values of Sm@rt City and other
business groups by forming significant synergies
among such groups on the basis of the said core
strategy. Our organisational structure will be further
optimised and adjusted to gradually achieve a virtualized
management organization, network-based management
process and synergized strategy execution. Meanwhile,
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the incentive mechanism will also be revised in order
to develop a reward system which is more closely
aligned with the characteristics of the business groups
and development stages. Under the core Sm@rt City
strategy, the Management will work diligently to drive
the transformation of its traditional businesses, with
ongoing efforts to optimise the business structure
of DCITS, sustain rapid growth of the supply chain
business and actively incubate innovative financial
institution businesses, to unleash the energy and vitality
of Digital China as a national brand in the world of
Internet, and to build it into a leading brand of Sm@rt
City in China.

Capital Expenditure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group mainly finances its operations with internally
generated cash flows, bank borrowings and banking facilities.

The Group had total assets of HK$33,708 million at 31
December 2014 which were financed by total liabilities of
HK$22,844 million, non-controlling interests of HK$2,264
million and equity attributable to equity holders of the
parent of HK$8,600 million. The Group’s current ratio at
31 December 2014 was 1.16 as compared to 1.36 at 31
December 2013.

During the vyear ended 31 December 2014, -capital
expenditure of HK$3930 million was mainly incurred for
the acquisition of properties, office equipment and IT
infrastructure facilities.

The aggregate borrowings as a ratio of equity attributable
to equity holders of the parent was 0.94 at 31 December
2014 as compared to 0.78 at 31 December 2013. The
computation of the said ratio was based on the total
interest-bearing bank borrowings of HK$8,125 million (31
December 2013: HK$6,034 million) and equity attributable
to equity holders of the parent of HK$8,600 million (31
December 2013: HK$7,726 million).
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At 31 December 2014, the denomination of the interest-
bearing bank borrowings of the Group was shown as follows:

Denominated

R-ZE—WNFE+-_A=+—H KEEH
MERITERNEREMLMT

in United Denominated
States in Hong Kong
dollars dollars Total
HET LU HE T
RERENL RERENQ &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
Current B
Interest-bearing bank MERITEN - |EA
borrowings, unsecured 5,886,012 1174127 7,060,139
Non-current FERE
Interest-bearing bank MERITEN - |EA
borrowings, unsecured 764,848 300,000 1,064,848
Total 5T 6,650,860 1,474,127 8,124,987
Included in the Group’s current and non-current bank  BEARAEEZREBRIFRBBRITER

borrowings of HK$1,550 million and HK$1,065 million
respectively represented the term loans and are repayable
from Year 2015 to 2016.

The Group’s total available credit facilities at 31 December
2014 amounted to HK$37,240 million, of which HK$3,267
million were in term loan facilities, HK$20,955 million were
in trade lines and HK$13,018 million were in short-term and
revolving money market facilities. At 31 December 2014,
the facility drawn down was HK$3,265 million in term loan
facilities, HK$5,904 million in trade lines and HK$2,457
million in short-term and revolving money market facilities.

Under the normal course of business, the Group has
issued performance bonds to some customers for potential
claims of non-performance in order to satisfy the specific
requirements of these customers. As no material claims had
been made by the customers under such performance bonds
in the past, the management considers that the possibility
of realisation of any actual material liabilities arising from
such performance bonds is remote.
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Human Resources

At 31 December 2014, the Group had approximately
9,700 (31 December 2013: approximately 9,800) full-time
employees. The majority of these employees work in the PRC.
The Group offers remuneration packages in line with industry
practice. Employees’ remuneration includes basic salaries
and bonuses. With the decrease in the total number of
staff to cope with its business requirements, the Group has
recorded a 36.16% increase in staff costs to approximately
HK$2,486 million for the year ended 31 December 2014
as compared to approximately HK$1,826 million for the nine
months ended 31 December 2013. In order to attract and
retain a high caliber of capable and motivated workforce,
the Company offers share-based incentive schemes to staff
based on the individual performance and the achievements of
the Company’s targets. The Group is committed to providing
its staff with various in-house and external training and
development programs.
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Directors and Company Secretary

ESRkAEIME

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS ZXE - &

Executive Directors H{TE S

-

Mr. GUO Wei
PHEE

Mr. GUO Wei, aged 52, is the Chairman and an Executive Director
of the Group and is responsible for the strategic development and
management of the Group. Mr. Guo had been the Vice Chairman,
the President and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group since
February 2001 and was appointed as the Chairman of the Board of
the Company in December 2007. He is also a Director of certain
subsidiaries and associates of the Company. Mr. Guo obtained a
Master’'s Degree from the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy
of Science (formerly known as Graduate School of the University
of Science and Technology of China) in 1988. He joined the Legend
group in 1988 and was once an Executive Director and Senior
Vice President. Mr. Guo was awarded such major prizes included
China’s Top Ten Outstanding Youths (2002), k2@ HBFHKE
# {42 (Practical and Outstanding Youth of Achievement) (2002)
by the China Association for Science and Technology, China’s Top
Ten Outstanding Youths in Technology Innovation (1998), Future
Economic Leader of China (2003), and the First Annual China Young
Entrepreneurs Creative Management Golden Honour (2005). He was
also selected as the 50 Most Powerful Businesspeople in China by
Fortune Magazine (Chinese version) in 2011 and 2012.

Mr. Guo is currently the Chairman of Digital China Information
Service Company Ltd. (listed on The Shenzhen Stock Exchange) and
a Non-executive Director of HC International, Inc. (listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) and an
Independent Director of Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co.,
Ltd. (listed on The Shanghai Stock Exchange). In addition, he is
a Director of Kosalaki Investments Limited which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Guo was a Director of DigiWin
Software Co., Ltd. (listed on the ChiNext of The Shenzhen Stock
Exchange). Besides, Mr. Guo is currently a Standing Committee
Member of the 12th National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, a member of the 4th Advisory
Committee for State Informatization and the Chairman of both
Beijing Informatization Association and the Bth Council of China
Non-Governmental Science Technology Entrepreneurs Association.
He has over 27 years of experience in business strategy
development and business management.
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Mr. LIN Yang
misLE

Mr. LIN Yang, aged 48, is the Chief Executive Officer and
an Executive Director of the Group and is responsible for
the overall business management of the Group. He is also
a Director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lin
graduated in 1988 with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Computing
Communications from the Xidian University and in 2005 with
a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business. Mr. Lin is currently the
Vice Chairman of Digital China Information Service Company
Ltd. (listed on The Shenzhen Stock Exchange). He was
previously the Executive Vice President and the President of
the Group and was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer
of the Group in April 2011. He joined the Legend group in
1990 and has over 24 years of management experience
in distribution business. Mr. Lin was awarded the Lifetime
Achievement Award by the IT Channel Elite Panel in 2001 and
recognised as the Most Influential Figure in IT Distribution
of 20 Years in 2005. In 2013, he was also selected as one
of the Leaders of the Year 2012 of the China Information
Industry and Top-10 Annual Icons of the Year 2012 of
Zhongguancun. Besides, Mr. Lin has been appointed as the
Director for IT Channel Profession Council, under the MIIT
(Ministry of Industry and Information Technology).
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Mr. YAN Guorong
BEREE

Mr. YAN Guorong, aged 41, is the President and an Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Yan is responsible for the
overall operation and management of the Group and he
is also a Director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Yan graduated from Renmin University of China with
a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics and obtained an EMBA
Degree from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business. He
joined the Legend group in 1996 and has been responsible
for the day-to-day operation and management of the
company’s network and value-added business. From 2005
onwards, Mr. Yan has assumed duties of strategic planning,
operational management and regional management of the
Systems Technology Services Strategic Business Unit of f#
MEHE (P ENERR AR (Digital China (China) Limited). Mr. YAN
has nearly 18 years of experience in distribution, customers
services business and sales management of IT value-added
products.
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Non-executive Director ¥ #{TE =

Mr. Andrew Y. YAN

Mr. Andrew Y. YAN, aged 57, is a Non-executive Director of the Company.
He received his Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering from the Nanjing Aeronautic
Institute in the PRC in 1982 and a Master of Arts’ Degree in International
Political Economy from Princeton University in 1888. Mr. Yan joined the
Company in December 2007. He is currently the Founding Managing Partner
of SAIF Partners (“SAIF”) and a Director of Sparkling Investment (BVI) Limited
("SIBL") and SAIF Il GP Capital Ltd. which are substantial shareholders of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
Prior to joining SAIF, he was the Managing Director and Head of the Hong Kong
office of the Emerging Markets Partnership (AIG Asian Infrastructure Fund’s
Principal Adviser) from 1994 to 2001. From 1989 to 1994, he worked in the
World Bank, the renowned Hudson Institute and Sprint International Corporation
as an Economist, Research Fellow and a Director for the Asia Pacific Region
respectively in Washington D.C.. From 1882 to 1984, he was the Chief Engineer
at the Jianghuai Airplane Corp.. Mr. Yan is a recipient of China's national
“Thousand Talents Program” and served as a member of its Selection Committee
in 2012. He is also a Director of Peking University Endowment Investment
Committee, and was a Founding Director of China Venture and Private Equity
Association. He was voted by the China Venture Capital Association as “The
Venture Investor of the Year” in both 2004 and 2007. He was also selected
as one of the “Fifty Finest Private Equity Investors in the World” by the Private
Equity International in 2007, “No. 1 Venture Capitalist of the Year” by Forbes
(China) in 2008 and 2008. He was the “Venture Capital Professional of the
Year” by Asia Venture Capital Journal in 2009. Under Mr. Yan's leadership, SAIF
was voted as “VC Firm of the Year” by the China Venture Capital Association in
2004 and 2007 and it was also named as “The Best Performing Fund in Asia”
by Private Equity International in 2005, 2006 and 2008, “The Best Growth
Investment Fund of the Year” in 2008.

Currently, Mr. Yan is an Independent Non-executive Director of CPMC Holdings
Limited, Cogobuy Group, China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation and China
Resources Land Limited; a Non-executive Director of Guodian Technology &
Environment Group Corporation Limited, China Huiyuan Juice Group Limited and
eSun Holdings Limited (all listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, other than that China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation
is also listed on The Shanghai Stock Exchange, The London Stock Exchange
and The New York Stock Exchange). Mr. Yan is also an Independent Director of
BlueFocus Communication Group Co., Ltd. (listed on the ChiNext of The Shenzhen
Stock Exchange) and a director of ATA Inc. (listed on the NASDAQ, USA). He
was previously an Independent Non-executive Director of China Mengniu Dairy
Company Limited and Fosun International Limited; a Non-executive Director of
MOBI Development Co., Ltd., (all listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited), an Independent Director of Giant Interactive Group
Inc. (the shares of which were withdrawn from listing on The New York Stock
Exchange in July 2014), a Director of China Digital TV Holding Co., Ltd. (listed
on The New York Stock Exchange), Acorn International, Inc. (listed on The New
York Stock Exchange), Eternal Asia Supply Chain Management Ltd. (listed on
The Shenzhen Stock Exchange) and Global Education & Technology Group Ltd.
(the shares of which were withdrawn from listing on the NASDAQ, USA on 20
December 2011) as well as the Chairman and a Non-executive Director of NVC
Lighting Holding Limited (listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited).
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Independent Non-executive Directors B F HTESE

Mr. WONG Man Chung, Francis

BEXRELE

Mr. WONG Man Chung, Francis, aged 50, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company. He holds a Master's
Degree in Management conferred by Guangzhou Jinan University,
the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Wong is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the
United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a Certified Tax Advisor of the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong, an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and a member of the Society
of Chinese Accountants and Auditors. He is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) and has over 27 years of experience
in auditing, taxation, management and financial advisory. Mr.
Wong joined the Company in August 2006. Previously, Mr. \Wong
worked for KPMG, an international accounting firm, for 6 years
and the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited for 2
years. Mr. Wong has the appropriate professional qualifications,
accounting and related financial management expertise as
required under Rule 3.10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Wong is currently an Independent Non-executive Director,
the Chairman of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee as well as a member of the Nomination Committee
of China Oriental Group Company Limited (listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited); and an
Independent Non-executive Director, the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee of Wai Kee Holdings Limited
and Integrated Waste Solutions Group Holdings Limited (both
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited). He was an Independent Non-executive Director of
eForce Holdings Limited (listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). Mr. Wong is the Managing
Director of Union Alpha C.P.A. Limited and a Director of Union
Alpha CAAP Certified Public Accountants Limited, both being
professional accounting firms, and a Founding Director and
member of Francis M C Wong Charitable Foundation Limited, a
charitable institution.
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Ms. NI Hong (Hope)

AR ]

Ms. NI Hong (Hope), aged 42, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company. Ms. Ni received her
J.D. Degree from the University of Pennsylvania Law
School and her Bachelor’s Degree in Applied Economics
and Business Management from Cornell University. Ms. Ni
joined the Company in September 2010. Currently, Ms. Ni
is an Executive Director and the Chief Investment Officer
of Cogobuy Group (listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). Ms. Ni has been the
Chairman of Inspire Capital since 2009. From August 2004
to January 2008, Ms. Ni served as the Chief Financial
Officer and Director for Viewtran Group, Inc. (“Viewtran”),
and subsequently served as its Vice Chairman until early
2008. Prior to joining Viewtran, Ms. Ni spent six years as a
Practicing Attorney at Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom
LLP in New York and Hong Kong, specializing in corporate
finance. Prior to that, Ms. Ni worked at Merrill Lynch’s
investment banking division in New York.

Ms. Ni is currently serving as an Independent Director and
acting as the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as
a member of the Compensation and Nomination Committee
at JA Solar Holdings, Co. Ltd., a NASDAQ-listed company
(NASDAQ: JASQO) and an Independent Director, the Chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of the Compensation
Committee of ATA Inc., a NASDAQ-listed company (NASDAQG:
ATAI). Ms. Ni is also an Independent Director at KongZhong
Corporation, a NASDAQ-listed company (NASDAQ: KONG).
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Mr. ONG Ka Lueng, Peter

IXRERE

Mr. ONG Ka Lueng, Peter, aged 50, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Ong holds a Master
of Science Degree and a Bachelor of Science Degree major
in Electrical Engineering from Columbia University (New York
City). He is acting as the Responsible Officer (Types 1 and
2) of Licensed Corporation for Alpha Securities Company
Limited and Alpha Futures Company Limited respectively
under the registration of Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong. Mr. Ong joined the Company in September
2010.

Mr. Ong awarded the BBS, Bronze Bauhinia Star by the
Government of the Hong Kong SAR in 2008. Mr. Ong served
on the board of The Tung Wah Group of Hospitals from 1998
to 2008 and took the chair of the board from 2007 to
2008. Mr. Ong also joined the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
advisory board from 2008 to 20089. Mr. Ong served on
the hospital governing committee of the Tung Wah Group
of Hospitals from 2002 to 2013. He is also a Founding
Member and Chairman of the Green Investment Promotion
Association.
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Dr. LIU Yun, John

g roEt

Dr. LIU Yun, John, aged 51, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company with effect from
25 March 2014. He has been and is currently the Chief
Business Officer of Qihoo 360 Technology Co. Ltd. since
2014. Prior to that, he held senior paositions in various
renowned companies in the communication or networking
or software arena as follows: Corporate Vice President and
Head of Greater China of Google Inc. from 2008-2013;
Chief Executive Officer, China Operations of SK Telecom Co.,
Ltd. from 2002-2007; General Manager, Greater China of
FreeMarkets Inc. from 2000-2002; Chief Executive Officer,
China Operations of SITA Communication from 1999-2000;
General Manager, Telecommunication Group of The Lion
Group from 1997-1999 and Country Director, Greater China
of Singapore Telecommunications Limited from 1994-1997.
Dr. Liu currently is an Independent Non-executive Director of
ARM Holdings Plc. (listed on The London Stock Exchange).

Dr. Liu graduated from Beijing Normal University with a
Bachelor's Degree in Mathematics in 1983 and obtained
his Ph.D in Telecommunications Network Management from
Technical University of Denmark in 1997. In 2011, Dr. Liu
undertook a Senior Executive Program of Harvard Business
Schooaol.
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Ms. YAN Xiaoyan
ALt

Ms. YAN Xiaoyan, aged 63, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company with effect from
27 May 2014. She is currently the Chairperson of Bank
of Beijing Consumer Finance Company. She is also an
Advisor to The People’s Government of Beijing Municipality, a
President of the 6th Executive Committee of Beijing Banking
Association, a Vice President of the Listed Companies
Association of Beijing, the Assistant Secretary General of
the China Volunteer Service Federation and the Vice Director
General and Secretary General of the China Volunteer Service
Foundation. Ms. Yan has served in the financial sector for
about 40 years. She has taken up senior positions at The
People’s Bank of China and Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China and served as a Director and a Vice President
of Bank of Beijing (listed on The Shanghai Stock Exchange)
since 1996 and appointed as the President and the Vice
Chairperson since 2002 and 2010 respectively. Ms. Yan is
a female financial entrepreneur with outstanding acumen and
leadership rarely seen in the banking sector.

Ms. Yan is a senior economist, holding a Master’'s Degree
in Economics from Southwestern University of Finance and
Economics and a Master’s Degree in Management from
Xiamen University. She is a tutor to graduate students
and visiting professor at the Central University of Finance
and Economics, a school-level part-time professor at Xian
Jiaotong University and an instructor at the post-doctorate
research station of Bank of Beijing.
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Mr. WONG Chi Keung

FTEBEE

Mr. WONG Chi Keung, aged 48, is the Company Secretary
of the Company. Mr. Wong graduated from The University of
Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences and
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wong has over 25
years of experience in financial management and corporate
administration. He is mainly responsible for the financial
reporting and listing issues of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERRSE

The Group is committed to promote the highest standards
of corporate governance so as to enhance its transparency,
accountability and corporate value to the shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles, code provisions and certain recommended
best practices set out in the “Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report” (the “Code”) and
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

During the year ended 31 December 2014 (the “Reporting
Period”), the Company has complied with the code provisions
set out in the Code throughout the Reporting Period,
except the following deviations from certain code provisions
with considered reasons as given below. Nevertheless, the
Company publishes quarterly financial results of the Group
by way of announcement which exceeds the code provisions
set out in the Code. However, the Company does not
publish and distribute report for quarterly financial results
of the Group as the Board is of the view that publication of
quarterly financial reports does not bring significant benefits
to shareholders, but at the cost of their own.

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election.

All of the Non-executive Directors of the Company were not
appointed for any specific term. Since all Directors (save for
the Chairman of the Board or the Managing Director) are
subject to retirement by rotation at each annual general
meeting in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-Laws”) and shall be eligible for re-election. The Board
considers that the retirement of Directors by rotation at
each annual general meeting in accordance with the Bye-
Laws has given the shareholders of the Company the right
to approve the continuation of the service of the Directors.

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Digital China Holdings Limited 2014 Annual Report
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Under the Bye-Laws, at each annual general meeting one-
third of the Directors for the time being or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest to one-
third shall retire from office, the Chairman of the Board or
the Managing Director shall not, whilst holding such office, be
subject to retirement by rotation. Therefore, Mr. GUO Wei,
the Chairman of the Board, shall not be subject to retirement
by rotation. Given the existing number of Directors of the
Company, not less than one third of the Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting, by
which each Director (other than the Chairman of the Board)
will retire by rotation once every three years at the minimum.

Code Provision A.5.1 stipulates that company should
establish a nomination committee which is chaired by the
chairman of the board or an independent non-executive
director and comprises a majority of independent non-
executive directors.

The Company does not establish a Nomination Committee
at present. The Company considers that the setting up of a
Nomination Committee may not be necessary as the Board
has the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as
addition to the Board according to the Bye-Laws, therefore,
the Board has been able to assume the responsibilities of
a Nomination Committee. The Board will identify and assess
whether the candidate has the balanced composition of skills
and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
businesses of the Company and suitably qualified to become
board members.

Code Provision D.1.4 stipulates that directors should
clearly understand delegation arrangements in place.
Company should have formal letters of appointment for
directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment.

The Company has not entered into any written letters
of appointment with its Non-executive Director or any
Independent Non-executive Directors. However, the Board
recognizes that (i) the relevant Directors have already been
subject to the laws and regulations applicable to directors
of a company listed on the Stock Exchange, including the
Listing Rules as well as the fiduciary duties to act in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders; (ii) all
of them are well established in their professions and have
held directorships in other listed companies; and (iii) the
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current arrangement has been adopted by the Company for
years and has proved to be effective. Therefore, the Board
considers that the relevant Directors are able to carry out
their duties in a responsible and effective manner under the
current arrangement.

MIODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its
code of conduct for Directors’ securities transactions. Having
made specific enquiry with the Directors, all of the Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code throughout the Reporting
Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Board comprised
nine Directors, including three Executive Directors, one
Non-executive Director and five Independent Non-executive
Directors. During the Reporting Period, two additional
Independent Non-executive Directors were appointed
following the resignation of an Independent Non-executive
Director. To the best knowledge of the Company, the
Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out under the
heading “Directors and Company Secretary” on pages 34 to
43 of this annual report.

The Board takes responsibility for the formulation of the
overall strategy and the leadership and control of the Group
such as the Group’s long term objectives and strategies,
the approval of the Group’s corporate and capital structure,
financial reporting and controls, internal controls and
risk management, material contracts, communication
with the shareholders, the Board membership and other
appointments, remuneration of Directors and other key
senior management, delegation of authority to Board
committees and corporate governance matters.
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During the Reporting Period, one general meeting was held
and the Board held four regular meetings at approximately
quarterly intervals where the Directors attended the
Board meetings either in person or by means of electronic
communication.

The Board is empowered under the Bye-Laws to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or
as an addition to the Board. Only the qualified candidates
will be proposed to the Board for consideration and the
selection criteria are mainly based on the assessment of
their professional qualifications, experience and their possible
contribution to the Group.

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed five Independent Non-executive
Directors, one of whom has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all the Independent Non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers that they are independent.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Group are segregated, which are held by Mr. GUO Wei
and Mr. LIN Yang respectively. Mr. GUO is responsible for
the strategic development and management of the Group
whereas Mr. LIN is responsible for the overall business
management of the Group.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 with specific
written terms of reference. The Audit Committee comprises
three members and all of them are Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Audit Committee is currently
chaired by Mr. WONG Man Chung, Francis (who possesses
the appropriate professional qualification or accounting or
related financial management expertise), Ms. NI Hong (Hope)
and Mr. ONG Ka Lueng, Peter as members.
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The

latest Terms of Reference for Audit Committee is

available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The Audit Committee is responsible for, among others, the
following:

monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of
the Group;

reviewing the Group’s financial controls, internal
controls and risk management systems;

reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies
and practices;

reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal audit function and ensuring co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors;
and

performing the Group’s corporate governance function
delegated by the Board.

Under the Terms of Reference for Audit Committee now in
place, the Audit Committee has been delegated by the Board
to perform the following corporate governance function:

Digital China Holdings Limited

to develop and review the Company’'s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board,;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and

the disclosure in this Report as set out under Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules.
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held four
regular meetings at approximately quarterly intervals where
the members attended either in person or by means of
electronic communication.

For the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee has reviewed
with senior management and the Auditors of the Company
their respective audit findings, the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group, legal and regulatory
compliance, and discussed auditing, internal control, risk
management and financial reporting matters. The Board has,
through the Audit Committee, conducted regular reviews on
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group
and discussed matters related to corporate governance
function during the Reporting Period.

The Audit Committee has no disagreement with the Board
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
the Auditors of the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 31
August 2006 with specific written terms of reference. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three members with
majority being Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee is currently chaired by Mr. ONG Ka
Lueng, Peter, an Independent Non-executive Director, with
Mr. Andrew Y. YAN, a Non-executive Director and Mr. WONG
Man Chung, Francis, an Independent Non-executive Director
as members.

The latest Terms of Reference for Remuneration Committee
is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for,
others, the following:

among

i. making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors’
and senior management’s remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy; and

il. making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management, which includes benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments and on the
remuneration of Non-executive Director.
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During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee RBEHAA - HWEESRITREH -
held one meeting where the members attended either in KEHR G AR MEFRATALFE
person or by means of electronic communication to review K@ A RRAIERHOEE -

the remuneration of the Chairman of the Company.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments for the Reporting Period ERER EFTWe o FHERERY
are set out in note 8 to the financial statements. W EMIFES -

DIRECTOR'S ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT EXEHE &L
MEETINGS

The attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings, NREHN SESERESS B
Audit Committee Meetings, Remuneration Committee Zeg FTHZESRRRBFREZ
Meeting and general meeting during the Reporting Period SEREA T

are set out below:

s

Board members Committee members Number of meetings attended/held
EEERE EJ-R-9:4- HE/BTEBERE
Annual
Audit Remuneration Board Audit Remuneration General
Committee Committee Meeting Committee Committee Meeting
RRBF
EREEE FHMEEE EEE EREES FHEES g
Executive Directors HITES
GUO Wei (Chairman) BE(EE) — — 4/4 N/A N/A 1/1
&R i@ A
LIN Yang (Chief Executive w5 (EE#HTE) — — 4/4 N/A N/A 0/1
Officer) Ti#E A T iE A
YAN Guorong (President) B R & () — - a4/4 N/A N/A 0/1
5 A T3 A
Non-executive Director FHITES
Andrew Y. YAN ) %k — Member 1/4 N/A 1/1 01
K8 i@ R

Independent Non-executive BYEHITESE

Directors

WONG Man Chung Francis BEXR(R-ZE—IF Chairman Member 4/4 a4/4 1/1 1/1
(appointed as Chairman of AAZFANBEZHE S [g=|
Audit Committee on REREREEERE)
26 May 2014)

NI Hong (Hope) {7 4T Member — 3/4 3/4 N/A 1/1

K& i@ A

ONG Ka Lueng, Peter ERER-_FE—HF Member Chairman a4/4 2/4 1/1 1/1
(appointed as member of A=+ HAEZF K& *E
Audit Committee on REREZEESHKE)
25 March 2014)

LIU Yun, John Bn(R=—F—mF=H — — 3/3 N/A N/A /1
(appointed as director on T+ AAEZTE (Note 1) ~iE A i@ A
25 March 2014) EF) (Bt et1)

YAN Xiaoyan BERR-_FE—F — — 2/2 N/A N/A  N/AAjE A
(appointed as director on AR t+HEZEF (Note 1) E R @A (Note 1)
27 May 2014) REFE) (Hta1) (Hta1)
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Notes:

1. As both Dr. LIU Yun, John and Ms. YAN Xiaoyan were appointed part
way during the Reporting Period, their attendances were stated by
reference to the number of the Board Meetings and general meeting
held during their tenure.

2. Mr. HU Zhaoguang resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director
and Chairman of Audit Committee of the Company on 26 May 2014.
Mr. Hu’'s attendance at the respective meetings during the Reporting
Period and by reference to the number of the relevant meetings
held during his tenure were as follows: Board Meeting (1/1), Audit
Committee Meeting (1/1) and Annual General Meeting (0/1).

DIRECTOR INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Newly appointed Directors will receive comprehensive
induction on appointment to ensure understanding of the
directors’ responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company also organizes and
arranges seminars for and/or provides relevant reading
materials to Directors to help ensure they are apprised of
the roles, functions and duties of being a director of a listed
company and the development of their knowledge on the
regulatory updates whenever necessary or appropriate.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has provided
training materials for the then Directors as set out in the
section headed “Directors and Company Secretary” to keep
them abreast of the latest development of legal, regulatory
and corporate governance. The Company has received the
records of training from all Directors.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company is committed to promoting diversity among
the Board and has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Palicy”) effective on 20 August 2013. The
Board Diversity Policy outlines the Board’'s commitment to
fostering a corporate culture that embraces diversity and,
in particular, focuses on its compaosition.
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The Company recognizing and embracing the benefits of
having a diverse Board values increasing diversity at Board
level which is perceived to be an essential element in
achieving a sustainable and balanced development of the
Company. In determining the Board composition that best
suits the Company, a wide spectrum of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, ethnicity and cultural background,
skills, regional and industry experience, professional
experience, length of service and other qualities of directors
will be considered. All Board appointments shall be made on
the basis of meritocracy and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the diversity of the
Board is shown in the following graphic illustrations. Out
of the nine Directors comprising the Board, two of them
are women while six are either Non-executive Director or
Independent Non-executive Directors, thereby promoting
critical review and control of the management process.
The Board is also characterised by significant diversity,
whether considered in terms of age, cultural and educational
background, professional expertise and skills. The Board
endeavours to steer forward and ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of aspects
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.

Gender

78%

Male Directors
m Female Directors

Executive Directors
Non-executive Director
® Independent Non-executive Directors
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REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

For the Reporting Period, remuneration to Auditors of
the Company was approximately HK$5,090,000 for audit
services and approximately HK$910,000 for non-audit
services (HK$450,000 on agreed-upon procedures on
quarterly/interim results, HK$250,000 on tax retainer
service and HK$210,000 on review relating to the financial
statements of offering and issuance of Taiwan Depositary
Receipts).

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board should ensure that the internal control of
the Group is solid, sound, effective, so as to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.

A well-designed internal control system is very important
to the protection of the Group’'s assets, the reliability of
its financial statements, and its compliance with legislation
and rules. As such, the Group is committed to establishing
and maintaining a sound internal control system to provide
reasonable, though not absolute, assurance against any
serious misrepresentation or loss, and to manage, though
not eliminate, any risk of serious mistakes regarding the
operation system and the objectives of the Group. The
Board also perceives its overall responsibility for the internal

control, financial control and risk management, and will
review its effectiveness from time to time.
The Group has an Internal Audit Department, which is

responsible for the internal audit of the Group, independent
assessment of risks, and internal control procedures and
system, and reports its findings, with recommendations, to
the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.

The Internal Audit Department will assess the risks to which
the Group is exposed, and formulate an audit plan on that
basis annually, so as to ensure that the internal audit covers
all areas of high risks. The audit plan will be submitted to
the Audit Committee for approval. The scope of audit review
is determined based on the risk assessment results. Special
reviews will be conducted on matters which are of concern
to the management or the Audit Committee.
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The Board establishes and maintains a good internal control
system through the following principal procedures:

(1) Establishing a reasonable and effective organisation
structure with clear functions, responsibilities and
authority;

(2) Laying down stringent procedures for budget
preparation and budget management; formulating
business plans and financial budgets annually; rationally
adjusting the organisation structure based on business
planning; ensuring the effective operation of the
organisation; reviewing the implementation of budgets
and making reasonable adjustment based on the latest
conditions;

(3) The Internal Audit Department — independently assessing
the comprehensibility and effectiveness of the monitoring
of principal business, reporting its principal findings, with
recommendations, to the Audit Committee on a quarterly
basis; and

(4) The Auditors — making a “Management Proposal” in
its audit of annual results, recommending ways to
address some internal management areas which are
correspondingly weak; the management making serious
reviews, and making and submitting improvement
proposals to the Audit Committee.

For the Reporting Period, the Internal Audit Department
adopted a risk-based methodology to focus on and monitor
principal workflow, and reported the internal audit results
to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. Through the
Audit Committee, the Board reviewed the effectiveness
of the internal control system of the Group. The internal
contral system covers all important matters to be monitored,
including finance, operation and compliance matters, risk
management functions as well as the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group on a going concern basis in
accordance with the statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards.

Digital China Holdings Limited 2014 Annual Report
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The statement of the Auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on
pages 68 to 69 of this annual report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is committed to maintaining an on-going dialogue
with Shareholders and the investment community.

One of the principal channels of communication with the
Shareholders of the Company is the Annual General Meeting
and all corporate communications of the Company, including
but not limited to interim reports, annual reports, notices
of meeting, announcements, circulars and other relevant
Company’'s information are available on the Company’s
website (www.digitalchina.com.hk].

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication
Policy to handle enquiries put to the Board.

The Company believes that communicating with Shareholders
through its website is an efficient way of delivering
information in a timely and convenient manner. Information
on the Company’s website will be continuously reviewed
and updated to ensure that information is current, or
appropriately dated and archived.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company recognises the rights of Shareholders and
encourages Shareholders to participate in general meetings
or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for
and on their behalf if they are unable to attend the meeting.
The general meeting provides an important opportunity
for Shareholders to express their view to the Board and
management and to exercise Shareholders’ rights. Under
the Bye-Laws, Shareholders have the rights to convene a
special general meeting and put forward agenda items for
consideration by Shareholders. The latest Bye-Laws has been
uploaded onto the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange respectively.

Shareholders are encouraged to use their attendance
at meetings to ask questions about or comment on the
results, operations, strategy, corporate governance and/or
management of the Group. The Board members, in particular,
either the Chairmen or members of the Board committees,
appropriate management executive, external auditors and
legal advisers shall be available at general meetings to
answer questions from Shareholders.
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Report of the Directors

EEERE

The Directors of the Company have pleasure in presenting
their report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
principal subsidiaries are principally engaged in the sale and
distribution of general information technology products and
systems products, and provision of supply chain services and
information technology services.

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31
December 2014 are set out in note 19 to the financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year ended 31
December 2014.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 and the state of affairs at that date of the Company
and the Group are set out in the financial statements on
pages 70 to 262 of this annual report.

The Directors of the Company recommend the payment of
a final dividend of 20.00 HK cents (31 December 2013:
17.80 HK cents) per share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2014 to shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 4 June 2015.
This recommendation has been incorporated in the financial
statements as an allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the consolidated and company statements
of financial position respectively.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 266 of this annual report.
The five-year financial summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group and the Company during the year ended 31
December 2014 are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2014 are set
out in note 15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements, together with the reasons therefor,
in the share capital of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2014 are set out in note 33 to the financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2014 are
set out in note 35(b) to the financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity set out on pages
76 and 77 of this annual report, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Act of Bermuda, amounted to HK$1,223,870,000, of which
HK$214,454,000 has been proposed as a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2014. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$2,080,433,000, may be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda although there are no
restrictions against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2014 and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. GUO Wei (Chairman)
Mr. LIN Yang (Chief Executive Officer]
Mr. YAN Guorong (President]

Mr. Andrew Y. YAN

Mr. WONG Man Chung, Francis
Ms. NI Hong (Hope)

Mr. ONG Ka Lueng, Peter

Dr. LIU Yun, John (Note 1)

Ms. YAN Xiaoyan (Note 2]

Mr. HU Zhaoguang (Note 3]

Notes:

1. Dr. LIU Yun, John was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from 25 March 2014.

2. Ms. YAN Xiaoyan was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from 27 May 2014.

3. Mr. HU Zhaoguang resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company with effect from 26 May 2014.

In accordance with Bye-Law 98 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. YAN
Guorong, Mr. Andrew Y. YAN and Ms. NI Hong (Hope] will
retire from office by rotation. In accordance with Bye-Law
102(B) of the Bye-Laws, Ms. YAN Xiaoyan who was appointed
as a director with effect from 27 May 2014 will hold office
until the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
All of them being eligible will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

In addition, for the purpose of complying Code Provision
A.4.3 of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, Mr. WONG Man
Chung, Francis who will serve as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company for more than 9 years in
the ensuing year, will also retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-
election. The reasons why the Board believes Mr. WONG is
still independent and shall be re-elected were included in the
papers to shareholders accompanying the resolution for his
re-election.
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DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1)
LISTING RULES

INFORMATION
OF THE

Changes in the information of Directors required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are set

out below:

Name of Director

Details of Changes

Mr. GUO Wei

Mr. Andrew Y.
YAN

Ms. NI Hong
(Hope)

Dr. LIU Yun, John

Ms. YAN Xiaoyan

Fixed emolument was adjusted from
RMB4 million to RMBEB million

Resigned as an Independent Non-
executive Director of Fosun
International Limited (listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange)
with effect from 26 September 2014

Resigned as a Director of Acorn
International, Inc. (listed on The New
York Stock Exchange) with effect from
31 December 2014

Appointed as an Independent Director
of BlueFocus Communication Group
Co., Ltd. (listed on the ChiNext on The
Shenzhen Stock Exchange) with effect
from 27 March 2014

Appointed as an Executive Director
of Cogobuy Group (listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange] with
effect from 1 March 2015

Appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of ARM Holdings
Plc. (listed on The London Stock
Exchange) with effect from 1
December 2014

Appointed as Assistant Secretary
General of the China Volunteer Service
Federation with effect from June
2014

Appointed as Vice Director General
and Secretary General of the China
Volunteer Service Foundation with
effect from October 2014
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Each of the Executive Directors of the Company entered into
a service agreement with the Company which shall continue
in force unless and until terminated by (i) either the Company
or the Director serving on each other of not less than three
months’ notice, or (ii) his retirement as a director without
being re-elected as a Director by the Shareholders of the
Company in an annual general meeting in accordance with
the Bye- Laws, or [(iii) in the event of the Director’s default
under the terms of the said service agreement.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the
Company proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company has a service agreement
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
the statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at 31 December 2014 or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company operates two share option schemes. One of
the share option schemes was adopted on 18 July 2002 (the
“2002 Share Option Scheme”) and the other share option
scheme was adopted on 15 August 2011 (the “2011 Share
Option Scheme”), each with life span of ten years. Details of
movements in the share options during the year ended 31
December 2014 are set out in note 34(a) to the financial
statements.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted share award scheme
(the “RSA Scheme”) on 28 March 2011 for the purpose of
rewarding and motivating, among others, Directors (including
executive and non-executive) and employees of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Participants”) with the shares of
the Company. Details of the RSA Scheme are set out in note
34(b) to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of
each Director and chief executive of the Company and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO") which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
the Directors and chief executive were taken or deemed to
have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required to be and are recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers adopted by the
Company (the “Model Code”) were as follows:
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Approximate
Percentage

Number of of Aggregate

Personal Corporate Outstanding Total Interests (%)

Name of Director Capacity Interests Interests Share Options (Note 1) (Note 7]

hEHER

ZBABESH

AT Z By (%)

EEEB 54 1B A RE & AEER BRE#A (Kt at1) (K1 :£7)

Mr. GUO Wei Beneficial owner and 2,170,600 69,414,286 960,000 72,544,886 6.63
AL E interests of a controlled (Note 2) (Note 3)

corporation

EnBEBEARTEERD 2R (Kt ata) (Kt :t3)

Mr. Andrew Y. Interests of a controlled — 119,111,744 — 119,111,744 10.92

YAN corporation (Note 4)
P ¢ 5 2 FHAE 2 WS (W #£4)

Mr. LIN Yang Beneficial owner 388,300 — 1,000,000 1,389,300 013
N BEm#EAA (Note 5)
(1 :t5)

Mr. YAN Guorong Beneficial owner 383,300 — 783,000 1,176,300 01
EETE P EmEAA (Note 6)
(K1 #6)
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Notes:

Digital China Holdings Limited

All of the interests disclosed herein represent long position in the
shares of the Company.

These 69,414,286 shares of the Company were beneficially held by
Kosalaki Investments Limited (“KIL’), of which Mr. GUO Wei is the
controlling shareholder and also a director of KIL, therefore, Mr. GUO
Wei was deemed to be interested in such shares in which KIL was
interested.

These 860,000 share options held by Mr. GUO Wei were granted
on 21 May 2008. These share options are exercisable from 21 May
2009 to 20 May 2016 at an exercise price of HK$5.89 per share
for subscription of ordinary shares of the Company.

These 118,111,744 shares of the Company were beneficially held by
Sparkling Investment (BVI) Limited (“SIBL"), which is wholly-owned by
SAIF Partners |ll L.P.. SAIF Partners Il L.P. is controlled by SAIF Il GP,
L.P., and SAIF Illl GP, L.P. is indirectly controlled by Mr. Andrew Y. YAN
through SAIF lll GP Capital Ltd., therefore, Mr. Andrew Y. YAN was
deemed to be interested in such shares in which SIBL was interested.

These 1,000,000 share options held by Mr. LIN Yang were granted
on 21 May 2008. These share options are exercisable from 21 May
2009 to 20 May 2016 at an exercise price of HK$5.89 per share
for subscription of ordinary shares of the Company.

Out of these 793,000 share options in aggregate held by Mr. YAN
Guorong,

i 125,000 share options were granted on 21 May 2008.
These share options are exercisable from 21 May 2008 to
20 May 2016 at an exercise price of HK$5.89 per share for
subscription of ordinary shares of the Company; and

ii. 668,000 share options were granted on 11 January 2011.
These share options are exercisable from 11 January 2012 to
10 January 2019 at an exercise price of HK$15.04 per share
for subscription of ordinary shares of the Company.

The approximate percentage of interests is based on the aggregate
nominal value of the shares/underlying shares comprising the
interests held as a percentage of the aggregate nominal value of all
the issued share capital of the Company of the same class immediately
after the relevant event and as recorded in the register maintained
under Section 352 of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2014, none of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company or their
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
the directors and chief executive were taken or deemed to
have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2014, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, the following persons, not being a Director or
chief executive of the Company, had the following interests
and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which were required to be disclosed to the
Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or required to be recorded in the register required to
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be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:

Approximate
Percentage of

Aggregate Interests

Number of Shares (%)

Name Capacity (Note 1) (Note 9)

HEHRERZ

RHEHE BB 2 (%)

=18 514 (Hfat1) (K1 73)

Kosalaki Investments Limited Beneficial owner 69,414,286 6.35

(Note 2) (Kiit2) EnEAA

Sparkling Investment (BVI) Beneficial owner 119,111,744 10.92
Limited BEmBEEA (Note 3] (f:£3)

SAIF Il GP Capital Ltd. Interests of a controlled 119,111,744 10.92

JPMorgan Chase & Co.

Templeton Global Advisors
Limited

Allianz SE

International Value Advisers,
LLC

Legend Holdings Corporation

BB AR AR D B IR A7)
(Note 7) (f1#£7)
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Interests of controlled
corporations
RiEEE R

Investment manager
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Beneficial owner/Interests of
a controlled corporation
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(Note 3) (f1#3)

Long Position &

Long Position &f&

72,409,154 6.62
Short Position &X7/&  Short Position % &
1,139,347 0.10
Lending Pool Lending Pool
A4 E AR 19 A4 H A AR 19
69,005,903 6.30
91,407,250 8.36
(Note 4) (B :#4)
87,929,000 8.04
(Note 5] (17 :#5)
87,684,000 8.02
(Note 6) (/1 i£6)
35,013,077/ 5.15
21,368,642

(Note 8) (f1#8)



Notes:

All of the interests disclosed herein represent long position in the
shares of the Company unless otherwise specified.

KIL is controlled by Mr. GUO Wei who is a director of the Company
and KIL.

These 118,111,744 shares of the Company were beneficially held by
SIBL, which is wholly-owned by SAIF Partners Il L.P.. SAIF Partners llI
L.P. is controlled by SAIF Ill GP, L.P., and SAIF Il GP, L.P. is indirectly
controlled by Mr. Andrew Y. YAN through SAIF Il GP Capital Ltd.,
therefore, Mr. Andrew Y. YAN was deemed to be interested in such
shares in which SIBL was interested.

Templeton Global Advisors Limited was interested in an aggregate of
91,407,250 shares by virtue of the SFO. Those interests were held
in the capacity of investment manager.

Out of these 87,928,000 shares in aggregate, 85,225,000 shares
were held by RCM Asia Pacific Ltd., 2,414,000 shares by Allianz Global
Investors Taiwan Ltd., 185,000 shares by Allianz Global Investors
Europe GmbH, and 105,000 shares by Allianz Global Investors Fund
Management LLC. All of the aforementioned companies were indirectly
controlled by Allianz SE.

International Value Advisers, LLC was interested in an aggregate of
87,684,000 shares by virtue of the SFO. Those interests were held
in the capacity of investment manager.

The English name is direct transliteration of its Chinese registered
name.

These 21,368,642 shares of the Company were held by Right Lane
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary and a controlled corporation
of Legend Holdings Corporation, and therefore Legend Holdings
Corporation was deemed to be interested in such shares by virtue of
the SFO.

The approximate percentage of interests is based on the aggregate
nominal value of the shares/underlying shares comprising the
interests held as a percentage of the aggregate nominal value of all
the issued share capital of the Company of the same class immediately
after the relevant event and as recorded in the register maintained
under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2014, the
Company had not been notified by any persons who had
interests or short positions in shares or underlying shares
of the Company which were required to be disclosed to the
Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group made
donation of HK$3,198,000 (for the nine months ended 31
December 2013: HK$10,159,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate percentage of turnover attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers was less than 30% (for the
nine months ended 31 December 2013: less than 30%) of
the Group’s total turnover for the year ended 31 December
2014.

The aggregate percentage of purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers was approximately 37% (for
the nine months ended 31 December 2013: approximately
22%) of the Group’s total purchases and the percentage
of purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
was approximately 10% (for the nine months ended 31
December 2013: approximately 6%) for the year ended 31
December 2014.

None of the directors, any of their associates or
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in the Group’s major customers
or suppliers noted above.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE

COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2014, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014 of the Group were audited by Ernst &
Young.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float during the year ended
31 December 2014 and up to the date of this report as
required under the Listing Rules.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
REEES

Ejf
GUO Wei 5
Chairman ZJZ

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015
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1% B3 B
AEBBE-T-MEL-A=+—8
B2 AR RRE B A E AT
EHHER -

REATBFIRE
REARAREAMAR  URESE
ENRMBERN  ARARBE_T—
mE+=A=+—BIEFEHERNRE
ERREEAEDEFETRUERLT
MEHABHBRE -

WINBBEZERARAT | 2014F R

67



68

Independent Auditors’ Report

18 M % BUA R

EYzx

To the shareholders of Digital China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Digital China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 70
to 262, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December
2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. WWe do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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Independent Auditors’ Report & 37 #% £ Al ) &

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consoclidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
HEBEHBER

Year ended 31 December 2014 &2 T —MNE+-A=+—HItFE

V(=1 Gl B Nine months ended

31 December 31 December
2014 2013
B=E #H=
—E—0OF —ZE—=
+=BA=+—H +=ZA=+—H
IEFE 1ELE A
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
g3 BET T BT T
REVENUE I'N 5 68,342,827 52,264,534
Cost of sales Fiz A= 00N (63,525,444) (48,885,928)
Gross profit E 4,817,383 3,378,606
Other income and gains R N 5 575,890 872,083
Selling and distribution HERDIHEHR
expenses (2,754,969) (2,041,846)
Administrative expenses THE R (512,633) (366,297)
Listing expense relating RlEHEEZ £
to the Absorption and mE A
Merger 19 — (1,216,133)
Other expenses, net HiE R TR (820,247) (806,162)
Finance costs B & A 7 (270,517) (178,741)
Share of profits and JEME T A RR 2%
losses of: & EE
Joint ventures e 34,626 (4,893)
Associates RN 71,973 72,004
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE BRB AR
TAX (F#'|) 6 1,141,506 (291,399)
Income tax expense FrisfiE A 10 (239,256) (171,245)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE KEE BB
YEAR/PERIOD A (BR) (462,644)
Attributable to: EEBR
Equity holders of the [SYNCINEL 3
parent 1 700,953 84,103
Non-controlling interests e R 201,297 (546,747)
(462,644)

7 0 Digital China Holdings Limited | 2014 Annual Report



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss % & 18 3 3%

Year ended 31 December 2014 &2 - T —MNE+-A=+—RHILEE

V(=1 =B Nine months ended
31 December 31 December

2014 2013
B= S

—F-DNF —F—=

t=A=+-8 +t=—A=+—8©

Ik FE IE N8 A
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
it BT BT

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

Basic

BAREBERRE
EERER

13
65.37 HK centsie Il WAYA R QR R

Diluted

65.31 HK centsie 1l AR SRR

Details of the dividend payable and proposed for the year — AFE ZEMRE REIRR S ZF1EH

are disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.

T L B 75 R 5% Y E2
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEHEWER

Year ended 31 December 2014 &2 T —MNE+-A=+—HItFE

Year ended
31 December
2014
BZE
—E-F
t=A=+—-H
LFE
Note HK$’'000
bt aF BT
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR/ ZAFE /HERF ~
PERIOD (E#)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Htt2mEkz
INCOME/(LOSS) (B8]
Other comprehensive income/ HigngeEHoEEE
(loss) to be reclassified to w2 EMmEmkES,
profit or loss in subsequent (&) :
periods:
Available-for-sale investments: AHEHEZRE:
Changes in fair value NEEBEZD (36,102)
Reclassification adjustments BREREEERR Y
for losses included in the ENOBERAE
consolidated statement of & 18
profit or loss
— impairment loss — REEE B 69,477
— loss on disposal — HEEE 33,810
67,185
Exchange differences on BINEBBREAZER
translation of foreign R

operations

Share of other comprehensive
income of an associate

FEIGEE & ARl Bl
R &

(41,165)

(5,601)

Net other comprehensive income
to be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods

HERAEREFIEE
BmzHtbE2m
U &5 % B8

Digital China Holdings Limited |

2014 Annual Report

Nine months
ended

31 December
2013

HE
—E—=F
+=-A=+—8H
LEAEA
HK$’000

BT

(462,644)

(111,983)

74,592
867

(36.524)

88,397

51,873




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #r

Year ended 31 December 2014 & & —

ME+=A

aEEENERE
=t—BLEFE

Nine months

Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
BZE HE
—F-NF —E—=F
T=A=1—F [
IEFE LEAEA
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
k=2 BT T BT T
Other comprehensive income/ HiE T rgeEfoEs
(loss) not to be reclassified to EmEME2EK
profit or loss in subsequent @/ (E18)
periods:
Gain on property revaluation %%f?ﬁfﬁ%* 5,239 —
Income tax effect st e (1,310) —
Net other comprehensive income EE&TAlgEEHHDIEE
not to be reclassified to profit B M Emik
or loss in subsequent periods w=OFE —
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE BHBRBENEREE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR/ HEHE4aZEmK S
PERIOD, NET OF TAX 24,348 51,873
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE rEE/HEEAE
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE W, (FHB)BE
YEAR/PERIOD 926,598 (410,771)
Attributable to: EEN:
Equity holders of the parent BARRE#E S 11 710,302 144,167
Non-controlling interests JEVE IR = 216,296 (554,938)
(410,771)
NSRS ZERAR AT | 20145 K
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AP BRI R

31 December 2014 —Z—F+—-_A=+—H

31 December

31 December

2014 2013
—E-mF —F—=
TS A=1—H Syl
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 77 BT T 75T T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment WME - BEMRE 14 1,323,438 1,505,445
Investment properties REWME 15 1,744,226 755,383
Prepaid land premiums EN TS 16 139,960 196,498
Goodwill [EES 17 1,274,815 243,670
Other intangible assets Hthm|mELAE 18 65,786 36,566
Investments in joint ventures ReEETEZIRE 21 675,579 163,275
Investments in associates REERAIZIRE 22 1,191,959 1,035,300
Available-for-sale investments AHEECIRE 23 1,916,433 517,500
Finance lease receivables JE U & T & FOIE 7.686 —
Deferred tax assets BIER IR E B 24 192,609 194,916
Total non-current assets BIERDEE 4,648,553
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 25 6,175,416 5,635,678
Properties under development fEEy s 26 562,445 393,562
Trade and bills receivables FEWE ZIRF &
JE W F & 28 9,601,923 11,494,720
Prepayments, deposits and FERHIE - 2Rk
other receivables H b & W 5K IR 3,683,099 3,617,912
Derivative financial instruments  $T4£ & @ T A 29 32,841 113,378
Available-for-sale investments AHEECIRE 23 1,000,000 301,959
Cash and cash equivalents B4 MBS EEBY 30 4119,557 3,894,211
Total current assets BRBEE 25,451,420
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables ERBZRMR R
JEA R AR 31 10,301,179 11,092,793
Other payables and accruals HihEAHIER
FBIREA 4,021,434 3,499,189
Tax payable JE 7 18 359,318 384,241
Interest-bearing bank M ERITER
borrowings 32 7,060,139 3,719,187
Total current liabilities BmrEAasE 18,695,410
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 6,756,010
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HWEERRBEE
LIABILITIES 11,965,702 11,404,563

Digital China Holdings Limited |

2014 Annual Report




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ra AR &

31 December 2014 —Z—F&+—-A=+—H

31 December

31 December

2014 2013
—E—NF —_ET—=
T2 A=+ —H [yl ks
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
B it BT T BT T
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #EERABEE
LIABILITIES 11,965,702 11,404,563
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Interest-bearing bank Mt ERITER
borrowings 32 1,064,848 2,314,853
Deferred income 5 T A 36,679 43,322
Total non-current liabilities LIERBEE 1,101,527 2,358,175
Net assets BETEE 10,864,175 9,046,388
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to equity BARIBRREMLESR
holders of the parent
Issued capital BEITRA 33 109,374 109,374
Reserves B 35(a) 8,276,528 7,426,466
Proposed final dividend HR R HA AR B 12 214,454 190,037
8,600,356 7,725,877
Non-controlling interests FERER 2,263,819 1,320,511
Total equity R 10,864,175 9,046,388
N
Ef & A
GUO Wei 25 LIN Yang # 13
Chairman =+ /& Director &%
NS ERER AR | 20145 3K
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GERDEEHR

Atributable to equity holders of the parent

Year ended 31 December 2014 & EZ —ZT—NF+_-_A=+—HILFE

SRARRER
Available-
Employee for-sale
Share share-based  investment Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued premium Capital ~ Employee compensation revaluation  Reserve fluctuation Retained final controlling
capital account reserve share trust reserve  reserve funds  reserve profits ~ dividend Total  interests Total equity
WRHXE THEEZ
B% B 8 E8Z  REZ EX iy s
it 2EE REEE  MWERR MEER RBEEE  RBEE  REER &3t & 4
Notes HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$OOD  HK$OOO HK$000 HK$000 HK$O00 HKS000  HK$OOD HKSOOO HKHOOD HK$OOD  HK$0OO
BETR  BETR  BMTR  EETR BETR  B¥TR BMTR ERTn  BMTn A%Tn  BETr  EWTR ERTn
At 1 April 2013 109346 2058336 901524  (359.914) 167875  (20428) 370968 309371 3874826 414592 7826498 844636 8671134
Profit/[loss) for the period A HH#H /(5 - - - - - - - - 84103 — 84103 (546747) (462644)
Other comprehensive income/ S Xt 2 E M/
(loss) for the period: (B%)
Available-for-sale investments:
— Changes in fair value - - - - - (97951) - - - - (97951) (14032 (111,983)
— Impairment loss - - - - - 74592 - - - - 74592 - 74592
— Loss on disposal - - - - - 529 - - - - 529 338 867
Exchange differences on

translation of foreign

operations - - - - - - - 82894 - - 82894 5503 88397
Total comprehensive income/ A B2/ (F8)

(loss) for the period 2 - - - - - (22830 - 82894 84,108 — 144187 (554,938) (410771)
Exercise of share options 33 28 2,097 - - (508) - - - - - 1819 - 1819
Share-based compensation 34 - - - - (34,684) - - - - —  (34,684) —  (34,684)
Contribution to an employee

share trust 34(b) - - - (8.983) - - - - - - (9.983) - (9.983)
Disposal of subsidiaries HESHHBAT 37 - - - - - - - - - - - 4529 (4529
Contribution from non- MELAFBRRR

controlling shareholders of 2 H&

3 subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - 18,508 18,508
Acquisition of non-controlling M B2 A5

interests of subsidiaries - - (3129) - - - (175) - - - (3,304) (3,495) (6.799)
Equity transaction relating to R4 G EAZEHR S

the Absorption and Merger 19 - - 216,158 - - - - - - — 218156 1,020,329 1,236485
Final 2012/13 dividend ZF-Z/-ZExRHRE - - - - - - - - — (414592 (41459) - (41459
Proposed final 2013 dividend HE=T-=FRHMR 5 12 - - - - - - - — (190037) 190,037 - - -
Transfer to reserve funds SRZREES - - - - - - 86283 - (86,263) - - - -
At 31 December 2013

108374 2080433* 1114551* (369.897)*  132685* (43256)* 457056* 392,285* 3,682,629 190037 7725877 1,320,511 89,048,388

Digital China Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #r & # @ & &) &

Year ended 31 December 2014 &2 T —NE+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

BAARRES
Available-
Employee for-sale
Share Employee  share-based Asset investment Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued  premium  Capital share compensation revaluation revaluation Reserve fluctuation Retained final controlling
capital  account  reserve trust reserve  reserve  reserve funds  reserve profits  dividend Total interests Total equity
HRBXH ihE
2% Bt ; (-4 |-V BE REZ E} Bk 2R B
RE  EER REEE  HEBR (ERE (ESRE HEEE REBEE REER AERR #i E# f3]
J[Z7Z23 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$O000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
UEgl tTn RMTn EMTn EMTR E¥Tn EBTr RETr A¥Tn E¥Tn EBTr RETr RETn EMTn  RETx
At 1 January 2014 W-%-mE-5-8 2,060,433 114,551 (369,897) 132,685 (43,256) 457,056 392,265 3,682,629 190,037 7,725,877 1,320,511 9,046,388
Profit for the year EEEEF = = = = = = — 700,953 — 700953 201297 902,250
Other comprehensive income/ A5 £ 2 A%/
(loss) for the year: (B8):
Availablefor-sale investments: &4 & 7 &4
— Changes in fair value - LTEEED (17,576) (17576) (18526)  (36,102)
— Impairment loss - HEEE 43,780 43780 25697 69477
— Loss on disposal —HEBE 15,272 150272 18538 33810
Exchange differences on B EBHE L
translation of foreign EXZR
operations (33,104) (33104)  (8,061)
Share of other comprehensive (5B E AT 2 £ 2E
income of an associate ¢ (2,952) (2.952)  (2,649)
Gain on property revaluation, AR EHNFEEE

net of tax 3,929
Total comprehensive income/ A% E2E N/ (F8)

(loss) for the year ag = 3,929 (36,056) 700,953 710302 216296 926,598
Share-based compensation bR 1T 2B & 34 (20,129) - - - (20,129) - (20129)
Vesting of shares under the K ERHKAZ B EHH

restricted share award GERG

scheme 67,440 (77,448) (10,008)

Contribution from non- HWEADFERRR

contraling shareholders of 2%

subsidiaries 409,757 409,757 729,106 1,138,863
Acquisition of non-controlling 4B M B 22 A3 B &

interests of a subsidiary (25,406) — [(25406) (2,094) (27,500)
Final 2013 dividend “E-CERBRE (190,037) (190,037) =
Proposed final 2014 dividend 5E-Z-RERERSE 12 = — [(214,454) 214,454 -

Transfer to reserve funds ~ BEZEEES 119,800 - [118,900) - -
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-ME
+-B=1-8 109,374 2,060,433+ 1,498,902* (302,457)* 35108*  3,929* (1,780)* 576,956* 356,209* 4,049,228* 214,454 8,600,356 2,263,819 10,864,175
@ These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of o ZERBREEERGESMB MR AR 25K

HK$8,276,528,000 (31 December 2013: HK$7,426,466,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

& iR A8 %8,276,528,000T (T —=F

+=R=+—H:/45%7426,466,0007) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEEERER

Year ended 31 December 2014 # &2 —ZT— &+ _-_A=+—HItFE

Nine months

Digital China Holdings Limited | 2014 Annual Report

Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
EE HE
—F—E —E—=F
TZA=1—H gl ls
LEE IEE A
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
&t BEETR BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXKMBEELRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BB AR (B 18) 1,141,506 (291,399)
Adjustments for: 4R R
Finance costs BE KA 7 270,517 178,741
Share of profits and losses of JE1h& & 1 ¥ KB
joint ventures and associates M’“?Z/ﬁﬁﬂ
g (106,599) (67,111)
Interest income MEMKA 5 (87,368) (49,566)
Dividend income from available- AHEEZREZ
for-sale investments A% = 0 A 5 (7,280) (2,683)
Loss on disposal of items of HEME HER
property, plant and equipment Bz EE 6 2,570 7,830
Fair value gains on investment KREME 2 RN
properties BEk = 5 (38,304) (11,709)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & % E B A A
P & 5 — (13,637)
Gain on disposal of a joint RE—H&eE&EHE
venture Z W= 5 (580) —
Gain on partial disposal of the HE— M E QA
equity interest in an associate Hom o= 5 (921) —
Gain on deemed partial disposal %/ 1% % E <
of the equity interest in UNCIE:IEoN -
associates Wz 5 (25,602) (60,025)
Loss on disposal of an associate & — @& QA
Z B 18 6 278 —
Loss on disposal/partial disposal H& #8% H & Al
of an available-for-sale HEEIZREZ
investment &5 18 5] 13,102 1,072
Depreciation e 6 158,191 123,625
Amortisation of prepaid land T+ 30 AH & 8 8
premiums 6 4,375 3,882
Amortisation of other intangible — E b % 2 & B # 8
assets 6 11,445 6,321
Provisions/(reversal of BREFEEE
provisions) for and write-off of (BEREE) &
obsolete inventories Hi1 55 B (23,279) 101,157
Impairment of trade receivables &I & 5 1R Z R E B 36,607 105,258
Impairment of available-for-sale AHEEZRE
investments e 5] 69,477 74,592
Impairment of prepayments and  FE{TFE K& H A
other receivables JE W Sk IR R 1B B 48,518 84,960
Share-based compensation ARR 1D 245 2 B & B (20,129) (34,684)
Listing expenses relating to the WA GHFEE
Absorption and Merger LTER 19 — 1,216,133
1872757



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows %2 &8R4 E%&

Year ended 31 December 2014 & & —

—mE+=A=+—BLFE

Nine months

Increase in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade and
bills receivables

Decrease/(increase) in

FEEM

J‘éuﬁzéi%fpﬁ%’\&ﬁuﬂz
ZER (g

%EHTAIE BerH

prepayments, deposits and other i & JZ 18 /JESZQ/
receivables (38 hn)
Decrease/(increase) in derivative #7442 I AR
financial instruments (35 hn)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and  JE {2 508 3 & &~
bills payables E®gm, Chd)
Increase in other payables and H At JIE < 50T K TR 17
accruals BRALM
Effect of foreign exchange rate RS s EFE
changes, net
Cash generated from operations K232 R &
Interest received B A B
Hong Kong profits tax refunded Eﬁ@%ﬂ% MAFH
Mainland China income tax paid E?}}H;F‘.ﬁﬁ*
UL

Net cash flows from operating
activities

REXVBMERER
£F%

Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013

@E HE

—ZE—g $ :%—E
+=A=+-n [

1E thﬂlﬂ
$000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
(515,620) (154,521)
1,970,569 (1,715,781)
(262,626) 175,501
80,537 (59,867)
(826,910) 775,052
335,722 313,783
15,038 (23,195)
2,243,234 683,729
107,596 64,198
= 7.411
(276,329) (221,044)
2,074,501 534,294
WMNEBIERERAT | 2014F 3K
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Year ended 31 December 2014 & = —

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows &8R4 E8X

Year ended
31 December
2014

éﬁ@
-z
S =

—mE
+—8
EEE
$'000
T

HK$'00
BT

—mHEF+ZA=T—HIEFE

Nine months
ended

31 December
2013

+t=—A=+—8
1= A
HK$'000

BETT

Notes
&t
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZEHNELSKE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, Eﬁ)\%% C B E R
plant and equipment B4
Additions to investment properties K& &% & ¥ %
Additions to properties under RNETEEWE
development
Additions to prepaid land premiums & B+ &
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE - BE &
property, plant and equipment F 2 TS IE
Additions to other intangible assets 7 & H b & & 18
Acquisition of a subsidiary W g — M W}%’D\ﬂ 36
Disposal of subsidiaries HEZHEKEA 37
Proceeds from disposal of BE— FﬁA**/JL\%
investments in a joint venture "EZERIA
Proceeds from disposal of HE— M E AT
investments in an associate KE 2GR

Proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale investments

Dividends received from a joint
venture

Dividends received from
associates

Dividends received from
available-for-sale investments

Investments in joint ventures
Investments in associates

Investments in available-for-sale
investments

Decrease in other receivables

Increase in finance lease
receivables

HE T 2 0
2 Fri8 3R

S TR EY FS 2
p% B

WS B AT 2
5’ 8

WO BT 2 i 45 2 484
28
wAMQ%zaé
RS AR B E
A E Y RE
&

£ 8.0 5108

FE Y B & T B 5RIA
0

(165,447)
(650,443)

(125,584)

839
(21,497)
(207,791)

2,294
1,007
84,104
6,175
8,796

6,552
(505,872)
(82,569)

(2,196,374)
162,238

(7.686)

(45,600])
(150,904)

(80,873)
(9.613)

12,084
(32,278)

166,877

101

2,402
(56,197)
(221,396)

(471,068)

Net cash flows used in investing
activities

Txﬁ/ﬁibﬁﬁﬁﬂ Re

//w =%

(3,691,258)

(872,840)

Digital China Holdings Limited |

2014 Annual Report



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows %2 &8R4 E%&

Year ended 31 December 2014 &2 - T —MNE+-A=+—RHILEE

Nine months

Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
ﬁi H=E
—F—NE :%—:
TZA=1+—H [yt
IEFE JJ:jHIH
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 BET T BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BEZEBHMNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Exercise of share options T8 R IR 33 — 1,619
Vesting of shares under the K X IR il By 19 2% B 51
restricted share award scheme ZREEBIRD (10,008) —
New bank loans FRITER 18,939,013 8,228,741
Repayment of bank loans BEIBTER (16,848,056) (7,711,011)
Interest paid ERA B (270,517) (178,741)
Dividends paid ERRE (190,037) (414,592)
Acquisition of non-controlling e B B BB R R IR IR
interests of subsidiaries s (27,500) (8,799)
Contribution from non-controlling [} /& 2 &) FF 22 A% % 2
shareholders of subsidiaries ZHE 293,465 18,508
Net cash flows from the Absorption WA G H B TGN
and Merger B E 19 — 38,579
Net cash flows from/(used in) BvEEBAE,(FTR) -
financing activities ReREFE 1,886,360 (23.696)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN B&RHESZEYH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS i1 G 2) ® 5 269,603 (362,342)
Cash and cash equivalents at FE/HEOz2HE
beginning of year/period RBRE&EEY 3,894,211 4189,519
Effect of foreign exchange rate EREe s ¥ E TR
changes, net (44,257) 67,034
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS % E "HilEAXzR&
AT END OF YEAR/PERIOD RESZEEY 4,119,557 3,894,211
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF ReRELSEEYR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  #&k 2 #F
Cash and bank balances R & RIB1T 4% 30 3,864,524 3,466,569
Non-pledged time deposits EEATHENR 30 255,033 427,642
Cash and cash equivalents as Wira BB MR R R
stated in the consolidated AR RERMN
statement of financial position HeHRekReE
and the consolidated statement B
of the cash flows 4,119,557 3,894,211

BMMETEZRERRA | 2014F 8 81



Statement of Financial Position
B35 AR R R

31 December 2014 —Z—WF+-H=+—H

31 December 31 December

2014 2013
—ZE-F —F—=
T A=+ —H Pl ks
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
B it BT T BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - MERERE 14 175
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZEKE 19 875,869
Total non-current assets BIETEE E 876,044
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other FEffFUE « L& R HM
receivables JiE U 3R IE 45,652 20,237
Due from subsidiaries =N E Q] 20 5,414,885 3,011,706
Cash and cash equivalents ReREEEEY 30 3,641 2,464
Total current assets BT E)E E 5,464,178 3,034,407
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables and accruals Hfh fE A FRTE R TR R
=93¢ 16,828 17,874
Due to subsidiaries NGRS 20 3,169,122 542,419
Total current liabilities mnEaE 560,293

3,185,950
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 2,278,228 2,474114

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #EERABEE
LIABILITIES 3,126,328 3,350,158

Net assets EEFE 3,126,328 3,350,158

EQUITY FE &

Issued capital BEITRA 33 109,374 109,374
Reserves 15 35(b) 2,802,500 3,050,747
Proposed final dividend HR R HA AR B 12 214,454 190,037

Total equity R 3,126,328 3,350,158

N
GUO Wei & % LIN Yang ##5

Chairman F & Director &%
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3R Fff 5

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Digital China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The head office and principal place of business of
the Company is located at Suite 2008, 20/F., Devon
House, Taikoo Place, 979 King's Road, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) were involved
in the sale and distribution of general information
technology (“IT”) products and systems products, and
the provision of supply chain services and IT services.

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE
Pursuant to the resolution of the board of directors of
the Company dated 19 November 2013, the Company’s
financial year end date had been changed from 31
March to 31 December. The change was to align the
financial year end date of the Company with those
of the principal subsidiaries of the Group in order to
facilitate the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and for the benefit of the
overall development of the Group in the long run.

Accordingly, the comparative amounts presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the
consolidated statement of cash flows and the related
notes covered a nine-month period from 1 April 2013
to 31 December 2013, are not comparable to the
current year’s financial statements which cover a whaole
year from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014.

31 December 2014 — &

1.

2.1

—MmE+—A=t—8
AREH

Digital China Holdings Limited (1%
MBS IZERBRARDTARRF TS
—HREREFMKZZBERA
Al e RARIZEPMER R FEL?
b B 50 2 8 B 2 2 897958
A& 5 E R K E20#22008% -

REAFEAR  RAR KR EKBRF]
(RN EEDREHER D HAE
REMBMRNTDER R RGEM
A R 4 78 i AR 7% I T AR 7% 2 B2 44

ENMBEESHE
REARFEFER-_F—=F+
—ATNABZRZF  ARBZHEK
FEGEHCHA=ZA=1T—"HEX
RTZA=+—RH - ERARAH
BREEEER  HRAKEEZN
BRARMMBFESEER - (£
REAEBHEEVTEHRRERAX
R UREAMNNASEEERNH
B’ o

>

Bt - 2N EEERK G562
HH%  ReERZFHk  Ka
HeneaErbkEEMRFRER=-F
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0
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Digital China Holdings Limited

Notes to Financial Statements B7 7§ 3 2% [

2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“‘HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (‘HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") and accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance relating to the preparation of
financial statements, which for this financial year
and the comparative period continue to be those of
the predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in
accordance with traditional and saving arrangements
for Part 9 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in
sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance.
The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for certain
investment properties, derivative financial instruments
and certain equity investments which have been
measured at fair value as further explained in note
2.5. These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2014.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the parent of the Group to the non-controlling interests,
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income and expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

2014 Annual Report
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Notes to Financial Statements B7 7% 3 2% [

2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described in the accounting policies for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted
for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount
of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets and liabilities.

=B E=AMRBER - TR EAR
B BRAT ZREGIEEE - B
IR A EHIREE) - AIANKE
REHMTHERSDERZRES
Re-RNWBRARMAERERNED
(3 R 28 K47 5148 ) AR I 51| (F 1

NN
S AN
ﬁx% °

HASEEREL —FHHEQAR2E
HAE - BRI AR L RE R (1) 5% BT B R R
ZEEBRRBE)REE  (I)EMA
IE 2 P #E 2n 2 O T (B K (iii) 5T A
SR RFELEZRE RERNEK
REZAFEE  (MEAEREXR
B2 R FEE i) ) B & & &
ABHIRZ BRHEE - WAKE
ERLENHEBEERARE  EAIE
REMZE W SRR Z AR EE
HEOBEF DB LBRIRE R
MENER) - RIZ AR EES E
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Notes to Financial Statements B4 & 3] 2= i =F

31 December 2014 —Z—F+—-_A=+—H

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.3 &:tBEREZEE)

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards
and new interpretation for the first time for the current
year’s financial statements.

AEBIRERNFEPERREFE X
BRAN LA T &8 5T 22 Bl K2 3 AR 4 22 1
ZEBO B HRE LR o

Amendments to HKFRS 10, /nvestment Entities B2 EBUBREE REER
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Digital China Holdings Limited

(2011)

|10 BH
73 & B 125
REBGHERNSE
7H(ZE——%F)

Amendments to HKAS 32  Offsetting Financial BiIzBREGEN HHLBEER
Assets and Financial £325 tHEE
Liabilities
Amendments to HKAS 36  Recoverable Amount Bl BAEGER FLBEEHTK
Disclosures for Non- £36% E#EZ R E
Financial Assets
Amendments to HKAS 39  Novation of Derivatives Bl BREER (fTERIEERE N
and Continuation of £395% EiUE
Hedge Accounting
HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies EEERRBRER HF
BZE9)
— REF215%

Amendment to Definition of Vesting AER=FE-FEE FEFHHEE
HKFRS 2 included in Condition’ ZE—FEHC
Annual Improvements FENENET
2010-2012 Cycle BEEBHBIMEE

Bl E 2%

Amendment to Accounting for Contingent AER=F-FEE ZHFEHHARKE
HKFRS 3 included in Consideration in a “E-CFEBC  HEAEE
Annual Improvements Business Combination’ FENENET
2010-2012 Cycle ERENBOEE

Bl £ 3%

Amendment to HKFRS 13  Short-term Receivables DER=ZE-—FFE HHEUHEER
included in Annual and Payables —F—EHHz ENHE
Improvements 2010- FENENET
2012 Cycle EEBHBREE

Bl E13%

Amendment to Meaning of Effective BRR=FE——4F FHEEEIF
HKFRS 1 included in HKFRSs “E-ZFEBC  BENEE
Annual Improvements FENENET
2011-2013 Cycle ERBRBREE

Bl 15

L Effective from 1 July 2014

2014 Annual Report
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Notes to Financial Statements B7 7% 3 2% [

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)
Except for the amendments to HKFRS 1 which is only
relevant to an entity’s first HKFRS financial statements,
the nature and the impact of each amendment and
interpretation is described below:

(a) Amendments to HKFRS 10 included a definition
of an investment entity and provide an exception
to the consolidation requirement for entities
that meet the definition of an investment entity.
Investment entities are required to account for
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss
rather than consolidate them. Consequential
amendments were made to HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments to HKFRS
12 also set out the disclosure requirements for
investment entities. The amendments have had
no impact on the Group as the Company does
not qualify as an investment entity as defined in
HKFRS 10.

(b) The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of
“‘currently has a legally enforceable right to set
off” for offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities. The amendments also clarify the
application of the offsetting criteria in HKAS 32
to settlement systems (such as central clearing
house systems) which apply gross settlement
mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group
as the Group does not have any offsetting
arrangement.

(c) The HKAS 36 Amendments remove the
unintended disclosure requirement made by
HKFRS 13 on the recoverable amount of a cash-
generating unit which is not impaired. In addition,
the amendments require the disclosure of the
recoverable amounts for the assets or cash-
generating units for which an impairment loss has
been recognised or reversed during the reporting
period, and expand the disclosure requirements
regarding the fair value measurement for these
assets or units if their recoverable amounts are
based on fair value less costs of disposal. The
amendments have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

N

T

il
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(b)

(c)
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Notes to Financial Statements B7 7§ 3 2% [

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Digital China Holdings Limited

The HKAS 39 Amendments provide an exception
to the requirement of discontinuing hedge
accounting in situations where over-the-counter
derivatives designated in hedging relationships
are directly or indirectly, novated to a central
counterparty as a consequence of laws or
regulations, or the introduction of laws or
regulations. For continuance of hedge accounting
under this exception, all of the following criteria
must be met: (i) the novations must arise as
a consequence of laws or regulations, or the
introduction of laws or regulations; (i) the parties
to the hedging instrument agree that one or
more clearing counterparties replace their original
counterparty to become the new counterparty
to each of the parties; and [(iii) the novations
do not result in changes to the terms of the
original derivative other than changes directly
attributable to the change in counterparty to
achieve clearing. The amendments have had no
impact on the Group as the Group has not novated
any derivatives during the current and prior years.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 clarifies that an entity
recognises a liability for a levy when the activity
that triggers payment, as identified by the
relevant legislation, occurs. The interpretation
also clarifies that a levy liability is accrued
progressively only if the activity that triggers
payment occurs over a period of time, in
accordance with the relevant legislation. For a
levy that is triggered upon reaching a minimum
threshold, the interpretation clarifies that no
liability should be recognised before the specified
minimum threshold is reached. The interpretation
has had no impact on the Group as the Group
applied, in prior years, the recognition principles
under HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets which for the levies
incurred by the Group are consistent with the
requirements of HK(IFRIC) — Int 21.

2014 Annual Report
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Notes to Financial Statements B7 7% 3 2% [

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(f)

(9]

(h)

The HKFRS 2 Amendment clarifies various issues
relating to the definitions of performance and
service conditions which are vesting conditions,
including (i) a performance condition must contain
a service condition; (iij a performance target
must be met while the counterparty is rendering
service; (iii) a performance target may relate to
the operations or activities of an entity, or to
those of another entity in the same group; (iv) a
performance condition may be a market or non-
market condition; and (v) if the counterparty,
regardless of the reason, ceases to provide
service during the vesting period, the service
condition is not satisfied. The amendment has had
no impact on the Group.

The HKFRS 3 Amendment clarifies that contingent
consideration arrangements arising from a
business combination that are not classified as
equity should be subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss whether or not they
fall within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39. The
amendment has had no impact on the Group.

The HKFRS 13 Amendment clarifies that short-
term receivables and payables with no stated
interest rates can be measured at invoice
amounts when the effect of discounting is
immaterial. The amendment has had no impact
on the Group.
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23 B BRRIBZEE

(%)

(f)

(g)

(h)

MBI ZE AR B R A A
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FEBZHEBREEBIKMEZ
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EH BENESIEGHESS
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2.4 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND
NEW DISCLOSURE REGUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES

ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
in these financial statements.

effective,

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS
10 and HKAS 28
(2011)

Amendments to
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS
19

Amendments to HKAS 27

(2011)

Amendments to
HKAS 1
Amendments to HKFRS
10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

a0

Digital China Holdings Limited

Financial Instruments*

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations?®

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?®

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contribution’

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements?

Disclosure Initiative?

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception?

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs’

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs’

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs?

2014 Annual Report

il

\

T

31 December 2014 — &

—mE+—A=+—H

2.4 e K 1R 4 Fh 08 o B &5
2%%%&&%&%&%
EHREEATRBITZ

WERE

ARG E A ERN S F

MBHRRAKEA

PATS B 98 M {8 1) 2R A R 2 37 28 %
RETZBEBMBREER -

BB IR s A
FE9%

Bz BBUBRESE
HEI0R KBRS
TR 285
(Z2——%F)

BIZERBMBREE

8 E115%

BBMEREER
F14%

BBMEREER
£15%

BRI B B G &R
F6R KB AL
% B %385

BRI BB &R
F6HREE LA
BRI

BRI B LR R
£195%

BRI BB ER
Fo7%
(Z%——%)

BRI 2B B R
F15%

BRIZBBUBRE
EBIE10% - A
B REERF12
RRABLEAE
28R (ZF——F)

—E-FFE-F -

FHHZFELE

—F——FF-F-=

FHHZFEHE

—EF——FE-F[Q

FHYZFELE

Z@TA

REZREBELT
HAFLEZE
HEELELE
3

WBABEFREY
S

EEEFEE

EFEHHMAS

TEEHERBHF
A5

RE LENEYD

RE#ET1 8
EEHT
BUHBHZD
#a a2

REZH?

KREER BRGA
AEHPISME K2

B 2R E M
BREEA

BRIz — 25 FBH
Bl &R

BRIz — 25 FEH
Bl G LR



N

T
31 December 2014 —Z—WF+-H=+—H

2.4 o 7K £ 40 0F h R 4R 18 5

il

Notes to Financial Statements B4 1% 25 3% [

2.4 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND

NEW DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED
(Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

2 Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual

financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and
therefore is not applicable to the Group

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) will affect the presentation and disclosure
of certain information in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ending 31 December 2015.
The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these changes.

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version
of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 339 and all
previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group
expects that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will have an
impact on the classification and measurement of the
Group’s financial assets. Further information about the
impact will be available nearer the implementation date
of the standard.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bt 7% ¥} 3% M 5%

2.4 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND

NEW DISCLOSURE REGUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

(Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements in
HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2016.

The amendments to HKFRS 11 require that an acquirer
of an interest in a joint operation in which the activity
of the joint operation constitutes a business must
apply the relevant principles for business combinations
in HKFRS 3. The amendments also clarify that a
previously held interest in a joint operation is not
remeasured on the acquisition of an additional interest
in the same joint operation while joint control is
retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added
to HKFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do not
apply when the parties sharing joint control, including
the reporting entity, are under common control of the
same ultimate controlling party. The amendments apply
to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint
operation and the acquisition of any additional interests
in the same joint operation. The amendments are not
expected to have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 January
2016.
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2.4 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND

NEW DISCLOSURE REGUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

(Continued)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that
will apply to revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognizing revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract assets
and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede
all current revenue recognition requirements under
HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1
January 2017 and is currently assessing the impact of
HKFRS 15 upon adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the
principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue
reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are
generated from operating business (of which the
asset is part) rather than the economic benefits that
are consumed through the use of the asset. As a
result, a revenue-based method cannot be used to
depreciate property, plant and equipment and may
only be used in very limited circumstances to amortise
intangible assets. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The adoption on 1 January 2016 as the
Group has not used a revenue-based method for the
calculation of depreciation of its non-current assets.
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2.4 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND

2.5

Digital China Holdings Limited

NEW DISCLOSURE REGUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

(Continued)

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs Z2010-2012
Cycle issued in January 2014 sets out amendments
to a number of HKFRSs. Except for those described in
note 2.3, the Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 January 2015. None of the amendments are
expected to have a significant financial impact on the
Group. Details of the amendments most applicable to
the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an entity
must disclose the judgements made by management in
applying the aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8, including
a brief description of operating segments that have
been aggregated and the economic characteristics
used to assess whether the segments are similar.
The amendments also clarify that a reconciliation of
segment assets to total assets is only required to be
disclosed if the reconciliation is reported to the chief
operating decision maker.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give
the Group the current ability to direct relevant activities
of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(b) rights arising from other contractual

arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of profit or loss to the extent
of dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position
to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consclidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates
or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates or joint ventures is included as part of the
Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over
the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture
upon loss of significant influence or joint control and
the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture

is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair value of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at the fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual items, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability that is a financial instrument and within
the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value either recognised in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
If the contingent consideration is not within the scope
of HKAS 38, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31
December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

2014 Annual Report

Y

il

\

T

31 December 2014 — &

25 XEE

—mE+—A=+—H

st BURBLE (88)

BEVRZKANESE  IESEE
RRE - BHERSFERERERAE
BEATB R AR IE S RN R
FEEAR B EEE R
BEFENFAAREEENERE -1
RREREMEBERAKEEE
FENATEER RITHEEEE
RN IE S R B s o

RO HERIK  BETIAKSER
EMRBERBEE - 8FHE
AABERTHRARBE WA
B 0 & B 8RR IR {8 AJ BERU(E
B AEME AT ER - NKHE
REFt-_A=t—HEEEE
TTRER R - BUREREM S - 7°
%ﬁAﬁW%mﬁﬁHQW%E%
B oEERHRREREHNGRE
BB ARBEEReEEEUH—

HMBESELEN  TwRAKBENE
MWEEXRERERIREELFE

L sk % B B AL -

BMETDAFEEHEAENE S

EEXBMN(—HBRSEELESEMN M
W eI FE i 7E o Wil & E LB
(—HReEAEN) AT IEKE
ERIREE @ BleERREREIE -
MEERRNBEEBETATRNER
B o

HEBETHRERSEEBEAM (K

—iﬂfﬁiéi E i) B9 — B ) 0 %
BUMBOEBRLE - RIER N
EXBERNREERNETHESR

BRBRITAZEBHIREER
EUBER T L ENREEIRER L
EXGHHBEENARENTD
BeELXEBEURAE -



N

T
31 December 2014 — &

25 FET

il

Notes to Financial Statements B7 7% 3 2% [
—mEt-A=+—8

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AT REIE(4E)

POLICIES (Continued)

The Group measures its investment properties,
derivative financial instruments and equity investments
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset take
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FXES:HEME(E)

1 00 Digital China Holdings Limited

POLICIES (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active market for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lower level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial
assets and investment properties measured at fair
value), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

2014 Annual Report
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expenses categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with
the relevant accounting policy for the revalued asset.

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

the party is a person or close member of that
person’s family and that person,

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)

has significant influence over the Group; or
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(a) (Continued)

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or a parent of the
Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary
or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv)] one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

1 02 Digital China Holdings Limited 2014 Annual Report
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(iii)
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the assets as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, any
difference at that date between the carrying amount
and the fair value of the property up to the date
of change in use is accounted for as movements in
asset revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve
is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the
statement of profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to the statement of profit or loss
to the extent of the deficit previously charged. An
annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to
retained profits is made for the difference between
the depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of an asset and the depreciation based on the
asset’s original cost. On disposal of a revalued asset,
the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred
to retained profits as a movement in reserves.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

1 04 Digital China Holdings Limited

POLICIES (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Over the lease terms or
2% to 9%, whichever is
shorter

Land and buildings

Over the lease terms or
20% to 33%, whichever
is shorter

Leasehold improvements

Fixtures and office 10% to 33%
equipment

Motor vehicles 10% to 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year/period the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction, which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investment property comprises completed property
and property under construction or re-development.
Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings (including the leasehold interest under an
operating lease for a property which would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property) held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale
in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the statement
of profit or loss in the year/period in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year/period of the retirement
or disposal.

Investment property under construction is valued at
fair value if it can be reliably determined. If a fair
value cannot be reliably determined, then investment
property under construction is measured at cost less
impairment. The fair value of investment property under
construction is either determined on the basis of the
discounted cash flow or the residual methods. However,
using either method to value investment properties
under construction also requires considering the
significant risks which are relevant to the development
process, including but not limited to construction and
letting risks. The key judgements and assumptions
used for valuing investment property and investment
property under construction are set out in note 15.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

1 06 Digital China Holdings Limited

POLICIES (Continued)

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” up to the date of change in use,
and any difference at that date between the carrying
amount and the fair value of the property is accounted
for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”
above. For a transfer from inventories to investment
properties, any difference between the fair value of the
property at that date and its previous carrying amount
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value as
at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Patents and licences

Purchased patents and licences are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of
five years.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are amortised using
the straight-line basis over commercial lives of
the underlying products not exceeding five years,
commencing from the date when the products are put
into commercial production.

Systems software

Purchased systems software is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, and is amortised on the straight-
line basis over its estimated useful life of ten years.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

1 08 Digital China Holdings Limited

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases of assets where substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred are
classified as finance leases. Title may or may not
eventually be transferred.

When the Group is a lessor under finance leases,
an amount representing the minimum lease payment
receivables and initial direct costs is included in the
statement of financial position as a receivable. Any
unguaranteed residual value is also recognised at the
inception of the lease. The difference between the
sum of the minimum lease payment receivables, initial
direct costs, the unguaranteed residual value and
their present value is recognised as unearned finance
income. Unearned finance income is recognised over
the period of the lease using the effective interest rate
method.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged
to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are

initially stated at the cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Properties under development are intended to be held
for sale after completion.

Properties under development are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value and comprise
land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs,
professional fees and other costs directly attributable
to such properties incurred during the development
period.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond the normal operating cycle. On completion, the
properties are transferred to completed properties
held for sale.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair
value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AT REIE(E)

1 1 D Digital China Holdings Limited

POLICIES (Continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial
depends on their classification as follows:

assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments as defined
by HKAS 38.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with positive net changes in fair value presented
as other income and gains and negative net changes in
fair value presented as other expenses in the statement
of profit or loss. These net fair value changes do
not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in other expenses.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated
as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities
in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response
to changes in market conditions.

non-

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair
value, with unrealised gains or losses recognised as
other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other
income and gains, or until the investment is determined
to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss
is reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or loss
in other expenses. Interest and dividends earned whilst
holding the available-for-sale financial investments are
reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments,
convertible promissory note and wealth management
financial products cannot be reliably measured because
(a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating
fair value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FXES:HEME(E)

1 1 2 Digital China Holdings Limited

POLICIES (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)
The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the
near term are still appropriate. When, in rare
circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets if management
has the ability and intention to hold the assets for the
foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the
date of reclassification becomes its new amortised
cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit
or loss over the remaining life of the investment using
the effective interest rate. Any difference between the
new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded
in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or
loss.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
assets. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred assets to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financing difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FXES:HEME(E)

1 1 4 Digital China Holdings Limited

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses whether impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the assets in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of
the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the assets is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans
and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or
has been transferred to the Group.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

(Continued])

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
other expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset
that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FXES:HEME(E)

1 1 6 Digital China Holdings Limited

POLICIES (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments [(Continued)
In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or
loss - is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair
value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration or
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less
than its cost.

In the case of a debt instrument classified as available
for sale, impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.
However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Future
interest income continues to be accrued based on the
reduced carrying amount of the asset and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance
income. Impairment losses on debt instruments are
reversed through the statement of profit or loss if the
subsequent increase in fair value of the instruments
can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and

borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FXES:HEME(E)

1 1 8 Digital China Holdings Limited

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
that specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period; and (i) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AT REIE(4E)

POLICIES (Continued)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such
as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign
currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities
when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of derivatives are taken directly to the statement of
profit or loss.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar
in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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1 20 Digital China Holdings Limited

POLICIES (Continued)

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs
in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable RIERIBEE I ARRNE K

temporary differences, except: MEZRER ETIERIN:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from initial . EREMBBEBERT L ER
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in BB -ERS(WIFEKE
a transaction that is not a business combination MzEBEXBEMES A
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither RXGETRI T E G
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; i M B e AR s MBS 1R &
and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences . MRWB AR - B Qak
associated with investments in subsidiaries, BEPEIIREZERNE
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of RiEZEMs TREZR
the reversal of the temporary differences can be Z BRI A g - BERE
controlled and it is probable that the temporary MEE IR R KRR
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable @[t
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible RIET IR & BE g B PR R E

temporary differences, the carryforward of unused MER AAABDAREBEEERT

tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax A RB A IEEE AN AR o 7

assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable RIEEFHEEERN B RATBEE &

that taxable profit will be available against which the AR A A 4 8 R R E R =

deductible temporary differences, the carryforward 2 A MAARIKRSARBEER

of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be APATBEEBEBRZER  ETHE

utilised, except: BR SN

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the . EELEHIBEERYTSER
deductible temporary differences arises from —ERS(WIFEBKE M Z
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a BESNBBEMRESZ BN
transaction that is not a business combination ERMEZEAGHE ARNXSH
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither ETRITTAZEE R8N R
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; JERBUB MK EE K&
and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences . MRWB AR - & Aak
associated with investments in subsidiaries, BECEIZREZENMRE
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax REZEMs  BEEHIEE
assets are only recognised to the extent that it EReEERUEZEAERN
is probable that the temporary differences will ARBREED - RRBEEE
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable AEEREEREEEZER
profit will be available against which the temporary BwmAzBERT A EaER
differences can be utilised. IR ©

NS ERABR QA 20144 1 21



AN

Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R 2% B :+

31 December 2014 —Z—F+—-_A=+—H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FXES:HEME(E)

1 2 2 Digital China Holdings Limited

POLICIES (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to the statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(b) from contract revenue, on the percentage of
completion basis, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Contract accounting” below;

(c) from the rendering of services, on the percentage
of completion basis, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Contracts for services”
below;

(d) rental income, on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms;

(e) finance lease income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the
net investment of the finance lease or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the net investment of the finance lease;

(f) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;
and

(g) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract
amount and appropriate amounts from variation orders,
claims and incentive payments. Contract costs incurred
comprise equipment and material costs, the costs
of subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed construction overheads.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FXES:HEME(E)

1 24 Digital China Holdings Limited

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognised on
the percentage of completion method, measured by
reference to the proportion of work completed to date
to the estimated total work of the relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as
they are anticipated by management. \Where contract
costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus
is treated as an amount due from contract customers.
Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred
to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is treated as an amount due to contract
customers.

Contract revenue on the rendering of services
comprises the agreed contract amount. Costs of
rendering services comprise labour and other costs
of personnel directly engaged in providing the services
and attributable overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised
based on the percentage of completion of the
transaction, provided that the revenue, the costs
incurred and the estimated costs to completion can
be measured reliably. The percentage of completion is
established by reference to the costs incurred to date
as compared to the total costs to be incurred under
the transaction. \Where the outcome of a contract
cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognised only
to the extent that the expenses incurred are eligible
to be recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as
they are anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is treated as an amount due from contract
customers. Where progress billings exceed contract
costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an amount
due to contract customers.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

The Company operates two share option schemes for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group’'s operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments. Further
details of which are given in note 34(a) to the financial
statements.

The Company operates a restricted share award
scheme (the “RSA Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. An
employee share trust is established and administered
by an independent trustee and is funded by the Group’s
cash contributions. The considerations paid (including
any related transaction costs) by the Company to
purchase shares of the Company for the RSA Scheme
are deducted from equity as an employee share
trust. The administrator of the employee share trust
purchases the Company’'s shares in the open market
as award shares to employees upon vesting. Upon
vesting of the award shares, the corresponding amount
in the employee share-based compensation reserve will
be transferred to the employee share trust. Further
details of which are given in note 34(b) to the financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled awards with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING EATBREEE ()

1 2 6 Digital China Holdings Limited

POLICIES (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled awards is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled in employee benefit expense.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
awards at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled awards where
vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as

additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

1 2 8 Digital China Holdings Limited

POLICIES (Continued)

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used
for the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, the
capitalisation rates ranging from 2% to 4% has been
applied to the expenditure on the individual assets.

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss with the exception of monetary items that
are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s
net investment of a foreign operation. These are
recognised in other comprehensive income until the net
investment is disposed of, at which time the cumulative
amount is reclassified to the statement of profit or
loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange
differences on those monetary items are also recorded
in other comprehensive income.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary item measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on retranslation of a non-
monetary item measured at the fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the reporting period.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FTES5BEME(E)

1 30 Digital China Holdings Limited

POLICIES (Continued)

For the purpose of the consclidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Classification between investment properties and

owner-occupied properties

The Group determined whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties
comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Withholding tax arising from the distribution of

dividends

The Group’s determination, as to whether to accrue
withholding taxes arising from the distributions of
dividends by certain subsidiaries according to the
relevant tax rules enacted in the jurisdictions, is
subject to judgement on the plan of the distributions
of dividends.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Classification between finance [leasing and
operating leasing

Leases are required to be classified as either finance
leases (which transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership, and give rise to asset and
liability recognition by the lessee and a receivable by the
lessor) and operating leases (which result in expense
recognition by the lessee, with the asset remaining
recognised by the lessor).

Situations that would normally lead to a lease being
classified as a finance lease include the following:

(8) the lease transfers ownership of the asset to the
lessee by the end of the lease term;

(b) the lessee has the option to purchase the asset at
a price which is expected to be sufficiently lower
than fair value at the date the option becomes
exercisable that, at the inception of the lease,
it is reasonably certain that the option will be
exercised;

(c) the lease term is for the major part of the
economic life of the asset, even if title is not
transferred;

(d) at the inception of the lease, the present value
of the minimum lease payments amounts to at
least substantially all of the fair value of the leased
asset;

(e) the lease assets are of a specialised nature such
that only the lessee can use them without major
modifications being made.
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Notes to Financial Statements B4 1% 25 3% [

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Consolidation of entities in which the Group holds

less than a majority of voting rights

The Group considers that it controls DCIS (defined
in note 19) even though it owns less than 50% of
the voting rights. This is because the Group is the
single largest shareholder of DCIS with a 42.44% (31
December 2013: 45.17%) equity interest. Although
the Group does not own a majority of the equity
interests in DCIS, taking into account of the Group’s
power to participate in the operational and financial
activities of DCIS, distribution of key shareholders
and their beneficial shareholders as well as historical
voting patterns, and the existence of any contractual
arrangement among the shareholders and/or their
beneficial shareholders, if any, the directors of the
Company are of the view that the equity holdings in
DCIS are dispersed in a way that other shareholders
have not organised and the practical risk to organise
their holdings to outvote the Group in the shareholders’
meeting of DCIS is remote so that the Group can
still exercise more voting power than the minority
shareholders. Therefore, the directors of the Company
are of the view that the Company has de facto control
over DCIS.
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Notes to Financial Statements B7 7§ 3 2% [

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the management of the
Group has reviewed the Group’s investment properties
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties
are held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over
time. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred
taxation on investment properties, the directors have
determined that the presumption that investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered through sale is rebutted.

Accordingly, the Group recognises deferred tax in
respect of the changes in fair value of the investment
properties based on management’s best estimate
assuming future tax consequences through usage of
such properties of rental purpose, rather than through
sale. The final tax outcome could be different from the
deferred tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements should the investment properties
are subsequently disposed of by the Group, rather than
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties are consumed substantially by leasing over
time. In the event the investment properties are being
disposed of, the Group may be liable to higher tax upon
disposal considering the impact of corporate income
tax and land appreciation tax.

Recognition of employee benefit expense for

equity-settled awards compensation costs

The Company operates two share option schemes and
the RSA Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to employees. The fair values of these
equity-settled awards were valued by an external valuer
using the binomial model. These valuations require the
Company to make estimates about certain key inputs,
including the dividend yield, expected volatility, risk-free
interest rate and expected life of options, and hence
they are subject to uncertainty.
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Notes to Financial Statements B4 1% 25 3% [

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Recognition of employee benefit expense for
equity-settled awards compensation costs

(Continued)

Besides, the grant of share options and RSUs and
share options is conditional upon the satisfaction of
specified vesting conditions, including service period and
performance condition linked to financial performance
measure. Judgement is required to take into account
the vesting conditions and adjust the number of RSUs
and share options included in the measurement of
share-based compensation costs.

The cumulative expense recognised for these equity-
settled rewards at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period. No expense is
recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest.

Further details are given in notes 6 and 34 to the
financial statements.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below.
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Notes to Financial Statements B7 7§ 3 2% [

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Impairment assessment for trade receivables
The policy for impairment assessment for trade
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of trade receivables
and on the judgement of management. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer. If the financial conditions of
customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional impairment may be required. Net impairment
of trade receivables of HK$36,607,000 (nine months
ended 31 December 2013: HK$105,258,000) was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2014. The
carrying amount of trade and bills receivables as
at 31 December 2014 was HK$9,601,923,000 (31
December 2013: HK%$11,494,720,000).

Provision for obsolete inventories

Management reviews the ageing analysis of inventories
of the Group and makes provision for obsolete and
slow-moving inventory items identified that are no
longer suitable for sales. Management estimates
the net realisable value for such inventories based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions. A considerate amount of judgement
is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of
these inventories. If the market conditions were to
change, resulting in a change of provision for obsolete
items, the difference will be recorded in the period it
is identified. Net reversal of provision of inventories
of HK$23,279,000 (nine months ended 31 December
2013: net provision of inventories HK$101,157,000)
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2014. The
carrying amount of inventories as at 31 December
2014 was HK$6,175,416,000 (31 December 2013:
HK$5,635,678,000).
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Notes to Financial Statements B4 & 3R 2= Hff 3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
As disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements,
certain investment properties including completed
investment properties and investment properties under
construction are revalued at the end of the reporting
period on an open market, existing use basis by
independent professional valuers. These valuations were
based on certain assumptions, which are subject to
uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual
results. In making the judgement, information from
current prices in an active market for similar properties
is considered and assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of the reporting
period are used. The carrying amount of investment
properties measured at fair value at 31 December
2014 was HK$1,744,226,000 (31 December 2013:
HK$355,294,000). The significant methods and
assumptions used by valuers in estimating the fair value
of investment properties are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

Investment properties under construction is measured

based on estimates prepared by independent
real estate valuation experts, except where such
values cannot be reliably determined. As at 31

December 2013, certain investment properties under
construction with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$400,089,000 were measured at cost less
impairment because their fair values could not be
reliably determined because it was in an area in which
the surrounding properties were under development
and reliable estimates could not be made.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. E XS HETRGEH(E)

1 38 Digital China Holdings Limited

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets [(other than

goodwill]

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end
of each reporting period. Non-financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

Recognition and allocation of construction cost on

properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded as
properties under development during the construction
stage and will be transferred to completed properties
held for sale upon completion. Apportionment of these
costs will be recognised in the statement of profit or
loss upon the recognition of the sale of the properties.
Before the final settlement of the development costs
and other costs relating to the sale of the properties,
these costs are accrued by the Group based on
management’s best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group may divide
the development projects into phases. Specific costs
directly related to the development of a phase are
recorded as the cost of such phase. Costs that are
common to phases are allocated to individual phases
based on the estimated saleable area of the entire
project.
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Notes to Financial Statements B4 1% 25 3% [

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Recognition and allocation of construction cost on

properties under development (Continued)

Where the final settlement of costs and the related
cost allocation is different from the initial estimates,
any increase or decrease in the development costs and
other costs would affect the profit or loss in future
years.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in
use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December
2014 was HK$1,274,815,000 (31 December 2013:
HK$243,670,000). Further details are given in note 17
to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements B7 7§ 3 2% [

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the end of the reporting period and are expected
to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. Certain
entities of the Group were recognised as “High New
Technology Enterprises” in Mainland China and entitled
to a preferential corporate income tax rate of 15%
for a three-year period. The tax regulations call for a
renewal process after the expiry. For the measurement
of deferred tax assets and liabilities, judgement is
required to determine whether these entities will
continue to meet the criteria of “High New Technology
Enterprise” and estimate the tax rates expected to
be applied. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised based upon the likely
timing and amounts of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. The carrying
amount of net deferred tax assets at 31 December
2014 was HK$192,609,000 (31 December 2013:
HK$194,916,000). The amount of unrecognised tax
losses and certain deductible temporary differences
at 31 December 2014 was HK$168,525,000 (31
December 2013: HK$102,988,000). Further details
are given in note 24 to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements B4 & 3R 2= Hff 3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various regions.
As a result of the fact that certain matters relating
to the income taxes have not been confirmed by the
local tax bureaus, objective estimates and judgements
based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and
other related policies are required in determining the
provision of corporate income taxes. \Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact
the corporate income tax and tax provisions in the
period in which the differences realise.

Fair values of derivative financial instruments
Where the fair values of derivative financial instruments
recorded in the statement of financial position cannot
be derived from active markets, they are determined
using valuation technigues. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement
is required in establishing fair values. The judgements
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair values of
derivative financial instruments.

Percentage of completion of contracts

The Group recognises revenue according to the
percentage of completion of individual contracts.
The stage of completion is estimated by reference
to the proportion of work completed to date to the
estimated total work of the relevant contract, and
the corresponding contract revenue is also estimated
by management. Due to the nature of the activity
undertaken in these contracts, the date at which the
activity is entered into and the date at which the activity
is completed usually fall into different accounting
periods. Hence, the Group reviews and revises the
estimates of both contract revenue and contract costs
for each contract as the contract progresses. \Where
the actual contract revenue is less than estimated or
the actual contract costs are more than estimated, a
foreseeable loss may arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets
The Group classifies certain assets as available-for-
sale and recognises movements of its fair value in
equity. When the fair value declines, management
makes assumptions about the decline in value to
determine whether there is an impairment that should
be recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The
Group also recognises unlisted equity investments
as available-for-sale and states them at cost less
impairment. Losses arising from the impairment of such
investments should be recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. The aggregate carrying amount of
available-for-sale financial assets measured at cost
less impairment is HK$2,561,135,000 (31 December
2013: HK$521,331,000), of which HK$1,561,135,000
(31 December 2013: HK$219,372,000) and
HK$1,000,000,000 (31 December 2013:
HK$301,959,000) are included in non-current assets
and current assets, respectively, at 31 December
2014. Further details are contained in note 23 to the
financial statements.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
For management purposes, the Group’s operating
businesses are structured and managed separately
according to the nature of their operations, target
customer segments and the products and services
they provide. Each of the Group’s reportable operating
segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers products and services which are subject to risks
and returns that are different from those of the other
reportable segments. Particulars of the Group’s four
reportable operating segments are summarised as
follows:

(@) the “Distribution” segment, with a primary focus
on the SMB & Consumer markets, focuses on
meeting the demand for IT products from SMB
and consumer markets, and also explores new
opportunities in mobile internet devices and
their applications with the implementation of the
Sme@rt City strategy. It engages in the sale and
distribution of general IT products which consist
of notebook computers, desktop computers,
peripherals, accessories and consumer |IT
products;

(b) the “Systems” segment, with a primary focus on
the Enterprise market, focuses on meeting the IT
demand from the urban information infrastructure
construction, as well as the enterprise market
and also makes direct sales to regional customers
to enhance direct control over the demand of
the enterprise market. It engages in the sale and
distribution of systems products which consist of
servers, networking products, storage products
and packaged software;

(c) the “Supply Chain Services” segment, with a
primary focus on the Hi-tech Industries, Branded
e-Commerce Platform Operators and Branded
Service Providers, is targeted at manufacturers
of IT and other high-value density products
manufacturers and industry customers, branded
e-commerce platform operators and branded
service providers, providing one-stop consultancy
and execution services in logistics, business flow,
capital flow and information flow; and

}'Jfﬁl
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Notes to Financial Statements B7 7§ 3 2% [

INFORMATION

(Continued)

(d) the “Services” segment, with a primary focus on
the provision of urban information infrastructure
and Sme@rt City services to the Industry market,
focuses on the provision of urban information
infrastructure and Sm@rt City services targeted
at large-scale industry customers, offering
products and services in IT planning and IT
systems consultation, design and implementation
of industry application software and solutions,
outsourcing of IT system operation and
maintenance, as well as system integration and
maintenance.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on the reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before
tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax
except that unallocated interest income, unallocated
finance costs, unallocated corporate income and
gains, listing expense relating to the Absorption and
Merger (defined in note 19) and unallocated corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, derivative
financial instruments, cash and cash equivalents,
properties under development, investment properties,
available-for-sale investments and other unallocated
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, interest-bearing
bank borrowings and other unallocated corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group
basis.
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OPERATING SEGMENT

(Continued)

The following tables present revenue, profit and
certain asset, liability and expenditure information for
the Group’s operating segments for the year ended
31 December 2014 and the nine months ended 31
December 2013.

INFORMATION

Distribution

2%

Systems

#

Nine months Nine months

Year ended [0GHI  Year ended LU Year ended

31 December

31 December

31 December

RINIEENNN 31 December

Supply Chain Services
BEERR

Nine months

31 December

AN

T

il

31 December 2014 —ZF —

.
Hga

q.

ZHA
EREH -

Non-services subtotal
FRENG

Nine months

ended

Year ended ended

31 December

31 December

Services

mE+-A=+—H8

SEREH (&)

TREINAKEBE=

_H—-i-—EIJJ:EJg&
tTZA=+—BLLABEA
wHRETEE BER

—mEt
=%

@85

Consolidated

7

Ning months
ended
RINEEIIEI 31 December

Ning months
ended

Year ended

2014 2014 2013 2013 2014 2013 2013 2014 2013
iz iz iz 8z iz Bz iz Bz
e E-cE -BF kst I-cs -B I-cs
t==t-8 ZAZt-R et At-A -0 peiEaail TR 1-8 i
AR ItARA (338 (B LEEA LENER
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000 H($000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000
LSOl T LSO T BT A LSO EETT ELEO  ETT EEEO T
Segment revenue: ARRA:

Sales to external customers HETHNER LRI 2525413 POREICEEN 17638370 PXIUEN 1064603 [CORIJANERR 44957103 8,135,825 7307431 BERLEKEYAN 52,264,534
Segment gross profit A9EH 613,999 1404442 205,148 M 2,243,589 1435017 3,378,608
Segment results pEES 17380 m 489,953 m 51678 757146 569,011 404,730 336472 1,161,876 895483
Interest income, cther unallcated HEMA EHRAE

income and gains WARNE 392,002 447903 4482 452,385
Listing expense relaing to the WalsEz

Absorption and Merger LTER(EEE

(defined in note 19) K9 B (1216133 - BN (1216133
Other unallocated expenses EhRAEER (281,466) [ELEID)] - (281,466) [NENEA]
Finence costs Eries (229,789) [RETAK{) @160 WELEN (178741
Share of profits and losses of: EETHRAZEHR

HE

Juint ventures ALpz (7428) 253 4,893)

Assaciates Beng 38,204 33800 72004
Prafit/(loss) before tax BRMEN/(58) 725,884 (647078) 415,622 355679 1,141,506 (291,399)
Incame tax expense fERER ((LIXGON  (130202) (54,790) [41.043) WEREREN  (171,245)
Proft/loss) for the year/period FER/HmEH/

(&%) OV (777260 QECOEREN 31463 [EIPREUN (462644

BNBBERARAT | 2014@?&145




Notes to Financial Statements 51 7& 3} 2= Mt

\

T

31 December 2014 —Z—F+—-_A=+—H

il

TR R s o =
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. &Z29#3&F (&)
(Continued)
Distribution Systems Supply Chain Services Non-services subtotal Services Consolidated
i HERRE FRBNT
At At At A A 31
RINCE 31 December - JRANVAEINEN v 31 December December
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
8z FE gz EE g8z EE
“§-BF s Ci-TF el -7 s
t=A=t-A [ N ToAZT-R e
EAEA LEE IEnBA ItnAA
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT BRI L BT AT EETT EETTL EBTT AETT
Assets and liabilties EERAR
Segment assets PE] 6,407,360 QEGERALTE] 8,651,798 KGN 442,353 265,941 WIEIIKIAN 15277735 7271925 EEERIGRACE 22773436 [EENLERER]
Investments in joint ventures RAELEIRE 670495 166,721 5,084 6,554 675,579 163275
Investments in associates REEAFIRE 773,763 634,702 418196 400598 MEEELEEEN 1035300
Avaiable-for-sale investments n#HEzRE 2635158 419767 281275 EEER 2916433 818458
Unallocated assets AAEEE [REK:N 7448985 = — BCREURIEN 7448985
Total assets gz 25731292 QERRAILIOE 7976480 QECKGRAVKEN 33707772 QEWlEkEE]
Segment liabilties 8% 4153834 LN 5384731 |EEEERE] 370,986 260305 9909611 QERVIGIKE 4209453 EEERCIROIN 14209064 EEERTGH
Unalocated fbilties *HRRE 8634533 [CRIEERY - ~ BREECN 621252
Total libilties B8f 18544144 WRCNAALTSN 4299453 NIRKGENINN 22,843597 QERNUAREEA)
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. E249I&E(8)

Notes to Financial Statements 51 7& 2} 2= it

il

(Continued)
Distribution Systems Supply Chain Services Non-services subtotal Services Consolidated
bt 1 i HERRR FRENG &% £&
Nine months Nine months Nine months Nine months Ning months Nine months
Year ended [0GHI  Year ended LU Year ended LG Year ended UG Year ended G Year ended ended
RINEEINI 31 December  REAMVIEINEINN 31 December  RANVAEINEAN 31 December  [RENEVITIN 31 December  [{MIEEIIEIM 31 December [RIMEVIIEIN 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2013 2014 2013 2013
BE Bz Bz Bz Bz
Z3-1 et -7F St 4 3-zE
t2RAZt-B e t=A=1-A el - t=f=t-8
LHEE LtAER LLAfER LEEA LEhER
HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$000
BRI fian BT BT BT EEaon BB fEann A8 Lo BT BT
Other segment information: A H9ER:
Depreciation of property, 0% BERGE
plant and equipment iE 4308 15498 12488 42,904 32293 49326 103,635 81619
Unallocated amounts ROEEH 54,556 42006 - 54,556 42006
97,460 74299 60,731 49326 123625
Amortiation of prepaid land premiums  Efi B4R
= unallocated -#5% 4375 3882 = - 4,375 3882
Amortisaton of ther ntanghle assets  EhEFEERH - 6,561 - - - 6,561 - 4,884 8321 11,445 8321
Capital expenditure* (U Y 2,768 26110 39750 10,358 8520 47294 51036 73,742 3149 121,036 82,532
Unallocated amounts RAEEH 808,609 502,536 = - 808,609 502,536
855,903 553572 3149 929,645 585,068
Impairment/freversal of mpairment) of  EWEREEE/
trade receivables (HERE) 88,284 7125 49,952 78914 (803) 138,638 85234 (102,031) 20024 36,607 105,258
Provisions/[reversal of provisions] RERERE/(BE
for and writeof of obsolete ENCE]
inventories (47,701 27984 47870 (2,282) (120 (36,400) 75734 13121 25,423 (23.279) 101157
Impairment of avaiblefor-sale THYE RENE
investments 22610 74582 46,867 - 69,477 74582
Impairment of prepayments and other B FEREZKENT
receliables BRE - 84,950 - 84,960 48518 - 48518 84,980
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BAMYBIEYE BERSRE - WA
equipment, prepaid land premiums, investment properties and s BREVERHEMBER
other intangible assets including assets from the acquisition EEBERKEWNBATRIZEE)Y
of a subsidiary. RE o
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OPERATING SEGMENT
(Continued)

INFORMATION

Since over 90% of the Group’s revenue from external
customers is generated in Mainland China and over
90% of the non-current assets of the Group (except
for investments in associates) are located in Mainland
China, no geographic information is presented.

During the year ended 31 December 2014 and the
nine months ended 31 December 2013, there was
no revenue derived from transactions with a single
external customer which individually amounted to 10%
of the Group’s revenue.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for
returns and trade discounts and the value of services
rendered to customers, net of business tax and
government surcharges.
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

(Continued)

31 December 2014 —Z—F&+—-A=+—H

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

WA Hf A R A
(48)
H A WA R 28 2 ST

Group
rEE
Nine months
ended
Year ended 31 31 December
December 2014 2013
BE BHZE
—B-NE —F-Z=F
TZA=1+—H sl
LEE I AE A
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B it B¥TR BETT
Other income Hb gt A
Government grants' BT At 108,857 115,615
Interest income B KA 87,368 49,566
Income from wealth management & & & @ WA
financial products 179,466 52,056
Gross rental income BESWA 19,362 7.976
Dividend income from available-for- At EEZHE 2
sale investments B WA 7,280 2,683
Others Hith 39,817 25,129
253,025
Gains i &
Fair value gains on investment REMEZLFE
properties Bl = 15 11,709
Bain on derivative financial MES®EIA
instruments Yz 29 206,247
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEZHMBRAR 2
Y g1 37 13,637
Gain on disposal of a joint venture BE A&
o g —
Gain on partial disposal of the equity & — ¥ & A7)
interest in an associate o 2 W —
Gain on deemed partial disposal of G [E & % B &
the equity interest in NSRS
associates Wz 60,025
Foreign exchange differences, net  YMNEFZEE 304,021
Others H 23,399
o158
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(Co

1 50 Digital China Holdings Limited

ntinued)

Various government grants have been received for the sale of
self-developed software products approved by the tax authority
in the People’s Republic of China (*PRC”), the development of
software products in Mainland China, and the investments in
specific provinces in Mainland China. Government grants for
which related expenditure has not yet been undertaken are
included in deferred income (non-current portion) and other
payables and accruals (current portion) in the statement
of financial position, respectively. There are no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies relating to the government grants
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 6. BREBREIGEN (BHE)

The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

RNEB 2 BBADER(BE)EE
mer/(GrA) -

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
Bz Bz
—E-mE —2-=fF
+ZA=1-F |y
LEE LENEA
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
=3 BETT BETT
Cost of inventories sold ENFEEZHKA 61,253,916 47,038,133
Auditors’ remuneration ZEMMH & 5,090 4,921
Depreciation e 14 158,191 123,625
Amortisation of prepaid land premiums B LT & 16 4,375 3,882
Research and development costs* TP R A 546,575 422,472
Amortisation of other intangible assets* Hit BB ERH~ 18 11,445 6,321
Minimum lease payments under operating T REFZ HELL
leases in respect of land and buildings HEMES 163,353 113,594
Listing expenses relating to the Absorption WWAHEEZ tHER
and Merger 19 1,216,133
Provisions/(reversal of provisions) for and ~ REF S & E /(B ERD)
write-off of obsolete inventories* R (23,279) 101,157
Impairment of trade receivables* B E SRR E 28 36,607 105,258
Impairment of available-for-sale AfHEZ RERE
investments* 23 69,477 74,592
Impairment of prepayments and other BARIE R A KRR
receivables* AE* 48,518 84,960
Loss on disposal of an associate* HE-HBERFAZEE" 278 -
Loss on disposal/partial disposal of an LE/BHLEARLEY
available-for-sale investment* REZEE" 13,102 1,072
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant HEME - HERZELZ
and equipment EiE 2,570 7830
Foreign exchange differences, net* OV = B 67,061 (304,021)
Employee benefit expense (including EERTAZ(REES
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): W& (4 i78)) -
Wages and salaries T8Lk%& 1,950,858 1,437,907
Share-based compensation PARS 19 2 5 2 B (20,129) (34,684)
Pension scheme contributions** RIS &0~ 188,370 148124
Other benefits ST 367,107 274,539
2,486,206 1,825,886
Direct operating expenses (including repairs ARBHAEHNKENENE
and maintenance) arising on rental- BEEEBER(BREEAR
earning investment properties =) 971
Rental income on investment properties BREMECHSBRAREES
less direct operating expenses of BB AH%3,154,0007T
HK$3,154,000 (nine months ended 31 (BEr-Z2—=F
December 2013; HK$971,000) TZA=+—HIEAER:
% %971,0007) (16,208) (7,005)
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6. PROFIT/[LOSS] BEFORE TAX (Continued)

* %

The amortisation of certain other intangible assets, the
provisions/(reversal of provisions) for and write-off of
obsolete inventories, the impairment of trade receivables, the
impairment of available-for-sale investments, the impairment
of prepayments and other receivables, the loss on disposal
of an associate, the loss on disposal/partial disposal of an
available-for-sale investment, research and development costs
and foreign exchange loss, net are included in “Other expenses,
net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had no material forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
pension schemes in future years (31 December 2013: Nil).

7. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

At

31 December 2014 — &

—mE+—A=1+—H

B. I‘??Hﬁu: . (B518)(4&)
EFRGELAERY  REFER
B/ (BRRE) R - BAH S I
ORE - TR 12 R - T
OB B4 T B R AL © i85 —
BEATZBE  HE BAHE
Pt 22 B ARRRER
AR SEFBAC A RA R Kb
ZIEMBBRFEIR -

* RZZE—NME+=—A=+—H X%
B S KA NE R REE ZRIK
S BIHRZHERER(=ZE—=
F+—_A=+—H:&)-

7. MERK

Interest on bank borrowings wholly
repayable within five years

Interest on a bond payable
Interest on discounted bills

Less: Interest capitalised

A B’\ﬁiﬁqwﬁﬂ%‘ E
RITERME

J?Eﬁféi%ﬂ B —
BEAMREEMNE
o BEAEH R
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Group

AEH
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
BHE HE
—E—F ZE—=F
TZA=1—H [yt gas
HFE IENAEA
HK$°'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
244,586 139,383
645
57,473 54,714
(31,542) (16,001)
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31 December 2014 —Z—F&+—-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEMR
Directors’ remuneration for the year/period, disclosed RAFE HBEAZEESHE IR
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of BEBMAERIABRARZSRL
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited MR Bl (B 32 pr (T ET R B D) R &
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) and section BAEEGI(FE622%) HK11578
78 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies RARKERERH BB RERGIE
Ordinance (Cap. 622), with reference to section 161 2EFIBUEFHEM T :

of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 32), is as follows:

Group
AEEH

Nine months

Year ended ended

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

B= #H=

—E-OF —F—=

T=A=1—F |Eac

IEFE LIENEA

HK$’'000 HK$'000

BEET T BT T

Fees e 1,125

Other emoluments: H A B &

Salaries, allowances and e FUEREYD

benefits in kind B 8,764

Performance related bonuses FRIMAE B —
Share-based compensation (note) LA R 7 2 1+ 2 Bl

(K1 5%) (3,618) (7,259

Pension scheme contributions RIKRESFHEIMHR 150 105

10,490 1,610
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31 December 2014 —_E—WFE+_-_A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. Z=EEfM£ (&)

(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIAFEHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive RAEE HEREXZNTE
directors during the year/period were as follows: VEMITEZZHSOAT

Nine months

Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
BZE HE
—E—OF —T—=F
ToA=1T —H [yttt =
LtEE IENEA
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Mr. WONG Man Chung, BEXREE
Francis 225
Ms. NI Hong (Hope) {52 4T /)N 48 225
Mr. ONG Ka Lueng, Peter FREXE 225
Dr. LIU Yun, John' Bl it —
Ms. YAN Xiaoyan? (note 7] BR M AR s R (KT A7) —
Mr. HU Zhaoguang?® AR 5 AR 225
900
1 Appointed on 25 March 2014 1 R-ZE—NF=ZA=-+HBE
= £
2 Appointed on 27 May 2014 2 if:%fmiﬁﬂ:ﬁ—tm%
£
3 Resigned on 26 May 2014 3 ){i{g—ﬂliﬁﬁﬂ'ﬁﬁﬁ
E
Note 7: Ms. YAN Xiaoyan waived her entitlements to Bl BRERZTIHREEREE
director’s fees during the term of her tenure. ZHEENESFHRe 2B
The amount of director’s fees being waived MRZE-—NFREA=T
during the period from 27 May 2014 (the date +tR(ZEEME=_F—M
of her appointment) to 31 December 2014 was F+ZA=+—BEBEN
HK$179,000. ¥ =4 A 1K179,000
=
Saved as disclosed above, there were no other BrEXFTHBEEN  REZRE
emoluments payable to the independent non- —E-NFE+ZA=+—H1k
executive directors during the vyear ended FERNIW B8N T B IEHR
31 December 2014 (nine months ended 31 TEETMAMNE (EE—
December 2013: Nil). E—=F+-_A=+—HIth
@A :&)-

1 54 Digital China Holdings Limited | 2014 Annual Report



Notes to Financial Statements 51 7& 2} 2= it

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b)

director

AN

il

T

31 December 2014 —Z—F&+—-A=+—H

Executive directors and a non-executive

Salaries,
allowances and
benefits in kind

¥& o RER

BNEAN

HK$'000

BETT

Fees

fikA

8. EEM=(A)
HTESRFUTES

(b)

Performance Pension

Share-based
compensation

WA %
ZHE

HK$'000
BETT
[Note]

related scheme

contributions
RKEH
BR
HK$'000
BETT

bonuses

B3Rl |
24

HK$'000
BRI

Total
remuneration

Hedm
HK$'000
BT

Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-Z-@m%F
+ZAZ+-BLFE
Executive directors: WTESE:
Mr. GUO Wei BREE (1,919)
Mr. LIN Yang* Wi (959)
Mr. YAN Guorong EEESx:3 (740)
(3,618)
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Andrew Y. YAN [ofe¥k
13,958 (3,618) 150 10,790
Salaries,  Performance Pension
allowances and related Share-based scheme Total
Fees benefits in kind bonuses  compensation  contributions  remuneration
e 2R RRRE DABR A7 32 BAREEE
e ENEF s ZBe HR Hegg
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BETT BT BETT
[Note]
(H#)
Nine months ended BE-%-=%
31 December 2013 TZA=T-HLENER
Executive directors: BOTESE:
Mr. GUO Wei BREE - 3,692 - (3,827) 35 (100)
Mr. LIN Yang* Wi - 3,039 - (1.914) 35 1,160
Mr. YAN Guorong* Bl - 2,033 - (1,518) 35 550
- 8,764 - (7,259) 105 1,610
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Andrew Y. YAN [ohbika 225 - - - - 225
225 8,764 - (7,259) 105 1,835

MBI R AR AR
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

Note:

1 56 Digital China Holdings Limited

Mr. LIN Yang is also the chief executive of the Company.

Appointed on 1 April 2013

There was no arrangement under which a director
or a chief executive waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration during the year/period.

In prior years, certain directors were granted share options
and restricted share units (“RSUs”), in respect of their services
to the Group, under the share option schemes and the RSA
scheme of the Company, respectively, further details of which
are set out in note 34 to the financial statements. The fair
values of these options and RSUs, which have been recognised
in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled,
were determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

The cumulative expense recognised for these equity-settled
rewards at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to
the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period. No expense is recognised for
awards that do not ultimately vest.

2014 Annual Report

\
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31 December 2014 —Z—F+—-_A=+—H

8. EFM&(&)

Hrat

W EETASARARNITRAE °
RIZE—=FHOA-—HAEZE

REFE/HEA - EFk
TTHARE W ERT L ME KA
EREEAMEZLHE -

RBEFE ETEFEARZERAE
B 5= AR 7 1 93 B AR IR AN A B B AR
a8 & X R 6 A% 1) 22 B =t 8 M R B
Pt e IR I B (TR BIAAD ) -
BRE—FFBEHN BT RKM T
34 - ZEBEERIREIBROZA
TFEEIRBZLBHET WERE
KRR K SRENGEBHANERR
RATER » MAARNFERBREK 2
SHEWALAESHSERG -

REBRESHMREEHE BB ARG
SN RBFERC Ret R RS
HRERBERL  ARAEEEKEE
BrRETABEMKEM[BER -
RE-HHNBERERANKRRKEGTAZ
&A% % 5 87 R 8RR
REFHAXWEE - FRREBEZ
BEZAXTTHER -



FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Without considering the effect of the reversal of
the share-based compensation relating to the equity-
settled awards as further explained in note 34(b)
to the financial statements, the five highest paid
employees during the year ended 31 December 2014
included three (nine months ended 31 December
2013: three) directors and chief executive, detail of
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above.
Details of the remuneration of the remaining two
(nine months ended 31 December 2013: two) highest
paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company for the year are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements Bt % 2} 3% M 5%

31 December 2014 —Z—WF+-H=+—H

=),

Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind

e RRREMER

Performance related bonuses KB 2 IEA
Share-based compensation [note] A 2 2 Bl &
(K7 7)

Pension scheme contributions BRIRESEFEIHR

ZfizmEFHMNES

fis 7 51 K bt B 75 = 2% BT 5 34(b) AT
HE— 20 5F il B O] B2 DA B D S A 2 8
BEBENUBROIFZEMEEBR
T RBEE-ZE—NF+-A=+
—BItFERZAMNEZRHFHES
BRE-R2EEZTE—=F+=A=
+—HIEABA : ZR)EERTH
BE - HEZMEFBEH N EXW
8 c REEHBRTMA (HEZT
—=F+-_A=+—HIENEA:
ME) &= E S (WIEARR A K
EETRTRAH) cMeFBE
PUNNE

Group

rEE
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
BZE BHZE

—E-IF —F—=

T=A=1—F |Eac
L E 1E AUE A
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
2,758
1,672
198
71

wNEBIERER AR | 2014@?&157



Notes to Financial Statements B4 & 3] 2= i =F

31 December 2014 —Z—WF+-H=+—H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

(Continued)

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within

the following bands is as follows:

9.

AfimE&HiNES(E)

e HFESRIFTRAERER
ZANBEMEsELLT

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

78 2,000,001 &

& #2,500,0007T

78 2 500,001 &

& #3,000,0007T

76 #3,000,0017C &

& #3,500,0007T

Note: In prior years, certain non-director and non-chief executive

highest paid employees were granted share options and
RSUs, in respect of their services to the Group, under the
share option schemes and the RSA scheme of the Company,
respectively, further details of which are set out in note 34 to
the financial statements. The fair values of these options and
RSUs, which have been recognised in the statement of profit or
loss over the vesting period in which the performance and/or
service conditions are fulfilled, were determined as at the date
of grant and the amount included in the financial statements
for the current year is included in the above non-director and
non-chief executive, highest paid employees’ remuneration
disclosures.
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Number of employees

EBEAH

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
BHE HE

—E—mF —F—=
T2 A=1T—H [ap;i=iett=
HFE IENAEA
2
2

Hiet: RBEFER  BTRSFHIFES
RETBAEEERNERASER
HEAR TS M 20 B AR 15 A 2 B i A i =t )
Ko 52 IR 5l B 40 2 B ot 80 2 4% R A
REZRHIRD - BRE—FFEHAR
Ut B TS AR M 534 - S HEIRE R
ZREBOHZAFEEDREHAS
EE - YERERRER HRBEH
FEANERSRANER  MatAR
FEHBRRZEFEHA Lt &
SHMFEERETRAHRESHS
B -
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

31 December 2014 —Z—WF+-H=+—H
10. iR BiEH

Nine months

Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
Bz HE
—F-mF —E=F
T-A=1+—H k=
I“HEE IENAEA
HK$’'000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Group: REHE:

Current — Hong Kong X — FE — 292
Current — Mainland China NE — HEKRE 242,039 285,318
Deferred (note 24) i FE (K it 24) (2,783) (114,365)

Total tax charge for the year/period ZAFE HARF B H
A&l 171,245

(a)

(b)

(c)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been
made for the Hong Kong subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2014 as the Hong Kong
subsidiaries had no estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong. During the nine months
ended 31 December 2013, Hong Kong profits
tax had been provided at the rate of 16.5% on
the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong.

PRC corporate income tax represents tax
charged on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Mainland China. In general, the Group’s
subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are
subject to the PRC corporate income tax rate
of 25% except for certain subsidiaries which are
entitled to preferential tax rates.

The share of tax charge attributable to joint
ventures of HK$11,988,000 (nine months ended
31 December 2013: HK$387000) and the
share of tax charge attributable to associates
of HK$16,925,000 (nine months ended 31
December 2013: HK$21,115,000) are included
in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures”
and “Share of profits and losses of associates”,
respectively, in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

(a)

(b)

(c)

HREEHNBARYELES
BEEGBTERR N 2
LAE 8 5 & B BB 2 B 5t &
E-F—NWFE+_A=+AHI
FEEBANESHIELEE -
REBEE—E—=FE+=-HA=+
—HBIEAEAR - FEFEH
DR EBBEE 2T ER
T R 16.5% 2 Fi KT & -

FREAEMSHRENRPER
B BE A 2 5 AT E R B 0w A AT
B zHIE - BRETHBA
RIZEMRBGERIN AEE
EHREAREZSENHE QA
—RABRNFECEMSH
Z R AED5% o

BhHEECELHEIRA
7 111,988,000 (B = —
E—=F+-_A=+—H1
N E A : 7 #387,0007T) &
BE AR 2B N ABE
16,925,000t (B EZE—ZT—=
F+-A=+—HBItN@EA:
7 #21,115,0007T) © &5 Bl
FSTARGREIERRPZ[EG
AR EZENMEERIR
[E(EBE L N a) 2w & Eia ]
ﬁq °
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is as follows:

Group

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to
profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory rates for the
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of
its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the
effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of applicable
rates (i.e. statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates,

Profit/(loss) before tax MR RTE R
(E518)
Tax at the applicable tax RBERAMEFE
rate ZBiIE
Lower tax rates for FFE A gk 77 1478
specific provinces or BTZBRERE
local authority
Profits and losses EEEREE
attributable to joint NEZ AR
ventures and associates REE
Tax effect of unused tax RERZAEBHE
losses not recognised T IBE B 2B
A
Income not subject to tax AR Z WA
Expenses not deductible for “RAJ 3L 2 F X

tax

Tax losses utilised from
previous periods

FABEMSREZHRIEA
&8

Tax charge at the Group’s
effective rate

A B R
SR E
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31 December 2014 —Z—F+—-_A=+—H

10. iIRH &R (@)
B IR F) ROA E4A B I B 20 A
EREEBE 2 AEREFERH
RIE R (598) 2 BUE R - BUR
1 B 05 B SR 4 S R
BB A B 2R (BSASE B 2K) BRI
BLRMHRMT

REE

Year ended Nine months ended
Byl =k 48 31 December 2013

BE-®-mF HE-T—=F
+=A=+-8 +=A=+—H
L LA A
HK$’000 HK$'000 %

BT BETIT AO

1,141,506 (291,399)
285,376 (72,850) 25.0
(147,868) (174198) ©59.8

(11,777) 2,476 (0.8)
37,958 38,162 (13.4)
(50,462) (77,407) 26.5
140,656 466,288 (160.1)
(14,627) (12,226) 4.2
21.0 171,245 (58.8)
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31 December 2014 —Z—WF+-H=+—H

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 11. 8 2 5] B 5 fE 15 it F
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders SARRAMBRERNBE_Z —
of the parent for the year ended 31 December 2014 NE+—_A=+—HIEFENEAQ
includes a loss of HK$59,416,000 (nine months ended AREELMGERAN  £BAR
31 December 2013: loss of HK$39,392,000), which A /& 18 & 75 ¥53,656,0007T (& =
was arrived at after deducting other intercompany —E—=F+ZHA=1T—HI @
income of HK$55,760,000 (nine months ended 31 A& F| & 7% #596,249,0007T)
December 2013: dividend income received from a R KRB HEAE AR BB
subsidiary and other intercompany income totally 55,760,000 (B Z=F —=F 1
HK$635,641,000) from the Company’s loss of ZA=+t—HALEAER:BAR
HK$3,656,000 (nine months ended 31 December A& B A R B ER A R A S5
2013: profit of HK$596,249,000), and has been dealt #¥635,641,0007T) & - BB A B
with in the financial statements of the Company (note #59,416,000C (B E=-F —=%F
35(h)). +ZA=+—HBILLNBEAR EBEA
75 #:39,392,0007T ) (M 72 35(b)) °
12. DIVIDENDS 12. &2
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
BZE #H=
—E-ImF —E—=%F
T A=1T—H Bl hag=
IHFE IENEA
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Proposed final dividend — 20.00 BERRBRE — &R
HK cents (nine months ended WMEARNBEITR
31 December 2013: 17.80 HK N E A R20.00
cents) per ordinary share based BI(EEZZE—=
on issued share capital at the end F+-—A=+—H
of the reporting period IENE A 17.807%
i) 218,748 194,685
Less: Dividend for shares held under & : 5 [R &l 3% ) 22 B
the RSA Scheme at the end ATEIRRER
of the reporting period i 5 i A7 B B 2 (4,294) (4,648)

AEEHRIRARHREALRRFR
RENBETZERRBAFARG LH
/e

wNEBIERER AR | 2014@1&161



Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R 2% B :+
31 December 2014 —ZE—ME+=-A=+—H

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. BAGSILERIRFEELES

1 62 Digital China Holdings Limited

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year ended 31 December
2014 attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent of HK$700,953,000 (nine months ended 31
December 2013: HK$84,103,000), and the weighted
average of 1,072,267,396 (nine months ended 31
December 2013: 1,068,011,559) ordinary shares in
issue less shares held under the RSA Scheme during
the year ended 31 December 2014.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share
amount for the year ended 31 December 2014 is
based on the profit for the year ended 31 December
2014 attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent of HK$700,953,000 (nine months ended 31
December 2013: HK$84,103,000) and the weighted
average of 1,073,278,564 (nine months ended 31
December 2013: 1,083,825,536) ordinary shares,
which represented 1,072,267,396 (nine months ended
31 December 2013: 1,068,011,559) ordinary shares
in issue less shares held under the RSA Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2014, as used
in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average of 1,011,168 (nine months ended
31 December 2013: 15,813,977) ordinary shares
assumed to have been issued at no consideration on
the deemed exercise of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares relating to the Group’'s share-based incentive
schemes into ordinary shares.

2014 Annual Report

Bz &

EASREFNDEBEE=Z—H
F+-_A=+—HItFEZHA
AEBEBRKRREMN TR A B
700,953,000 (& &= = & — =
E+-"A=+—BIEA@A:;
#¥84103,0007T) A & &
—E—WE+=-_A=+—HIE
EAE T T BRI 3R M
LR E AT R D Z NE T
£01,072,267,396/% (& & — T —
=&+ -_A=+—HBILAh@EA:
1,068,011,559/% ) 5+ & o

o |1

3

HEz_Z2—NWF+=-A=+—H
IEEE2EESRAERN  THIEE
E-_ZET—WFF+-_A=+—HIL
FEZH QALK EEMNS
A /&8 #700,953,0007T (= =
TE—=F+-"A=+—HIt LA
A : 7 #84,103,0007T) & hn #E T
5 #1,073,278564K (B & = &
—=F+-_A=+—HIEN@A:
1,083,825,536/%) & @ Mk st & »
RN EBEEAERFEEARSTR
BRARBEE=-E—NFE+=A
=+ BLEFERAZEETER
f% ~1,072,267,3960% (& = = &
—=F+-_A=+—HIEN@A:
1,068,011,5590%) * A RBBEAE
B2 RESE T8 2 T Al B
ENETERERABETFEIRR
REEEETTBR 2 INETHE
1011168 (HE2—T—=F+—
A=+—RHI1E @A : 15,813,977
f%)z 2 %0 -
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R 2% Bff :+
31 December 2014 —ZE—MFE+-_HA=+—H
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1. ME -BERRE
Group rEHE

Leasehold Leasehold Fixtures
land and  improve- and office Motor Construction
buildings ments equipment vehicles  in progress Total

HELH ZER

kBT HRERE ROZERE nE ERIR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$O000 HK$0OO HK$'000  HK$'000
BETR BETR BETR BETR BRI BBTx

31 December 2014 —E-mE+ZA=1-H
At 31 December 2013 and at RZZ-=%+=A

1 January 2014: =t-BR

RZB-WFE-A-A:

Cost AE 1,005,783 165,152 972,906 47,353 146,941 2,338,135

Accumulated depreciation ZitE (66,375) (123,673) (613,119) (29,523) — (832,690)

Net carrying amount REFE 939,408 17,830 146,941
At 1 January 2014, net of RZZE-NE-A—-80"

accumulated depreciation MREHHE 41,479 359,787 146,941 1,505,445
Additions NE 8,195 73,360 83,332 167,488
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36)  WEN B AR (#7#36) 1,436 941 — 3,829
Disposals HE - (3,003) - (3,409)
Transfers B (72,059) (51) 5,929 (120,705) (186,931)
Depreciation provided during the year rEEHE (24,234) (17,246) (111,296) = (158,191)
Surplus on revaluation upon the EEREREMEL

transfer to investment properties FiEEE 5,239 - - 5,239
Exchange realignment [E R A% (6,104) (98) (1,420) (10,032)
At 31 December 2014, net of RZB-NF+-A

accumulated depreciation ES R CREICT-HyiE Sl 842,250 33,572 323,549 15,919 108,148 1,323,438
At 31 December 2014: RZE—NF

+ZA=+-8

Cost WAE 931,686 172,598 1,020,793 49,215 108,148 2,282,440

Accumulated depreciation it E (89,436) (139,026) (697,244) (33,296) —  (959,002)

Net carrying amount REFE 842,250 33572 323,549 15,919 108148 1,323,438
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1|

31 December 2014 —Z—MF+=-A=+—H
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. #j% - Jrh*u%& &8 (&)
(Continued)
Leasehold  Leasehold Fixtures
land and improve-  and office Motor  Construction
buildings ments  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HELTH RER
LkEF HERE WAZRBE RE BRIk @t
HK$'000 HK$000 HKPOOO  HK$'OOO HK$000  HK$'000
BEBTT ERTr BETT BT BETFT  BRTRT
31 December 2013 Z2-Z¥tZA=t+-H
At 1 April 2013: RZZE—=FMA—R:
Cost R AE 833,260 156,817 968,429 47,588 253,906 2,260,000
Accumulated depreciation BETE (48,712) (109,722) (560,427)  (26,102) —  (744,963)
Net carrying amount REEE 784,548 47095 408,002 21,486 253,908 1,515,037
At 1 April 2013, net of RZE-Z4MNA—-H"
accumulated depreciation NBEHE 784,548 47095 408,002 21,486 253,906 1,515,037
Additions NE 5,793 11,187 47,708 1145 74,058 139,889
Acquisition of a subsidiary WM B LA — — 53 — — 53
Disposals HE — (2,735) (17,104) (85) - (19,924)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) HEWBAR (K :#37) - 3 (2,157) (585) — (2,745)
Transfers 3 150,582 (31 3,424 - (185,882) (31,807)
Depreciation provided during the AEFEFE
period (16,672)  (14,878)  (87,572) (4,503) —  (123,625)
Exchange realignment ERAE 15,157 844 7,435 372 4,859 28,667
At 31 December 2013, net of RZE-ZF+=
accumulated depreciation =t-8" ?D[‘?,\uﬁ)?% 939,408 41479 358,787 17,830 146,941 1,505,445
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=%F
+=ZA=+-8:
Cost WAE 1,005,783 165,152 972,908 47,353 146,941 2,338,135
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (66,375) (123,673) (613,119)  (29,523) — (832,690)
Net carrying amount REFE 939,408 41,479 359,787 17,830 146,941 1,505,445
The Group’s leasehold land and buildings are situated AREB ZHE T REFHARH
in Mainland China and are held under medium term BoARE - WIARHIMALEA o
leases.
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31 December 2014 —Z—MFE+=-H=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y%  BERRE(E)
(Continued)
Company P N/NE|

Leasehold Office
improvements equipment Total

AEEE BOAZRE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BMTR  BETR

31 December 2014 —E-ImF
+=BA=+—H
At 31 December 2013 and RZE—=%F
at 1 January 2014: +=—A=+—8kK
KT —MEF
—A—8:
Cost B A{E 2,990 1182 4,172
Accumulated depreciation BRI E (2,990) (1,007) (3,997)
Net carrying amount MR EFE
At 1 January 2014, net of RZZT -4
accumulated depreciation —H—8"
MR E
Additions NE 66 66
Depreciation provided KEEHE
during the year (78) (WA}
At 31 December 2014, RZZE—mF
net of accumulated +=—A=+—8"
depreciation MR RETITE
At 31 December 2014: R-Z—MFE+—-A
=t+—8:
Cost X A{E 2,990 1,248 4,238
Accumulated depreciation BRI E (2,990) (1,085) (4,075)
Net carrying amount WREFE
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31 December 2014 —Z—WF+-H=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BEREE(E)
(Continued)

Leasehold Office
improvements equipment Total
HEEE NAERE e Et

HK$000 HK$000O  HK$OO0O
AETIT BT AETET

31 December 2013 —E—=F
+t=A=+—H
At 1 April 2013: RZZE—=F
MA—A:
Cost B A{E 2,990 1,233 4,223
Accumulated depreciation B i (2,990) (1,003) (3,993)
Net carrying amount R EFE — 230 230
At 1 April 2013, net of RZT—=%F
accumulated depreciation MmA—A -
MR R E — 230 230
Additions NE — 19 19
Disposals e — (1) (1)
Depreciation provided during the 78 B8 37 &
period — (73) (73]
At 31 December 2013, net of WKZ-ZZT—=F
accumulated depreciation +=—A=+—H
ks R E — 175 175
At 31 December 2013: R-T—=F
+=-A=+—8
Cost DN} 2,990 1182 4172
Accumulated depreciation MR R E (2,990) (1,007) (3,997)
Net carrying amount R EFE — 175 175
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31 December 2014 —Z—MFE+=-H=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. &YX
Group KEE

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
—®-mE+=A=t-—H —F-=#t-A=t—H
Investment Investment
Completed properties Completed properties
investment under investment under
properties construction 1l properties  construction Total

BREMK ' BEmK R
BREMH BREME Mt BAME BAME st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BETT BT T BT

Carrying amount at the RIS 2 REE

beginning of the reporting

period 150,470 604,913 755,383 136,452 198,745 335,197
Additions NE 78,347 639,109 717,456 — 295,095 295,095
Transfer from an owner- HEEEANE/

occupied property/ B LmAES

prepaid land premium 237,747 — 237,747 — 104,951 104,951
Transfers L8] 330,574 (330,574) = — — —
Net gain/(loss) from a BAFEEFAE

fair value adjustment FUs S (BB)

recognised in other gains R ABEZHA

in profit or loss (note 5] W %5 (f77#5) (18,988) 57,292 11,359 350 11,709

Exchange realignment FE 5 38 & (586) (4,078) 2,659 5,772 8,431

Carrying amount at the end RMEHRZIREE
of the reporting period 777,564 966,662 1,744,226 150,470 604,913 755,383

The Group’s investment properties are situated in AEBZEEMEAMRFERK
Mainland China and are held under medium term P - WIARHEAFR AR A -
leases.
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

1 68 Digital China Holdings Limited

The directors of the Company have determined that
the investment properties consist of one class of
asset, commercial properties, based on the nature,
characteristic and risks of each property. The
Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31
December 2014 based on valuations performed by
Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$1,744,226,000
(31 December 2013: HK$355,294,000) on an open
market, existing use basis. Each year, the Group’s
management decide to appoint which external valuer
to be responsible for the external valuations of the
Group’s properties. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group’s
management have discussions with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results once a year
when the valuation is performed for annual financial
reporting.

As at 31 December 2013, certain investment
properties under construction are carried at cost of
HK$400,089,000 because their fair values could not
be reliably measured due to the unique nature of the
properties and an absence of transaction activity in that
market. Management has not identified any indicators
of potential impairment.

Certain investment properties are leased to third
parties under operating leases, further summary details
of which are included in note 39(a) to the financial
statements.

At 31 December 2014, the Group has not yet obtained
the real estate ownership certificates of the Group’s
investment properties with a net carrying amount of
approximately HK$966,662,000 (31 December 2013:
HK$604,913,000) from the relevant government
authorities. The directors of the Company consider
that the relevant real estate ownership certificate will
be obtained upon the full payments of the purchase
considerations.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment
properties are included on pages 263 to 264.
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. REYE(E)

Fair value hierarchy ANEEEZR

The following table illustrates the fair value TRINAAEBZKREMENRT
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment BEAEFR:

properties:

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2014 using

R=-Z-—NF+-A=+—-HAFEEFEMFEH:

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

EEFHTE EATEE EXTUBRE

B8R E FHEE FHEE

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(Z&H—) (58 o) (ZH=)
Recurring fair value BERATEE HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
measurement for: FER: BET T BET T BT T BT T

Commercial properties EEX/ES — 1,744,226 1,744,226

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2013 using
RZE—=ZF+_A=+—HAFEEFEEH
Quoted
prices  Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs Total
EEEME BEAAUHR EATAHR
B R E A E A E KB
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(&g (£/H =) (EH4=)
Recurring fair value BEBALEE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
measurement for: AER: AETT  ABTRT BETT  ABTRT
Commercial properties BEX/ES — — 355,294 355,294
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RAFERN  RER—REL=2
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no A EERATEEFE  MRF
transfers into or out of Level 3 (nine months ended 31 H=mEEAREL(HE-_ST—=
December 2013: Nil). F+_A=+—HIENER: &) -
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15.

1 70 Digital China Holdings Limited

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Reconciliation of fair value measurement categorised
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

31 December 2014 — &

15.

/_\*EEA#

—mE+—A=+—H

REMEE)

—ZRVFEEFENA

FEEFEZHK:

Commercial

properties
[EEZYES
HK$'000
BT T
Carrying amount at 1 April 2013 RZE-—=FMWHA—-HAZREE 174,660
Additions NE 58,974
Transfer from prepaid land premium EREEM LA 104,951
Net gain from a fair value adjustment BRFERFAR 2FRR
recognised in other gains in profit or MR RERZEMIE
loss 11,708
Exchange realignment bE X, 38 B 5,000
Carrying amount at 31 December 2013 HRRZ-ZZ—=F+=-A=+—H
and 1 January 2014 RZZ-—NHFE-A—-BZIREEAE 355,294
Additions NE 717,456
Transfer from owner-occupied properties ®EEAEEAWERBESLIHES
and prepaid land premium 237,747
Transfer from investment properties ERAEEREBRENE
carried at cost 400,089
Net gain from a fair value adjustment BERAVFEEAE 2 F RS
recognised in other gains in MRAEBR 2 HM KR
profit or loss 38,304
Exchange realignment BE 5, 58 & (4,664)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2014 HZ-Z—WMF+=-_A=+—H
ZWREE 1,744,226
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15. REME(E
DFEESR(E)
SAT A A 8 W 2 M0 1 2 AT A

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used

and the key inputs to the valuation of investment AERBERZE:
properties:
Valuation
techniques Significant unobservable input Range or weighted average
FE AR T ERTABRINEE 5 0 R P
2013
—T—=%F
Commercial Discounted cash  Estimated rental value From 15 2.04
properties flow method (per s.g.m. and per month) to 398
[EESES MRBReREE BEEEXEEGETHIKREEA) Hh15%£398
Long term vacancy rate From 10% 16%
to 30%
REZ=EX H10% Z30%
Discount rate From 4.1% From 6%
to 6% to 6.7%
AL 3R & H4.1%ZE6% FHB%E6.7%
Commercial Hypothetical Unit rate (per s.g.m.) (HK%) From 6,250 From 7,900
properties development to 16,250 to 14,000
method
BEME R& R E BEUEXR(EFHIREET) 6,250 7,900
16,250 14,000
Construction costs (per s.q.m.) (HKS$) From 4,250 From 5,000
to 7,500 to 52,000
BERKNEGFFARGEET) H4,250% f5,000%
7,500 52,000

Other costs and expenses/

From 18.69%

From 24.67%

construction costs to 29.78% to 29.09%
Hit A RRAE S EKA F18.69% = H24.67%%
29.78% 29.09%

Discount rate From 7.6% From 5%
to 8% to 10%

Ah I8 & H7.6%Z8% H5% ZE10%

AEECHREXZSHEMERAE
PHz&ERRERESERRE
EEMEZZEME - HRRER
CEXEAZT AL -

The Group has determined that the highest and best
use of the commercial properties at the measurement
date would be to convert those properties for
residential purposes. For strategic reasons, the
properties are not being used in this manner.
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is
estimated using assumptions regarding the benefits and
liabilities of ownership over the asset’s life. This method
involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a
property interest. A market-derived discount rate is
applied to the projected cash flow in order to establish
the present value of the income stream associated with
the asset.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing
of inflows and outflows are determined by events such
as rent reviews, lease renewal and related reletting,
redevelopment and refurbishment. The appropriate
duration is driven by market behaviour that is a
characteristic of the class of property. The periodic
cash flow is estimated as gross income less vacancy,
non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease
incentives, maintenance costs, agent and commission
costs and other operating and management expenses.
The series of periodic net operating income, along with
an estimate of the terminal value anticipated at the
end of the projection period, is then discounted.

In the case of investment property under construction,
estimates of capital outlays and construction cost,
development costs, and anticipated sales income are
estimated to arrive at a series of net cash flows that
are then discounted over the projected development
and marketing periods. Specific development risks such
as planning, zoning, licences, and building permits are
separately valued.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated
rental value and the market rent growth rate per
annum in isolation would result in a significant
increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the investment
properties. A significant increase/(decrease) in the long
term vacancy rate and the discount rate in isolation
would result in a significant decrease/(increase) in
the fair value of the investment properties. Generally,
a change in the assumption made for the estimated
rental value is accompanied by a directionally similar
change in the rent growth per annum and the discount
rate and an opposite change in the long term vacancy
rate.
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31 December 2014 —Z—WF+-H=+—H

16. PREPAID LAND PREMIUMS 16. FEft T #HE £
Group
rEE
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
—E-HmE —F—=
T=A=1—F [iEas
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Carrying amount at the beginning of R EHVI ZIREE
the reporting period 201,751 508,790
Additions NE = 9,613
Transfers LR (50,816) (319,658)
Amortisation during the year/period K& 8RS & £ (4,375) (3.882)
Exchange realignment b 5, 8 (1,382) 6,888
Carrying amount at the end of the RBEE KR ZIREE
reporting period 201,751
Current portion included in MENH D BIEEFER R
prepayments, deposits and other B fRekHME
receivables W k1B (5,253)
Non-current portion FER BB D 196,498
The Group’s leasehold lands are situated in Mainland AEBEB2HE L MR RE R
China and are held under medium term leases. B WLAREAEANFE -
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, all R-E-—HWE+-_A=+—Hk=
land use rights of the Group's leasehold land situated E—=F4+ZA=+—H B@K
in Mainland China had been issued by the relevant g e I g S el C N |
government authority. ELBEMBELIMERES -
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17. GOODWILL 17. &
The amount of goodwill capitalised as an asset, arising E W g % F B AR E A mE AN
from the acquisition of subsidiaries, was as follows: BEZABSENT:
Group
rEE
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
=F-@OmF —E=F
T=A=1+—H =k
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BEETRT BT T
At the beginning of the reporting REREHY
period:
Cost X A {E 261,262 258,176
Accumulated impairment 2ERE (17,592) (19.164)
Net carrying amount R B 243,670 239,012
Cost at the beginning of the RS2 K AE -
reporting period, net of B RETRE
accumulated impairment 243,670 239,012
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36) WX BEHTE A 7]
(K17236) 1,032,726 —
Exchange realignment PE 5 58 % (1,581) 4,658
Cost at the end of the reporting RIFERRZLAE -
period, net of accumulated ks 25 RE
impairment 1,274,815 243,670
At the end of the reporting period: ¥R -
Cost X B 1,292,407 261,262
Accumulated impairment 2ERE (17,592) (17.592)
Net carrying amount R S E 1,274,815 243,670
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17. GOODWILL (Continued)

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is
allocated to the following cash-generating units for
impairment testing:

° Industry application software unit and solutions
cash-generating unit; and

° Rural information services cash-generating unit.

Industry application software unit and solutions

cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the industry application
software and solutions cash-generating unit is
determined based on value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a
five-year period approved by senior management. The
discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 15%
(31 December 2013: 14%) and cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate
of 3% (31 December 2013: 3%).

Rural information services cash-generating unit
The recoverable amount of the rural information
services cash-generating unit is determined based on
a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The discount rate
applied to cash flow projections is 17% and cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a
growth rate of 3%.

Key assumptions were used in the value in use
calculation of the industry application software and
solutions cash-generating unit and the rural information
services cash-generating unit.
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17. GOODWILL (Continued) 17. BHE (&)

1 7 6 Digital China Holdings Limited

The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to
determine the value assigned to the budgeted gross
margin is the average gross margins achieved in
the period/year immediately before the budget year,
increased for expected efficiency improvements, and
expected market development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is after tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the cash-generating
unit.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market
development of the industry application software
and solutions and the rural information services,
and discounts rates are consistent with external
information sources.
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. Eith B &S E
Group KEE

Deferred
Patents and development Systems
licences costs software Total
EFRER iE iE
T A BERE RE&H At
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T B¥TRT ABETT BETR

31 December 2014 —2-pmEF
t=ZRA=t—H
At 1 January 2014: RZT—MF
—A—A:
Cost KA E 38,965 5,664 40,799 85,428
Accumulated amortisation and REt# i RRE
impairment (10,946) (2,267) (35,649) (48,862)
Net carrying amount IR EF A 3,397 5,150 36,566
Cost at 1 January 2014, net of RZZE—HE—-—HF—H
accumulated amortisation and ZHARE - MR ZR
impairment ST OB E 36,566
Additions NE 21,497
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36) U B8 BT B A A
(K1 #36) 19,375 = 19,375
Amortisation provided during the year 2N # 84 (6,620) (1,248) (3,577) (11,445)
Exchange realignment IE 5 3% 172) (20) (15) (207)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZT—MmMF
+ZA=+—H 2,129 23,055
At 31 December 2014: R-T—ImF
+ZA=+—8:
Cost A E 58,340 5,664 62,296 126,300
Accumulated amortisation and 2Rt EE RORE
impairment (17,738) (3,535) (39,241) (60,514)
Net carrying amount iR T F (E 2129 23,055 65,786
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18. b fER & &E ()

Deferred
Patents and development Systems
licences costs software Total
R i AT
=T Al 35 HERAE  Road #Et

HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'00O
BT T AETT  AETT  AETT

31 December 2013 —E-=F
+t=R=t—8H
At 1 April 2013: R-ZT—=%
MA—A:
Cost K ANE 12,137 5,664 35,290 53,091
Accumulated amortisation and 2t # i RRE
impairment (6,418) (1,377) (35,217) (43,012)
Net carrying amount R EFE 5,719 4,287 73 10,079
Cost at 1 April 2013, net of RZT—=FMA—H
accumulated amortisation and ZHAE - HEZR
impairment ST 8 MR E 5,719 4,287 73 10,079
Additions NE 26,828 — 5,450 32,278
Acquisition of a subsidiary 1 B8 Bt /&8 A 7 — — 59 59
Amortisation provided during the 7N H ) 8
period (4,917) (968) (436) (6,321)
Exchange realignment [ 338 389 78 4 471
At 31 December 2013 RZT—=%F
+=-—A=+—H 28,019 3,397 5,150 36,566
At 31 December 2013: RZE—=%F
+=ZRA=+—8:
Cost B AME 38,965 5,664 40,799 85,428
Accumulated amortisation and 2R RORE
impairment (10,946) (2,267) (35,649) (48,862)
Net carrying amount REFE 28,019 3,397 5,150 36,566
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company
NN
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
—E-mEF —F—=

===t =l - — S =+—H

HK$’'000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Unlisted shares, at cost LMD - RAAARE 699,407
Capital contribution in respect Nkt HEE 2

of employee share-based e EREE

compensation 176,462

847,937 875,869

Market value of listed shares i zmE 9,373,309 6,234,132

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBARFEMT

Place of incorporation/

Issued ordinary/

Percentage of equity

registration and registered attributable to the
Name business share capital Company Principal activities
SR BROLER,/ AAAEGES
8 BRREBLE R A BOL TEXH
Direct Indirect
EE B
Digital China (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands US$5,125 100 — Investment holding
KBRBARES 5125% 1T REER
Digital China Limited Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Investment holding
HHBEERAA EE BT REER
Digital China (China) Limited** PRC/Mainland China HK$1,000,000,000 — 100 Distribution of IT
HHEE (A ERRR" hEhEAE #%1,000,000,0007C products
SHITER
Chengdu Digital China Limited** PRC/Mainland China HK$30,000,000 — 100 Distribution of IT
REBEMETEER AR RE R AR 7 #30,000,0007T products
AWITER
Shenyang Digital China Limited** PRC/Mainland China HK$39,000,000 — 100 Distribution of IT
EHWNEEERA R hEEAE #139,000,0007C products
SHITER

BNBBERBRAR | 2014@?&179



\

T
31 December 2014 —Z—WF+-H=+—H

19. R BAS 2R & (&)

il

Notes to Financial Statements Bt 7% ¥} 3% Mt

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

1 80 Digital China Holdings Limited

(Continued)

Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity

registration and registered attributable to the
Name business share capital Company Principal activities

i3y BROEER/ AAAEGES

8 BREREBLE M RAE BAl TEXH

Direct Indirect

=§:3 BF:3
Shanghai Digital China Limited** PRC/Mainland China HK$285,000,000 — 100 Distribution of IT
LEBNEBERAR" RE R AR 7% %285,000,0007C products
SHITER
Digital China (Shenzhen) Limited** PRC/Mainland China HK$12,000,000 — 100 Distribution of IT
WHNEE(RINERRA" RE R E AR 7 #12,000,0007T products
AWITER
Xian Digital China Limited** PRC/Mainland China HK$10,000,000 — 100 Distribution of IT
ALRHMNEBERAR" RE R AR # 110,000,0007¢ products
SHITER
Nanjing Digital China Limited** PRC/Mainland China HK$3,000,000 — 100 Distribution of IT
ERENBEERDA RE R E AR 7 %3,000,0007C products
AWITER
Guangzhou Digital China Limited* PRC/Mainland China HK$12,000,000 — 100 Distribution of IT
BN EBEER AR RE R AR 7 112,000,0007T products
SHITER
Jinan Digital China Limited** PRC/Mainland China HK$6,000,000 — 100 Distribution of IT
EEeNEEERAA RE R E AR 7 #6,000,0007T products
AWITER
Digital China Marketing & Services Ltd.  British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
HEBERARKE 1ET REERK
Digital China Technology Limited Hong Kong/Mainland HK$50,000,000 — 100 Distribution of IT
BMNEERRERBRAA China 7% #50,000,0007T products
R/ HEKRE SHITER
Digital China (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100 Distribution of IT
WHEE(BER)BRAA B 7 #10,0007T products
AWTER
E-Olympic International Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100  Holding of trademarks
HEERARRE 1ET RAEBER
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

19. R BAS 2R & (&)

(Continued)

Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity

registration and registered attributable to the
Name business share capital Company Principal activities

MR BROEER/ AAAEGES

8 BREREBLE M RA BAl TEXH

Direct Indirect

=§:3 BF:3
Digital China Networks, Ltd. British Virgin Islands US$10,000,000 — 100 Investment holding
BMEBEREERAF" EBERRHS 10,000,000% 1t REZRK
Digital China Networks (HK) Limited Hong Kong/Mainland HK$810 — 100 Investment holding
HHEBRE (BE)BERRA China %8107 and distribution of
BB/ AR networking products
REZREDHBRER
Digital China Networks (Beijing) Limited” PRC/Mainland China HK$3,408,562 — 100 Development and
BMEBRE (LR AERAR hE/hEARE J8 13,408,562 distribution of
networking products
RERDHEBRER
Grace Glory Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 — 100 Investment holding
BREEEBERAR KBHRBARES 157 REER
Beijing Digital China Limited+ PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000,000 — 100 Distribution of IT
LRGN EBER AT R AR AR #1,000,000,0007C products
FHITER
Beijing Digital China Supply Chain Services PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 — 100 Distribution of IT
Co., Ltd.* FE R E AR A E #10,000,0007T products
ERMBEHEEREERAR AWITER
Shenzhen Instant Logistics Co., Ltd.” PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 — 100 Provision of logistic
RIMEDRERRH hE/hEARE A R #50,000,0007 services
REWR R
Digital China (Zhengzhou) Limited* PRC/Mainland China RMB5,100,000 — 100 Distribution of IT
BN (BM)BRAF RE R E AR A R #5,100,0007T products
AWITER
Talent Gain Developments Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 — 100 Investment holding
KBHRBARES (E REZRK

NS ERABR QA
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(Continued)

Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity

registration and registered attributable to the
Name business share capital Company Principal activities

HEMRL BROEER/ ARAEGES

-1 BEREBLE R A BAK TEEK

Direct Indirect

HE EF:3
Power Gateway Limited British Virgin Islands US$100 - 100 Investment holding
ERERRES 100% 7T REZR
Guangzhou Digital China Information PRC/ Mainland China US$50,000,000 — 100 Distribution of IT
Technology Co., Ltd.** R A 50,000,000 7t products
BN EEEIRRBERAA S HITE @
Hangzhou Digital China Limited** PRC/Mainland China HK$3,000,000 — 100 Distribution of IT
e EBEERAR" FE R E AR 7 %3,000,0007C products
HEITE M
Digital China Software Limited** PRC/Mainland China US$6,000,000 — 100 Investment holding
BNEEHEEERAF B B K BE 6,000,000% 7t RAEEK
Digital China Macao Commercial Offshore Macao MQP1,000,000 — 100 Distribution of IT
Limited P R P9%1,000,0007T products
BN RPIBFEERBEERAA S HITE @
Fuzhou Digital China Company Limited** ~PRC/Mainland China HK$10,000,000 — 100 Distribution of IT
BHBNEEERAR* hE B AR 710,000,000 products
DRITER
Changsha Digital China Company PRC/Mainland China HK$20,000,000 — 100 Distribution of IT
Limited** B AR 7 #20,000,0007T products
ROWMBBERAA! S HITE @
Digital China (Hefei) Company Limited** ~ PRC/Mainland China HK$10,000,000 — 100 Distribution of IT
WINETE (AE)BRAR! hE B AR 710,000,000 products
DRITER
Cellular Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
BRRABRAR EE BT REEKR
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Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registered attributable to the

Name

1

business
MK
BRREBHE

share capital

BRTEER/

R A

Company

ARRELER
Bak

Direct

H#

Indirect

GE:3

Principal activities

TEEH

Digital China Information Service

PRC/Mainland China

RMB458,905,958

42.44%

Systems integration

Company Ltd.
BHEBEERBRHERAF

hEhEARE

A R %458,905,9587T

services, application
software development,

Digital China Jinxin Technology Co., Ltd.+ PRC/Mainland China
BHEBEERBERNAERRA

Beijing Zhongnong Xinda Information
Technology Limited

hEhEAE

PRC/Mainland China
R A R

ERFPREEFERMARRAF

RMBB0,060,000
A R #860,080,0007T

RMB5,000,000
A K #5,000,0007T

maintenance

and outsourcing,
consultancy and training
services

REERRY - AT
FE - RERIERE -
o R S5 A R

42.44%* Technology
development and
promotion, technology
consultancy and
services, computer
systems services and
business of financial
specialised equipment
RF R - Rl
ARRH  AERRGR
B AREREHRER
BEH

Provision of rural
information related
services

REENERREERSE

42.44**

+ The English names of these companies are direct + ZERRZRXEBEZEFME
transliterations of their Chinese registered names. 2P XATE -

A The Chinese names are the trade names but not the official A ZERNRZHXERBDES AW I
names of the these. JEHIEHX AT -

# Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law. # BEAEEEZMELRREZINED

.,

~ Registered as Sino-foreign joint venture under PRC law. ~ BEPBEEEEMELAPIEEDR

=,

S Digital China Information Service Company Ltd., a Shenzhen * 16 )M B0 15 B AR TS AR 10 B BR 2 B R 0R
listed company, is accounted for as a subsidiary of the Group INETAR - EAEBERIHERZAA
even though the Group has only a 42.44% equity interest in H)42.44% A% 1 + HEAR #% Uk Bt & T st
this company based on the factors explained in the note below ARy e ) - S
and note 3 to the financial statements. ZARDBIERAEENMBRA -

* % * %

These companies are the wholly-owned subsidiaries of Digital
China Information Service Company Ltd. and, accordingly, are
accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the Company’s control
over them.

NS ERABR QA

ZERRR/BMBBEERBEEROE
RARIMZEHEAWMBE AR - At -
ENARBE ZERE BRI - &
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1 84 Digital China Holdings Limited

(Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year/period or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Except for Digital China (HK) Limited, Digital China
Limited, Digital China Technology Limited, Digital China
Networks (HK] Limited, Digital China Macao Commercial
Offshore Limited and Cellular Investments Limited, the
statutory audits for the above subsidiaries were not
performed by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another
member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

In August 2013, Digital China Information Service Co.,
Ltd. ("DCITS"), an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an absorption and merger
agreements (the “Absorption and Merger Agreements”)
with Shenzhen Techo Telecom Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen
Techo Telecom”) in relation to, among other things,
the merger of DCITS into Shenzhen Techo Telecom by
absorption (the “Absorption and Merger”) pursuant to
the terms of the Absorption and Merger Agreements
and the asset restructuring of Shenzhen Techo Telecom
(the “Asset Restructuring”). Shenzhen Techo Telecom is
a company with limited liability established under the
laws of the PRC and its A shares are listed on The
Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Pursuant to the Absorption and Merger Agreements
and the Asset Restructuring:

(a) Shenzhen Techo Telecom issued 21,186,440
ordinary shares to Kunshan Shenchang Technology
Limited, the existing single largest shareholder
of Shenzhen Techo Telecom holding 19,897,057
A shares of Shenzhen Techo Telecom, for a cash
consideration of RMB200 million;

2014 Annual Report

EERBLERAMBZARAMER
AHAEBEARFEE HE2EER
EAFERLHAGEEEFECE
RERfD - EER R E b KB
REEHR - BEREERTE -

BRR M B8 (FB)ERAA - 1M
BWARAR - MBI ER
BRRA M BHEREE(ELE
PRAAE] - 4 BRAS R P B = P R R
BERAARBREEGR AT
S bl B A B A FE IS R
WIEMRE B L KGR AN EBAKLR
KB RN F 15 P ELAL 2 BR AR AR B
P&tz e

R-ZZE—=F/\A ARFAHEFE
2 B MR F 1 N B 5 R RB R
MAERAR ([T EERE) &%
YR EERDBERRR(CRINK
KEBE DT LTI A HF a3 (TR UL
BHHED  EREBERINALE
E R IR A §F 175 3 1R SR AR T3
XE G IHIER RS (RKE H =
BDIETRINKEEEESA
(BEEEAD - RINKELEEER
BRBEDEEKRINARLQTE - HA
BRERINEFEFR S LT

RERKEHFHELEEEMR:

FINANEEABFEEREAR
B00E B TREILTRER
AR AA31721,186,440
REER  ER2FRIKLE
FEEME—HRARKRRE ®HF&
ZFIIIK K E 519,897,057 A%
AR%

(a)
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19. INVESTMENTS

IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(b) DCITS merged into Shenzhen Techo Telecom by
absorption in accordance with the relevant PRC
laws and all of its assets, liabilities, business
(consisting of the IT Services Business) and
employees were injected or assumed by Shenzhen
Techo Telecom. Meanwhile, the then 60.98%
and 39.02% equity interests in DCITS held by
Digital China Software Limited ("“DCSL’), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and the other
shareholders of DCITS (the “Other Shareholders
of DCITS"), respectively, were also cancelled and
DCITS was deregistered pursuant to the applicable
PRC laws; and

(c) a total number of 319,399,894 ordinary shares
(the “Consideration Shares”) were issued by
Shenzhen Techo Telecom to the then shareholders

of DCITS in following manner:

(i) 194,770,055 ordinary shares to DCSL; and

(ii) 124,629,839 ordinary shares to Other

Shareholders of DCITS.

As part of the Absorption and Merger, each of the
then shareholders of DCITS entered into a profit
compensation agreement (the “Profit Compensation
Agreement”) with Shenzhen Techo Telecom. Pursuant
to the Profit Compensation Agreement entered into
between DCSL and Shenzhen Techo Telecom, DCSL
agreed to pay a share-based compensation to Shenzhen
Techo Telecom by way of selling such number of the
Consideration Shares held by it back to Shenzhen Techo
Telecom at an aggregate nominal price of RMB1.00 (the
“Shenzhen Techo Telecom Compensation Shares”) and
such Shenzhen Techo Telecom Compensation Shares
to be repurchased by Shenzhen Techo Telecom will be
cancelled.

19. R BAS 2R & (&)

WIS EEREIRIEFES
BSR R AR 5 S ARYIK
REE HEHEE - AfF
7% (RITRISZE4AK) e
BE AR KK EE AR
KRS EEEE - R - AA
Gl NG R
HERAR (18 ISEE]) E R
15 {5 BB 7% H b A% BB ([4
WEEREEMAE] S5
AR @5 2 R%60.98%
N39.02% R EE I « 1415
EERGERBERANPEE
BEFHEEL R

(b)

RYNAK HEE L AT 77 M
WIS E S REE AR REST
4 319,399,894 % & i@ A
(TRERMDD :

(c)

M ™\ % % &, #E T
194,770,055/ ¥* @&
s K&

[ 485 15 B R 7S H b I%
H 3% 17124,629,839/%
L@ o

(i)

ERRMEA HEHN—8D - 15
SERBERABRRERYAALE
{5 /T3 B w18 17 = (T8 7 4 (B 17
) e REBMEBRFERYIANE
ERIM W BN ME % - BB ET
R B MR A S EBAE AR &
ERHE Ui RBERER
AR®1.007T - BAFEHENR
BRO (DRINAEEEHERD])
EREARIANKERE - WERIIAK
BEELQEER  RINARESEHER
T AL -

NS ERABR QA
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IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

The number of the Shenzhen Techo Telecom
Compensation Shares for each of the relevant financial
years shall be calculated based on:

(a) any shortfall between the projected net profits of
merged group for the years ended 31 December
2013 and 2014 and for the financial year ending
31 December 2015 and the actual net profits of
merged group for each of these financial years
(the “Income Approach Compensation”); and

(b) any audited decrease from the estimated asset
value of the non-controlling interests invested by
DCITS in DigiWin Software Co., Ltd., a limited
liability company established under the laws of the
PRC, and SJI Inc., a company listed on Jasdaqg, the
Tokyo Stock Exchange, Inc. as at 31 December
2013, 2014 and 2015 set out in the valuation
report (the “Market Approach Compensation”).

As at the date of approval of these financial
statements, no compensation is considered necessary
to be accrued in relation to the Income Approach
Compensation and Market Approach Compensation.

2014 Annual Report
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(Continued)

Upon the completion of the Absorption and Merger,
the indirect holding by the Company in approximately
60.98% equity interests in DCITS was effectively
exchanged to approximately 45.17% equity interests in
Shenzhen Techo Telecom, and Shenzhen Techo Telecom
became an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. As a result, DCSL became the single largest
shareholder of Shenzhen Techo Telecom and DCSL has
rights to nominate three out of the six non-independent
directors and two out of the three independent
directors of the board of directors of Shenzhen Techo
Telecom upon the completion of the Absorption and
Merger. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the equity holdings in Shenzhen Techo Telecom are
dispersed in a way that other shareholders have not
organised and cannot easily organise their holdings so
that the Group can exercise more voting power than
the minority shareholders. Therefore the directors of
the Company are of the view that the Company has de
facto control over Shenzhen Techo Telecom.

Prior to the Asset Restructuring, Shenzhen Techo
Telecom was principally engaged in the trading business
of liquid crystal film display panel products and after the
Absorption and Merger Agreement became effective,
Shenzhen Techo Telecom discontinued its existing
business. As a result, the Absorption and Merger
does not constitute a business combination under
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations and was accounted
for in the Group’s consolidated financial statements as
a continuation of the financial statements of DCITS,
together with a deemed issue of shares by DCITS. This
deemed issue of shares by DCITS is accounted for
as an equity-settled share-based payment transaction
whereby DCITS has received the net assets of Shenzhen
Techo Telecom, generally cash, together with the listing
status of Shenzhen Techo Telecom. As the listing
status does not qualify for recognition as an asset,
and therefore was expensed in profit or loss as listing
expense of HK$1,216,133,000, which was calculated
based on the fair value of the shares that are deemed
to have been issued by DCITS, less the fair value of
the net assets of Shenzhen Techo Telecom, as at the
completion date of the Absorption and Merger.

FEEARKAE G EIEE  AQFHE
ERHENEEEE R 460.98%
B0 % A B A B R B S A B0 R Y
AHEBIEHIA517% D - FIIAK S
BEAKARNARNEEIEE B
EHEB AR - At - BIERK A
FINANEFE—FRARE  WE
ERRRAEHEBEREEEZRIKR
HEEZEBCRANAFEBILE
EFN AR =ZEABYEEFTHM
8- RRARIMEBERE  FIIKK
BEENERMRRTED R - EM%
B R B AR 5 i 48 55 40 9 80 IR
W AmASE BRI LAITE D SR
REZMEERE B AREES
REARAREFNANEFHEE
PR A o

EEESHZ FIAXEREE
B BREERATRAREROE
SER - BRE OF £ A
FYARABERIEERBEER - B
g AR EHBEERIERE
B REERBIFLES R
EMEEAN  MREASEGE
ISR RTEAMIEEE RS Y
EHRERMTEE  BRSEE B R
TSR BETRRAD - 14515 B RIS
PR EREBETROE R B
HEENBROZNRS B EER
BHETRIALEENFEEE -
FERREBEE R FIINKXALEED
ETHAL c AR ETHI DA ]
ENERGHE Bt EmEABK
1,216,133,0007c#% & AL £ B &5
KPR ZeBERERKEHS
HZERE  ERSIEEBRER
BETRHD AT EEREZI
ARBEFEENAFEETES
m o
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(Continued)

Further details of the transactions are included in
previous announcements dated at 1 August 2013 and
26 August 2013.

On 26 February 2014, the name of Shenzhen Techo
Telecom was changed its company name to Digital China
Information Service Company Ltd. (“DCIS”).

On 22 July 2014 and 20 August 2014, DCIS entered
into a share purchase agreement and related
supplemental acquisition agreements (collectively
the “Acquisition Agreements”) with the shareholders
of Beijing Zhongnong Xinda Information Technology
Limited (“Zhongnong Xinda”), pursuant to which
the shareholders of Zhongnong Xinda (“the Original
Shareholders of Zhongnong Xinda”) agreed to sell
and DCIS agreed to acquire 100% equity interests in
Zhongnong Xinda (the “Acquisition”). Zhongnong Xinda is
a private company with limited liability established under
the laws of the PRC and is principally engaged in the
rural information related services. The total purchase
consideration was settled by:

(a) issuance of 20,520,227 new shares of DCIS
to the Original Shareholders of Zhongnong
Xinda (the “Zhongnong Xinda Consideration
Shares”). After completion of the issuance of
the Zhongnong Xinda Consideration Shares, the
equity interests in DCIS held indirectly by the
Company was reduced from 45.17% to 43.12%.
The Zhongnong Xinda Consideration Shares were
listed on The Shenzhen Stock Exchange Limited
on 25 December 2014. The fair value of the
issued Zhongnong Xinda Consideration Shares was
HK$846,460,000 which was determined using
the valuation technigue and is under Level 2 of
the fair value measurement; and

2014 Annual Report
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(Continued)

(b) cash of RMB213,000,000, which was raised from
issuance of 7,171,717 new shares (the “Placing
Shares”) at RMB33 per share (the “Placement”).
After completion of the issuances of the Placing
Shares, the equity interests in DCIS held indirectly
by the Company was further reduced from
4312% to 42.44%. The Placing Shares were
listed on The Shenzhen Stock Exchange Limited
on 13 January 2015.

As part of the Acquisition, DCIS also entered into
a profit compensation agreement and related
supplemental profit compensation agreements
(collectively the “Zhongnong Xinda Profit Compensation
Agreements”) with the Original Shareholders of
Zhongnong Xinda, pursuant to which the Original
Shareholders of Zhongnong Xinda agreed to pay a cash-
based compensation or a share-based compensation or
a combination of cash-based compensation and share-
based compensation to DCIS if there is any shortfall
between the cumulative actual net profit and the
cumulative committed net profit of Zhongnong Xinda for
the financial year ended 31 December 2014 and each
of the financial years ending 31 December 2015 and
2016. The payment methods would be fully decided by
the Original Shareholders.

The compensation for each of the relevant financial
years shall be calculated based on any shortfall between
the projected net profits of Zhongnong Xinda for the
financial year ended 31 December 2014 and each of
the financial years ending 31 December 2015 and
2016 and the actual net profits of Zhongnong Xinda
for each of these financial years.

A R #213,000,0007T 2 3R
& BEERNBTERAAR
¥337T 27171, 717 B B 5
(MEsEkmNDIREESE]) -
REXRBTESERMNE &K
ARIMERBHEEE ZR
W AR4312% #E — H F > =
4R.44% ° BEERMR =T —
AFE—A+=BHEZFIEER
SR ET °

(b)
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MERZRE  FREERBERRA
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(Continued)

As part of the Acquisition Agreements, DCIS committed
to give rewards to the certain management who
were also the existing shareholders of Zhongnong
Xinda (the “Management Shareholders”) if certain
predetermined performance conditions are fulfiled
which included but not limited to (1) the cumulative
actual net profit exceeds the cumulative committed
net profit of Zhongnong Xinda for the financial year
ended 31 December 2014 and each of the financial
years ending 31 December 2015 and 2016; and (2)
the Management Shareholders do not resign from
Zhongnong Xinda as at 31 December 2017. The
rewards, which are considered as remuneration to
the Management Shareholders, are calculated based
on 50% of the surplus between the cumulative actual
net profits and the cumulative committed net profit
(the “Surplus”), should be accrued based on the best
estimation of the Surplus at every financial year end
of 2014, 2015 and 2016 in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

IN SUBSIDIARIES

As at the date of approval of these financial
statements, no compensation and rewards are
considered necessary to be accrued in relation to the
profit compensation and rewards related to Zhongnong
Xinda.
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INVESTMENTS

(Continued)
Although the Group’s equity interests in DCIS held

IN SUBSIDIARIES

19. R BAS 2R & (&)

HRKEERREESHEARAE

indirectly by the Company was reduced to 42.44% as a ERE A @IS E B 2 ANE B iR
result of the Acquisition and Placement, the Group still FA2.44% AEB N BERER T

retained its rights to nominate three out of the six non- BB EECEEGRANEEE L
independent directors of the board of directors of DCIS. Exdhm=E ZEINFLEEL2HE

Taking into account of the Group’s power to participate
in the operational and financial activities of DCIS,
distribution of key shareholders and their beneficial

REBEECEENWHER 2/
7‘7 BRBRRREZ RS RRN
DEMBENRERA - ARG

shareholders as well as historical voting patterns, and BRK/SEEZZRRRZERT
the existence of any contractual arrangement among EEREHNLZHEE)  KAGE
the shareholders and/or their beneficial shareholders, if ERE MEEENERRIED

any, the directors of the Company are of the view that

AR BRFEREESBBARE

the equity holdings in DCIS are dispersed in a way that R EERRERZIABNER
other shareholders have not organised and the practical J—L R - B A& BRI ATTE

risk to organise their holdings to outvote the Group in
the shareholders’ meeting of DCIS is remote so that
the Group can still exercise more voting power than
the minority shareholders. Therefore, the directors of
the Company are of the view that the Company still
retains de facto control over DCIS. Further details are
included in note 3 to these financial statements.

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interests are set out below:

LLDHBRREZMRERE - Eitt -
$ AEER/ANRBHBBREE
BREEDMEMEGIE - FHABRE
R T U 5 B 1S R MY S -

BAEERFERBE 2 AEE KR
NEIZFHBWOT:

31 December

31 December

2014 2013
—2-NmF —F-=%
TZAZ=+—F Jyeial=
Percentage of equity interest held JFiEREZREADN
by non-controlling interests: g A=)
DCIS HIBELE 54.83%
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(Continued)

Profit/(loss) for the year/period
allocated to non-controlling
interests:

DCIS and its subsidiaries

DENIFERER 2
AEE HEET
(BR) :

HEBERNENE AT

Accumulated balances of non-
controlling interests at the
reporting date:

DCIS and its subsidiaries

RIEMB 2 FEIE IiE
wmH) R RRER

Year Nine months

ended ended

31 December 31 December
2014 2013

BZE HE
=F-@OF —E=F
+t=A=+-5 [EECENEE
IEFE lE @A
HK$’'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
197,989 (544,671)
2,200,984 1,269,153

HIBERRENEB AT
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19. INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts
disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations:

19. RMBATZRE (H)
TRIRAEE L HB A2 8
BAKEES - REMEBERAED
AZEHA NS ERE

DCIS and its subsidiaries

HEEERENBAR
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
BZE HZE
—E-MF —F—=
T=A=1—H [peEc
LEFE LIENEA
HK$’'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Revenue U A 8,178,632 7,307,431
Listing expense relating to the Wi a PrEIE 2
Absorption and Merger EmEA
(defined as note 19) (B EFZ K :19) — (1,216,133)
Total other expenses BT 8% (1,069,015) (884,089)
Profit/(loss) for the year/period NEE /HEER
(E18) 351,457 (902,919)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) AFE /HiRE 2 @K
for the year/period @/ (8@ 323,238 (925,444)

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

—®-NF —T=F

TZA=1—H ayeliaakd=

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Current assets MENEE 6,149,272 6,491,887
Non-current assets FMEBEE 1,827,207 1,058,030
Current liabilities VER=NE 3,999,453 5,126,479
Non-current liabilities FEMBEE 300,000 43,322
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. PMIBATIZIBE(E)
(Continued)

DCIS and its subsidiaries

HEEERENEBAT
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
BE nE
—E-IF —F—=
TZA=1—H [Ryei=akl=
IEEE IEEA
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BEET T BT T
Net cash flows from operating REXBRERS
activities mEFE 628,917 723,403
Net cash flows used in investing REETBARS
activities R (410,315) (285,304)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BEEEE,(FTA)
financing activities HEREFH (14,290) 472,399
Net increase in cash and cash BERBEEEY
equivalents R 910,498
20. DUE FROM AND TO SUBSIDIARIES 20. FEW R FE {3 Bt B A B SR IE
The amounts due from and to the subsidiaries RRRIRBEER B EERERE
included in the Company’s current assets and current W R FEAST B /B A B SR IE 9 Bl e 7B
liabilities of HK$5,414,885,000 (31 December 2013: 5,414,885,0000 (=& —=F+—=
HK$3,011,706,000) and HK$3,169,122,000 (31 A=+ —H: % #¥3,011,706,000
December 2013: HK$542,419,000), respectively, are JL) & B ¥3169,122,0007T (=
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of T—=FF+_A=+—H: B
repayment. 542,419,0007T) B&EEM - &

B REREEERY -
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21. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. REBEEEZIRE
Group
rEE
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
—E-MF —ET-=F
T=A=1+—H =k
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BEETR BT T
Share of net assets 15 & EFE 675,579 163,275
The Group’s trade receivable and payable balances due AEBRY (B ZHEGECHE
from/(to) joint ventures are disclosed in note 28 and Z W E SR K ENE SRR
31 to the financial statements, respectively. £ 9 Bl 5% 58 5O 1t B 75 3R 2% Bt 57X 28
%31 .
The Group’s loans to joint ventures included in the REBEBEEASE 2 BNHIE -
Group’s prepayments, deposit and other receivables are ReREMEBURIBZFAE S EE
disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements. In the R 2 B R B R UL B 7% 3R &
opinion of the directors, these loans are not considered 41 BEERA - REZERITEE
as part of the Group’s net investments in these joint BRARAEERZEEEREFER
ventures. Br—Eo o
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21. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. R84t %22188(8)
(Continued)

Particulars of the Group’s principal joint ventures are NREEBNFTFESEZEME2FBW
as follows: T
Percentage
of ownership
Place of interest
registration and Particulars of attributable
Name business registered capital to the Group Principal activities
7 £ M FE 4G
AfERER FEEES
£ 308 FEEAMELRFE EF E-3 83
Digital China Technology PRC/Mainland RMB100,000,000 49 Investment, development
Industry Investment China and management of
Co., Ltd.+7 technology industry projects
HMMBBHEERXRE B B AR A K #100,000,0007T MEEXBEENERE
EREMFEDAN 3% ELE IR
Digital China (Shanghai) Capital PRC/Mainland RMB50,000,000 49 Capital management and
Management Co., Ltd.+A China enterprise management
consultancy
MNBB (LB EEER HE B K R A R #50,000,0007T AEEEMEXERES
BRAFA
Chongging Digital China HC PRC/Mainland RMB675,000,000 60 Provision of microfinance
Microfinance Co., Ltd.+/ China services in Chongging
province
EEMMBEBERNEER B K B A R#675,000,0007T B E R R R
BRAFN ERR®
+ The English names of these companies are direct + ZENFIzEXEZBIEEZATME
transliterations of their Chinese registered names. B2 ZE o
A Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member A ERBE BT KBRS KE
firm of the Ernst & Young global network. HMEBMEME2REERKE TS
¥ o
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21. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. REeEBL22HE(8E)
(Continued)

The Group’s shareholdings in the joint ventures are held Z’K%_@ ﬁ@é}%iﬁ_%ZH& BIEB
through the subsidiaries of the Company. ARARZMBARFAR -

The above table lists the joint ventures of the Group %%Eﬁﬁt%ﬁﬁﬁzj&%@é%ﬁ
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally %ﬁﬁ%@\zﬁirﬁ/gﬁﬁ%%@ﬁ
affected the results for the year/period or formed a E* Ef%fi{ﬁfﬁ%@/’éé}?ﬁ%%
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To ifﬂgh °§$;EZJ 1'%“_5\”‘[:'?'/3;1@5 =
give details of other joint ventures would, in the opinion EREM  KBEREBRITE -
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

All the joint ventures have been accounted for using Fﬁ?é%ﬁé%ﬁﬂﬁ%é%ﬁ@lﬁtﬂﬁ
the equity method in these financial statements. BRI -

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial Tiﬁlj’%j“%@il\%\%ﬂE%@H%U
information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not BRIZHMBEREE

individually material:

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

—E-F —F—=F

TZA=1—H [yt as

HK$°'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T
Aggregate carrying amount of the ZAEBRALDLEY
Group’s investments in the joint KAEMIKREESF

ventures 163,275
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21. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. R8BLEx2BE(HE)
(Continued)

Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
BE #H=E
—E-F —F—=F
TZA=1T—H [yttt =
FFE IENEA
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T
Share of the joint ventures’ profit/ [E{h& & (% 2 K4F
(loss) for the year/period EYa-15h: 2V
(E1#8) (4,893)
Share of the joint ventures’ total BlEEEEIARE
comprehensive income/(loss) for E/Hmemikes
the year/period (E#B)BHE (4,893)
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22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. R EATIZ2H/E
Group
rEE
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
—EF-OmE —EF-=F
TZA=1+—H [yl
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 570,562
Goodwill on acquisition B i ZE 4 2 i 464,738
1,191,959 1,035,300
Analysed into: AT
Unlisted shares JE LMD 151,549 554,431
Shares listed in Hong Kong REB LT ZKR®K 531,438 480,869
Shares listed in Mainland China KRB KEET2
f&% 15 508,972 —

1,191,959 1,035,300
Market value of listed shares Tk HhzmE 2,497,978 1,416,153

The Group’s trade receivable and payable balances due NEEEEY S (FER) Z M <A T

from/(to) associates are disclosed in notes 28 and 31 ZEWE SRR N FERE 50 K 45

to the financial statements, respectively. £ Bl # & 1A I B 7 =k 3% K 5E 28
31 °
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22. INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

IN ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Particular of issued
share capital/

22. R EATIZIRE (&)

TEMERRZFBET:

Percentage
of ownership
interest
attributable

Name business registered capital to the Group Principal activities
AEEEMNL
AL, BREEBRITRES FEEES
=L BRREKE HEMEAFE BOL FTEXH
DigiWin Software Co., Ltd.+A* PRC/Mainland RMB154,420,085 11.49#  Provision of ERP software
China and related services
BREBHERDARRTN TE AR AR #154,420,0857C TR HERPE T R A B IR TS
HC International, Inc.A** Cayman Islands/ HK$66,716,662 20.65 Service provision of B-to-B

Mainland China

SRBERARA Med#s/ % 166,716,662
LEiPN
+ The English name of the company is a direct transliteration of

its Chinese registered name.

# The company is accounted for as an associate of the Group
as the Group is able to exercise significant influence over the
company because it holds 20% of the voting power of the

company.

A Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

* Listed on the ChiNext of The Shenzhen Stock Exchange. The
total market value of the Group’s listed shares as at 31
December 2014 was HK$1,501,987,000.

*x Listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The total market value of the Group’s listed shares as
at 31 December 2014 was HK$995,991,000.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year/period or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other associates would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length
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22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 22 MREEBATZIBE(E)
(Continued)

The Group’s shareholdings in the associates are held AEBREERR 2 RET2E
through the subsidiaries of the Company. BARNFZWBRAREE -

All the associates have been accounted for using the FT 7 B 5 A B3 B HR hE 55 A IO L B
equity method in these financial statements. BHREINR -

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial T 2% 3l 7R 7S £ [ B A | (3 fE B
information of the Group’s associates that are not BR)IZHBEREE:

individually material:

31 December 31 December

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
T-A=+—H ekl
HK$°'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Aggregate carrying amount of REERBERE 2
the Group’s investments in the KAEMIREESF
associates 1,191,959 1,035,300
Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
BZE HE
—E-mF —E—=F
===t =l - — S =+—H
IHFE LEFUE A
HK$°'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Share of the associates’ profit for [E{EH & A5 2
the year/period KNEF/HHE R 71,973 72,004
Share of an associate's other Vil R/ N ol NS
comprehensive income for the B/ HEEMEE
year/period U %5 (5,601) —
Share of the associates’ total EEEE AR 2
comprehensive income for the NEE B
year/period 2HEHWEBTE 72,004
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23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

31 December 2014 —Z—F+—-_A=+—H

23. HHEZIRE

Group
REH

31 December 31 December

—e-mE

2014 2013
—=_=

+=p=+—A [EEEEENE:

HK$’000 HK$'000

EETT BT T

1,000,000 301,858

Notes
&t
Current B
Wealth management financial SRUES K
products, at cost A (a)
Non-current IR B
Listed equity investments, FERRE
at fair value: BATEE:
Hong Kong B
Japan SN
Unlisted equity investments, FLmiER=
at cost B’E &K
E (b)
Convertible promissory note AEBAEES (D)
Wealth management financial TREM-
products, at cost R AE (a) 1
Notes: Wit

(a) Wealth management financial products of HK$2,247,988,000
(31 December 2013: HK$301,959,000) were issued by
reputable financial institutions in Mainland China and had
original maturity from five months to two years when acquired.
These wealth management financial products matured in period
from February 2015 to June 2016.
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(a)

200,395
97,733

274,397 180,622
38,750 38,750

,247,988 —

1,916,433 517,500

£ %88 %0,047,988,000C (=T —=
F+=A=+—H: %%301,959,000
T RAPEAEEETVBEKEREE
MeMmER HRAIHBEAAER
EMF  UHESREREN=Z—A
F_AEZZT—AFXAHBEIEA -
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23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)
The movements in non-current available-for-sale investments
excluding wealth management financial products, which is
stated at cost less impairment, during the year/period are as

(b)

follows:

INVESTMENTS

N

T

il

31 December 2014 —Z—WF+-H=+—H

23. TR EZIRE(E)

Wit (&)

(b) RAFE/HEA - FERHIHEBE
ZRE TEESRER  HPRK

ANMERBE  BEBNT :

Revaluation
gains/ Impairment

Cost (losses) loss Total
fEEkE

R AE (E518) B S 18 st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BETF T BT T BT T

At 1 April 2013 RZZE—=FMNA—H 498,695 (24,743) — 473,952

Additions 0 169,109 — — 169,109

Changes in fair value NEEEE — (111,983) — (111,983)

Disposals HE (14,445) 867 — (13,578)

Impairment B — 74,592 (74,592) —
At 31 December 2013 and RZE—=F

1 January 2014 +=—A=+—8

—ZT—mF—HA—H 653,359 (61,267) (74,592) 517,500

Additions il 250,370 — — 250,370

Changes in fair value NEEEZSD — (36,102) — (36,102)

Disposals e (144,000) 33,810 46,867 (63,323)

Impairment A — 69,477 (69,477) —
At 31 December 2014 R —NE

+=RA=+—8 758,729 5,918 (97,202) 668,445

The above investments consist of investments in equity L ERFEEDSFLIRE %S

securities which were designated as available-for-sale financial
assets and have no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.

There was a significant decline in the market value of certain

listed equity investments during the year.

The directors

consider that such a decline indicates that the listed equity
investments have been impaired and an impairment loss of
HK$69,477,000 (nine months ended 31 December 2013:
HK$74,592,000), which included a reclassification from other
comprehensive income of HK$69,477,000 (nine months ended
31 December 2013: HK$74,592,000), has been recognised in
the statement of profit or loss for the year.

The Group’s unlisted equity investments, convertible promissory
note and wealth management financial products are measured
at cost less impairment. The fair values of these unlisted
equity investments cannot be measured reliably because the
probabilities of various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair values.

REWEEAHEESREE -

ETLEmEZEERZBREZT S
BEKETGK ZEEREZX KA
TEmEEREBRME KR EES
& 7 #69,477000L (B E - —
=F+-_A=t+—HILAM@A B
74,592,0007T) * thBEREHMmE
E U 55 %69,477,000T (B E-F
—=®+=-—A=t+—ALLA@A: %
#¥74,592,0007T) 2 EFHE - ER
AFEEFBWRER °

ARE 2L TRRRE TR
EES RSB E S R AR A E3)
IR o e D 7 TR A 2 2
oA AR A E AT EE -
BRI R I AR A 2 A
FEE -

NS ERABR QA
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24. DEFERRED TAX 24. BRI
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities EERBEERABERAFEE H
during the year/period are as follows: MAZEBWT :
Group rEHE
Deferred tax assets B IR & E

31 December 2014
—E-HmE+=-A=t+—H
Losses available
for offsetting Sales
against future Asset rebates
taxable profits provisions payables Others
A R 86
RRERB SHEWH
wmHNZEE BERE EAIRE Hit At
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BE¥TRT BETx BE¥TR BYETx BT

At 1 January 2014 RZT—MF
—H—H 151,572 140,003 318,424
Acquisition of a subsidiary U B M R R)
(note 36] (Kt i#36) 576 576
Deferred tax credited to the A E AN
statement of profit or RPEFAZIE
loss during the year iE 1A 11,516 24,385
Exchange realignment HE 3, 58 (1,159) (947)
Gross deferred tax assets R —NE
at 31 December 2014 +=A=+—8H
R IE
BEME 19,392 162,505 163,441 372,498

204 Digital China Holdings Limited | 2014 Annual Report



Notes to Financial Statements B 7§ 3} 2% [ 3
31 December 2014 —Z—MFE+=-H=+—H

24. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 24, BEHIE(LE)

Group (Continued) RAEHE(E)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIEEE

31 December 2014
—E®-mE+=A=t+-H

Unrealised
losses from Revaluation
intragroup of
transactions properties receivables
EEAXZEL R BB 4T
ZREBLRBE BE Wk 0E Hit # gt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BETT BT BET T

Purchase
rebates

Others Total

L/ SR
HK$’000
BT

R=T-mE—A
—H 123,508
RREHEAR 2
AFEERE

At 1 January 2014

Fair value adjustments
arising from acquisition

of a subsidiary (note 36) (K1 7i#36)

Deferred tax charged/ AEFENEBRER
(credited) to the g (GEA)
statement of profit or ZRIERE
loss during the year

Deferred tax charged to the — A% A 7E # o5 &
statement of changes in }RFMRZ
equity during the year iR FE 7 I8

Exchange realignment T

Gross deferred tax liabilities HRZ=ZZ—MF+=
at 31 December 2014 A=+—H2

R EARE
= 179,889

Net deferred tax credited to ~ANFEERNEEREE
the statement of profit or FEFAZ BT
loss during the year TR R (M7
[note 10) 10)

Net deferred tax assets RZT—mME+=
recognised in the A=+—H%E
consolidated statement fRE B AROR
of financial position at KHPERZE
31 December 2014 ERIEEEF

) 192,609
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24. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 24, BEHBIE(4E)
Deferred tax assets B GE B TH &

31 December 2013
—T-=f+=ZA=+—8
Losses
available for
offsetting
against future Asset
taxable profits provisions Others Total
A 3
R E R TR
N 2 R AERE Hith BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BETFT BETFT BEFT

At 1 April 2013 R-ZZE—=FMA—H — 127,217 81,043 208,260
Deferred tax credited to the statement AHIBIAEIE KT
of profit or loss during the period A Z IR IA 5,273 21,766 78,521 105,560
Exchange realignment FE 5 38 & 124 2,589 1,891 4,604
Gross deferred tax assets at RZT—=F+=A=
31 December 2013 +—RZEERIA
AELE 5,397 151,572 161,455 318,424
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N

T

il

31 December 2014 —Z—WF+-H=+—H

HK$81,895,000) which are due to expire within five
years for offsetting against future taxable profits of
the subsidiaries in which the losses arose, have not
been recognised as deferred tax assets. These tax
losses and certain deductible temporary differences of
HK$15,195,000 (31 December 2013: HK$21,093,000)
have not been recognised as deferred tax assets since
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been making
losses for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the
tax losses can be utilised.

24. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 24. EIEHIE (F)
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIEEE
31 December 2013
—T—=F+ZA=+—A1
Unrealised
losses from
intragroup  Revaluation
transactions of properties Others Total
EERARS
EEZR
BERER MEGE Hih @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT BT BETT
At 1 April 2013 R-E—=FMA—H 53,495 34,287 41,911 129,693
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the AHIMAEEZERSP
statement of profit or loss during mneR(GEA) 2B
the period EB IR 4,891 2,492 (16,188) (8,805)
Exchange realignment R 1,101 669 850 2,620
Gross deferred tax liabilities at R-ZZ—=F+=-A
31 December 2013 =S+—BZERTER
HBERE 59,487 37,448 26,573 123,508
Net deferred tax credited to the AEAMATEB R R BT
statement of profit or loss during AZEET A FH
the period (note 10) (K1 7#10) (114,365)
Net deferred tax assets recognised R-ZZ—=F+=-A
in the consolidated statement of =t+—BEHKEH
financial position at k5 R R
31 December 2013 EXEHRBEEFR 194,916
The Group’s tax losses arising in Mainland REEREPEAEZHREBEERR
China of HK$153,330,000 (31 December 2013: 75 #153,330,000 (=& — =4

+Z-A=+—H:%%81,895,000
) ATARBHEELABRZWE
RBZARRERBEFN - R A
FRER  AARERARELERAER
E- ARLEREBBRE TAH
R B 2 R 58 %15,195,0007T
“E-=F+-"A=+—H: &%
21,093,0007T) Ty 2K B 2 & B 18 —
BREZMBAR MW RERS
BEFIREE - ARIEZERR
] BE A & SR a8 A DA K 35 A B AR
HEE °

NS ERABR QA
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24. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 24, BEHBIE(4E)

208 Digital China Holdings Limited

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement has
become effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates are 5%
or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2014, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it
is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled HK$1,718,132,000 at 31 December 2014 (31
December 2013: HK$1,617,306,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.
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AEZHBARZEEEBZE
FEZE08(ERERTEET
TRIEB1E) &5 %1,718132,0007T
T =F+-_A=+—H: 5%
1,617,306,0007T) °

ARRABRR AN ZBE
BREHER -

TR
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31 December 2014 —Z—F&+—-A=+—H

25. INVENTORIES 25. B8
Group
rEE
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
—E—MEF —E—=F
TZA=1+—H [yl
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Trading stock BH5FE 5,635,678
26. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 26. EEYE
Group
rEE

31 December 31 December
2014 2013

—2-ImF —E-=F
T=A=1—H [EEa
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BET T

At the beginning of the reporting R & HR )

period 393,562 66,866
Construction costs incurred EEZERKR 157,771 108,659
Transfers ey = 214,707
Interest capitalised &AL E 11,112 3,330
At the end of the reporting period 7 ¥R & 8 & m 393,562

The Group’s properties under development are situated REBZzERYERAUNPEX
in Mainland China and are held under medium term e WARHABALORE -

leases.

Further particulars of the Group’s properties under REBEEMEZE—STHEBEERE
development are included on page 265. RE265E A °
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27. DUE FROM/(TO) CONTRACT CUSTOMERS

31 December 2014 —Z—F+—-_A=+—H

Gross amount due from contract
customers included in other
receivables

Gross amount due to contract
customers included in other
payables

Contract costs incurred plus
recognised profits less
recognised losses to date

Less: Progress billings

27. Bl (B EHEEZ
I8
Group
rEE
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
=F-@mF —E=F
S =l=n = -~ A=+ —(
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
BErtAHMEWHRIEZ
ERAHEPFEAZ
4 =g 431,505
Bt AEMEMNZKIEZ
ENEHEFPRIEZ
4B =8 (63,787) (1,423)
BERBEE ZAHNKE
INE R & AR B R
RIEE 4,388,952 2,493,503
SRR (3,988,901) (2,063,421)
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Notes to Financial Statements B4 & ) 2= Mt =F
31 December 2014 —E—WNFE+_-_A=+—H

28. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 28. EIEB SIRF REWELE

Trade and bills receivables eI E Z IR R
Impairment A

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit, except for new customers, where
payment in advance is normally required. The credit
period is generally 30 to 180 days. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and has a credit control department to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
management. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group’s trade and bills receivables related
to a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

Group

rEE
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
—EF-OmE —EF-=F
AEVER RN + - A=+~
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
10,481,717 12,416,718
(879,794) (921,998)

9,601,923 11,484,720

AEEXEUNEETXEERFF
EBSEF  E—REELHEP
BNHIA - EEH—KRB30E180
R o AEBEHERKEERFIRE
MR B YRBEEEES
- BREBEERRRERE - &
EESTE R BHGRE A58
ARZEBBFAETAERRAE
HeE AL ISR 5 B 1 - R £ XX
tE BEBELAKEZREES
IRREBEREDHZEPER &I
ERBATES - BKRESRRL
EHB
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31 December 2014 —Z—F+—-_A=+—H

28. FEWL B 5 ik = & FE W R iR
(48)
REEHK - RERARHE R
MR 1 2 e 5 0R R

28. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(Continued)
An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice

date and net of impairment, is as follows: B2IRE DT

Group

i
31 December 31 December
2014 2013

—E-IF —F—=

SV ESRN-N +-A=1-8
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within 30 days 30K 4,681,534 5,693,741
31 to 60 days 31&260X 1,661,036 2,256,215
61 to S0 days B1290XK 726,908 752,181
91 to 180 days 91£180Xk 1,019,605 1,541,503
Over 180 days B @180K 1,512,840 1,251,080
11,494,720
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31 December 2014 —E—WNFE+_-_A=+—H

28. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 28 FEWESIIRSREWELE

(Continued)
The movements in provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

At the beginning of the reporting 7 ¥ & 8 47

period

Amount written off as uncollectible R Uk (@ 7 #fi i & &8

Impairment losses recognised BRZBEEBR
(note 6) (#1:%6)
& B B 2 A

Disposal of subsidiaries
Exchange realignment

At the end of the reporting period 7 ¥R 4 8 %k

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired
trade receivables of HK$47,067,000 (31 December
2013: HK$15,473,000) with a carrying amount before
provision of HK$58,489,000 (31 December 2013:
HK$25,236,000).

The individually impaired trade receivables related to
customers that were in financial difficulties or were
in default in both interest and/or principal payments
and only a portion of the receivables is expected to be
recovered.

(48)
EW B ZIRAK ZBEREEZ 2 e
T

Group

rEE
31 December 31 December
2014 2013

—E-IF —F—=

t=A=1-0 |[EEECEREE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
921,998 823,135
(81,450) (8,061)
36,607 105,258
= (19,5486)
2,639 21,212

879,794 921,998

LA & B & 8 U B 5 IR R 2 Rk (B B
HBEENRBEENIREDE RSB
58,489,000t (—E—=F+_A
=+—H: 5 %25,236,0007T) 2
& 5 fE W E SRR 2 mEREER
75 #47,067,000C (=T —=F +
— A=+ —H: 5 15,473,000
JL) ©

18 5l & U B 5 0k 7k 2 R (B T B 0
B IR AR O B IR B sl R R B
RS AERME - B EARIR
RIEHI AU E o
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\

Notes to Financial Statements B 7& 3} 3% [ 3
31 December 2014 —_E—WFE+_-_A=+—H

28. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 28 EBWESIIRSRIEIKELE

(Continued)

The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables
that are not collectively considered to be impaired is
as follows:

REH A KRRBIE
B A R30K

Neither past due nor impaired
Less than 30 days past due

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of
the balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables are
amounts due from joint ventures and associates of
the Group of HK$43,349,000 (31 December 2013:
HK$43,346,000) and HK$1,802,000 (31 December
2013: HK$2,271,000), respectively, which are
repayable on similar credit terms to those offered to
the major customers of the Group.
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(48)
1R B 2 B 5 R 3 R
KRB ZIRBEASMMT :

Group

AEH
31 December 31 December
2014 2013

—E2-mF ==

===l -~ A=+ —H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
8,462,710 10,659,010
516,692 519,768

8,979,402 11,178,778

REH B RRBE BRIRK T RS
BETEFAR WEELHLE
o R IR Z RE 8% e

2R 1B 3 S RE 2 B IR 5K
DERETEIYEFAR  ZFEFP
EAREEARABRIFNEGRLE - 1R
BRELR ARREZRREH
RERER I EE B (E R E B
BRREEFZEEEEYHREXN
R R MR BRI R R IK AR A28
Y -

AEEEKESRI R EREERS
HEERERASB 2 ZHEEE
N % [ & AR 2 RIS Bl A5
43,349,000t (ZE—=F+—-AH
=+ —H:##43,346,0007T) &
511,802,000 (= —=F+=
A=+—H:##¥2271,0007T)
WEERTDBRBRETAEEEE
EPzEUEEKRTEE -
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—MmE+—A=t—8

28. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

At 31 December 2014, the Group endorsed certain
bills receivable accepted by reputable banks in
the PRC (the “Derecognised Bills”) to certain of
its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables
due to such suppliers with a carrying amount in
aggregate of HK$370,047,000 (31 December 2013:
HK$190,344,000). The Derecognised Bills have a
maturity from one to six months at the end of the
reporting period. In accordance with the Law of
Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the
Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse against
the Group if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing
Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors, the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
relating to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it
has derecognised the full carrying amounts of the
Derecognised Bills and the associated trade payables.
The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and
the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognised Bills is equal to their carrying amounts.
In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of the
Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills
are not significant.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
has not recognised any gain or loss on the date of
transfer of the Derecognised Bills. No gains or losses
were recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both
during the year or cumulatively.

8. W EE 5k & FEW R 4R
(H‘E)

RZZE—mFE+=—HA=+—H ' A&
EmEETHERESETHNERE
HIRITEMANE TREKER(T&1E
BREE]  LWEERNZEMRE
ERENESR  REELEEA
B #370,047,00070 (—E—=F+
—A=+—8:%%190,344,000
J) o MM EHR  RIEEREE
E’JE/%HHJI? i/\1.ﬁ *ETJ%':F‘
BZEEE  WMzSEPRBTHER
BRIEBREBSEALSLNEEES
BRE(HRELIR] EZRE
AEBEEVREBKRIEERAREN
ABHEBKER - AL - EEK
tﬁu&ﬂ¢$MTﬁ&ﬁ%%H
BORFNEEIRAEE - A5 B R
ﬁ%ﬁ&wiﬁMTFu&@%%
IEEREEAARITIRE €M E ¥

%?m%%ﬂ 2 HEREIREE -
EZRR AKBERESRRILE
REENRFEELTEKN -

RBE-Z-—ME+=A=+—8
L 2F A+ 7 R B 3 0 L
WREE 2 ARAE MRS - A%
B30 3 5 S R R AR SR O
2 A -

NS ERABR QA
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31 December 2014 —_E—WFE+_-_A=+—H

29. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29. fTHE £ TH

Assets BE

Forward currency contracts RHE®EN

The Group has entered into various forward
currency contracts to manage its exchange rate
exposures. These forward currency contracts are not
designated for hedge purposes and are measured
at fair value through profit or loss. Net fair value
gains of such derivative financial instruments
amounting to HK$61,081,000 (31 December 2013:
HK$206,247,000) were credited to the statement of
profit or loss during the year (note 5).

The above transactions involving derivative financial
instruments are conducted with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

The Group entered into derivative financial instruments
with various counterparties, principally financial
institutions with good credit ratings. Derivative
financial instruments, including forward currency
contracts, were measured using valuation techniques
similar to forward pricing models, using present
value calculations. The models incorporated various
market observable inputs including the credit quality of
counterparty, foreign exchange spot and forward rates.
The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts
were the same as their fair values.

2 1 6 Digital China Holdings Limited | 2014 Annual Report

Group

A
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
—E—OF ZE—=F
UEVER RN + - A=+~
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
113,378

ANEFTZZHERPEESOUE
BHEXRRR 2RS4
EAEHAER - WARFEER
EEF - -ETITESRIAENAYF
BB F U = & & ¥61,081,0007T
(ZEBE—=F+-R=+—H: 8%
206,247,0007T) it A R A F E A
/)18 25 % (Ff 55) o

ERFRATERBIAY XHTIE
B R 47 B 3 R B R AR 85 2 8B
AT -

AEEETRARZHF(EE/EA
BEREEEFRZEBMEBIFIL
TEERMTAE -TESRTABR
EREBALN  NBEUEREER
BB ERMZRETE - ZF8
HEAAZHEMSABRIAR
BRXGHUFZERAEFR EXZ
REERERE EREBANZ
IREEEFNREAFEE-
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31 December 2014 —Z—WF+-H=+—H

29.

30.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2014, the marked to market
value of the derivative asset position is net of a
credit valuation adjustment attributable to derivative
counterparty default risk. The changes in counterparty
credit risk had no material effect on the hedge
effectiveness assessment for derivatives designated
in hedge relationship and other financial instruments
recognised at fair value.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

29.

TTESMTIR(E)

RZZE—ONF+ZA=+—B &
MEREZITEEERRIIERT
ETARSGHFEORREMGZE
BFfARAE  XSHFEERRZ
U T B AR IIIETA
REATFEEERCEMESRTA
ZHARGEFEALBEAZE -

30.IRERELZEEY

Group Company
AEE N
ML G 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
—ZB-—m& —E—= —E-MF —ET—=F
=R s -~ A=+ —H =R -~ A=+ —H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT ‘?MFFTE_ BETRT E%MEF%_
Cash and bank balances B& RIBITHEER 3,864,524 3,466,569 2,484
Time deposits TE B1F R 255,033 427,642 —
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 4,119,557 3,894,211 3,641 2,464

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
bank equivalents of the Group denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$3,923,610,000 (31
December 2013: HK$3,504,532,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between one day
and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default.

RIFER  NREBUARE (A
RENEEZRERESCEEY
& ¥ &5 #3,923,610,0007T (=
T+ _A=+—H: &%
3,504,532,0007T) - A R#& =15
BEHEBRAHEMER  Am - RBRE
R B K B 2 AT B R AR 1) I A5 BE -
NEREESERT AEEEE
BREREETTINE 2752 IR1TH
ARBHBBHME -

RITIE R TR R RITIE A R IA
FBNEGFR - EHEREFERNE
FPE-—RE=Z@AAZHELEF K
AEENERBESFRME @ ¥R
SR AR FE 79 A5 HA € B3 7 SRR =R RN
B RITHEREFROHA EEDHT
SRS B AR EZIRTT
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31. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 31. EFNEBIHRMREEMFERE

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

Within 30 days 30K

31 to 60 days 31£60X
61 to 90 days B1£90XK
Over 90 days R GIS[OFN

Included in the Group’s trade and bills payables are
amounts due to a joint venture and an associate of
the Group of HK$48,967,000 (31 December 2013:
HK$35,963,000) and HK$478,000 (31 December
2013: HK$196,000), respectively, which are repayable
on similar credit terms to those obtained from the
major suppliers of the Group.

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled within a period of 30 to 180 days.

2 1 8 Digital China Holdings Limited | 2014 Annual Report

RB|BERR  REZDHAFTHEEN
B IR EN R 2 IR ER 5T 40
T

Group

rEE
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
—E—NF ZE—=F
+t=A=+-5 [EECESEE
HK$°'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T
5,573,183 6,232,429
2,181,120 2,257,027
1,020,765 732,999
1,526,111 1,870,338

10,301,179 11,092,793

AEEENESERKENZES
HEERENASBE 2 —HeaE
k—MHE R B ZRIAD R BB
48,967,000t (= E —=F+=H
=+—H8: ##%235,963,0007T) &
B#478,000L (= E—=F+—A
=+—H:3%196,0007T) ' th5
EHRTREBEAEEEZHEERMSA
FZREUEEIEREE -

ENEZRRBTHE - L —KRR1
30ZE180K I MIEE -
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32. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

31 December 2014 —Z—F&+—-A=+—H
32. ERITER

31 December 2013
—T—=F+-HA=+—8

31 December 2014
—E-mFE+=A=+—H

Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$’000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BERA= BRI 5
(B2 L) 2 HA BET T (B9 t) Z| i E BT T
Group AEEH
Current B
Bank loans, RITER
unsecured 35 1 ikl EE 0.96-5.32 2014 2,556,687
Current portion of long EHRTER 2
term bank loans, BN
unsecured 2 4 R . 1,550,000 1.34 2014 1,162,500
Non-current EFRE
Bank loans, RITER
unsecured faig 1.67-2.41 slailsi g felsanclaiciy 1.67-2.83  2015-2016 2,314,853
610341040
Group
rE
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
—E-ImEF —E—=F
+oA=+-n R
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Analysed into: ST :
Bank loans repayable: EEERITE N
Within one year —FRA 7,060,139 3,719,187
In the second year E_EFN 1,064,848 1,550,005
In the third to fifth years, E-FEEZFRF
inclusive (BiEEREMm
F) 764,848
8,124,987 6,034,040
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32. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
(Continued)

Notes:

(a) The Company guaranteed certain of the Group’s bank loans of
HK$6,333,031,000 (31 December 2013: HK$4,493,556,000)
at the end of the reporting period.

(b) At 31 December 2014, the bank borrowings of
HK$1,474,127,000 (31 December 2013: HK$900,350,000)
and HK$6,650,860,000 (31 December 2013:
HK$5,133,061,000) are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
United States dollars, respectively. No bank borrowings are
denominated in RMB (31 December 2013: HK$629,000).

2 2 O Digital China Holdings Limited 2014 Annual Report

31 December 2014 —Z—WF+-H=+—H
32. MBRITEFR(E)

At

(a)

(b)

RBEHR RAARERE TEAE
8 17 B 3 A 7% %6,333,031,000
TE(ZE—=F+=A=1+—8: %
4,493,556,0007T) fEHER °

R-ZZE—NWE+=—A=+—08 ' 53l
B511,474127,000T (— T — =4
+=A=+—H : #%¥900,350,000
JT) K B ¥6,650,860,0007T (=
T—=4+_"HF=+—H: #EK
5,133,061,0007T) Z R 17 B F A 7
BT RETLIE - WEBITETRUA
RESIBE(CE—=¢+=-A=+—
H : % #629,0007T) °



Notes to Financial Statements B 7§ 3} 2% [ 3

31 December 2014 —Z—F&+—-A=+—H

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. &
Shares fiz 17
31 December
2014
—E-ImF
+t=A=+—H
HK$'000
BT T
Authorised: JERE
2,000,000,000 (31 December 2,000,000,000
2013: 2,000,000,000) B(ZZE—=F+
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 (31 —A=+—8:
December 2013: HK$0.1) each 2,000,000,000
IR) B REESE
01 (ZZE—=
+=ZA=+—8:
BT 2 TR
A%
Issued and fully paid: EBETRERRK:
1,093,738,581 (31 December 1,093,738,581%
2013: 1,093,738,581) (ZE2—=F+
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 ZRA=+—8:

(31 December 2013: HK$0.1)
each

1,083,738,581
) EkEEEE

oAt (ZE—=
+=-A=+—8:
BEOIT)ZER
A%
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31 December
2013

—E—=F
+=—A=+—8H
HK$'000
BT T

200,000

109,374
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued]

31 December 2014 —Z—F+—-_A=+—H

A summary of the movements in the Company’s issued
share capital and share premium account during the
year ended 31 December 2014 and the nine months
ended 31 December 2013 is as follows:

33. A (4E)

REE-_Z—N&F+=-_A=+—H
TFERBEE-_ZE—=F+-A=
+—HIEABEAAR RXARHE %
1T R& AN K j% 17 4 (2 bR & B 13 4t a0
T

Number of
ordinary Share
shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
2817
EEREE BRTRE ROBER #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BT B¥Tx
At 1 April RZTE—=%
2013 MA—H 1,093,463,581 109,346 2,058,336 2,167,682
Exercise of share 1718 B AR
options [note) (W at) 275,000 28 2,097 2125
At 31 December RZE—=
2013, 1 January +=—A=+—
2014 and H-—ZE—N
31 December 2014 F—A—HAK
—E-NEA+
Z“RA=+—H 1,093,738,581 109,374 2,060,433 2,169,807

Note: During the nine months ended 31

December 2013, the

subscription rights attaching to 275,000 share options were
exercised at a subscription price of HK$5.89 per share,
resulting in the issue of a total of 275,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each for a total cash consideration, before expenses,
of HK$1,619,000. An amount of HK$508,000 was transferred
from the employee share-based compensation reserve to the
share premium account upon the exercise of the share options.

Details of the Company’'s share option schemes and
restricted share award scheme are included in note
34 to the financial statements.

2014 Annual Report

Wi - RNBE—E—=4+-A=+—HI

NEAR » 275,00010 K B RERE 2
BRENSR BB 2 REE
BT - Bt - A5H275,0008% 7%
AEASEOITZERBRANARSA
& (3N & A A1) & 7% %1,619,0007T
FLABEAT - RIERAREITIERS - B
7 #506,000 T /) 88 B2 B A RN X
NEEZH S HESBEEZROEE
rpg °

AR R B8 & X R H R
D EEE R B IB SR I I IS 3R %
Bf5E34
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34. SHARE-BASED INCENTIVE SCHEMES

The Company operates two share option schemes.
One of the share option schemes was adopted
on 18 July 2002 (the “2002 Share Option
Scheme”) and the other share option scheme was
adopted on 15 August 2011 (the “2011 Share
Option Scheme”) (the 2002 Share Option Scheme
together with the 2011 Share Option Scheme,
hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Share
Option Schemes”).

The principal terms of the Share Option Schemes
are as follows:

() Purpose

The Share Option Schemes seek to
recognise and acknowledge the contributions
or potential contributions made or to be
made by the qualified persons (as defined
below) to the Group, to motivate the qualified
persons to optimise their performance
and efficiency for the benefit of the Group,
and to maintain or attract business
relationships with the qualified persons
whose contributions are or may be beneficial
to the growth of the Group.

(ll)  GQualified persons

Any part-time or full-time employee or
officer or director (including executive, non-
executive or independent non-executive
directors) of any member of the Group or
of any associated company, or any supplier,
agent, customer, joint venture partner,
strategic alliance partner, distributor,
professional adviser of, or consultant or
contractor to, any member of the Group,
or the trustee of any trust pre-approved by
the board of directors of the Company the
beneficiary (or in case of discretionary trust,
the discretionary objects) of which includes
any of the above-mentioned persons.

il

N

T

31 December 2014 —Z—F&+—-A=+—H

34. iz 34 By 51 &

NS ERABR QA

KRFEH W EERERE -
Hbf—EBREFEIRZ
ToF+ATNB(ZZEZEZ
FHBRETEDERN M5
—EEREFE R ——
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fREEDHER(ZZTEEZ
EREFESR T ——FE
REEIETXHRBAIER
HETED o

BREAENERERAT

M Bay

BRI ERRAR
EHEEBAL(ER
RTXOERNKBAE
e 2 ERIKA]
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34. SHARE-BASED

INCENTIVE SCHEMES

(Continued)

{n

(i

2 24 Digital China Holdings Limited

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares available for
issue under the 2002 Share Option Scheme
was 86,303,308 and that under the 2011
Share Option Scheme was 109,206,058,
which represent 7.89% and 9.98% of share
capital of the Company in issue as at the
date of approval of the financial statement
respectively.

Maximum entitlement of each qualified

person

The maximum number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Schemes
and any other share option schemes of the
Company to each qualified person (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company then in issue. Any
further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting of the Company.

Any grant of options to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company or any of their respective
associates must be approved by the
independent non-executive directors of the
Company (except when the independent non-
executive director is the grantee of such
options).
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34. SHARE-BASED

INCENTIVE SCHEMES

(Continued)

(IV] Maximum entitlement of each qualified

(V)

person (Continued)

Any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company or any
of their respective associates must, in
addition to obtaining the approval of the
independent non-executive directors of the
Company, be approved by the shareholders
of the Company in a general meeting if
such proposed grant of share options,
when aggregated with all options (whether
exercised, cancelled or outstanding) already
granted to such substantial shareholder or
independent non-executive director during
the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such grant of options, would (i)
entitle that relevant person to receive more
than 0.1% of the total issued share capital
of the Company for the time being; and (ii)
represent an aggregate value in excess of
HK$5,000,000 based on the closing price
of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange at the date of such grant.

Timing for exercise of options

The period during which an option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Schemes shall be the
period set out in the relevant offer letter,
provided that such period must expire on
the date falling on the tenth anniversary of
the offer date.
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34. SHARE-BASED

INCENTIVE SCHEMES

(Continued)

(V] Acceptance of offers

(Vi)

An offer of the grant of an option shall be
accepted by the grantee on or before the
last date for acceptance of such offer as set
out in the relevant offer letter, which must
not be more than 28 business days from
the relevant offer date. A consideration of
HK$1.00 shall be received by the Company
on acceptance of each offer.

Basis for determination of the

subscription price

The subscription price shall be the highest
of (a) the closing price of the shares on the
offer date; (b) the average of the closing
prices of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date;
or (c) the nominal value of a share.

(VIll) Life of Share Option Schemes

2 2 6 Digital China Holdings Limited

The 2002 Share Option Scheme and 2011
Share Option Scheme shall remain valid
and effective for a period of ten years
commencing from 18 July 2002 and 15
August 2011, respectively, being the dates
on which such schemes were deemed to
take effect in accordance with their terms.
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34. SHARE-BASED INCENTIVE SCHEMES
(Continued)

The following table shows the movements
in the share options under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme during the year and the options
outstanding at the beginning and end of the year:

Number of share options

BREXE
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34. Iz #E 3 B ET 81 (&)

TREINEZZZT_FER
BFETHERERTNEERN
2EE  UERREVNRER
M AR FTE 2 B R AE

Outstanding ~ Granted  Exercise Lapsed Outstanding  Subscription
as at during the during the during the as at price per
Grantee 1/1/2014 year year year 31/12/2014 share  Date of grant Exercisable period
R-2-RF R-2-0%F
-A-H REE rEE XEE +=B=t-8
ARA LEXd AR RITE &R HRAE SRARE RHBH TS
(HKS)
(#%71)
(note i) [note ] [note i}
(# #iii) (i) (W ##ii)
Directors iz
GUD Wei E) 960,000 - - - 960,000 5.89  21/05/2008 21/05/2008-20/05/2016
LIN Yang 5 1,000,000 - - — 1,000,000 5.89  21/05/2008 21/05/2008-20/05/2016
YAN Guorong BEX 125,000 - - - 125,000 5.89  21/05/2008 21/05/2008-20/05/2016
YAN Guorong BEX 668,000 - - - 668,000 15.04 11/01/7201 11/01/2012-10/01/2019
Other employees HitEE 2,717,000 - - - 2,717,000 5.89  21/05/2008 21/05/2008-20/05/2016
3,847,000 - — (380,000) 3,487,000 15.04 11/01/201 11/01/2012-10/01/2019
In aggregate At 9,317,000 - — (3680,000) 8,957,000
Notes: B it -
0] The subscription price of the options is subject to 0] BRENRBEBERARRER

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

(i) All options granted are subject to a vesting period of
four years with 25% becoming exercisable on the first
anniversary, 25% on the second anniversary, 25% on
the third anniversary and 25% on the fourth anniversary
of the respective dates of grant.

(iii) No options were granted and cancelled under the 2002
Share Option Scheme during the year.
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REREBHBTR—BTZ
BFATTEE - 25%A] K M &
F2ZBRKRITE - 25%A KM
—AFZARKRITE - %25%
ARAMMESFZ BRRITE -

i) AAFEABGEBRERE =

TR _FRERETERER
RBUH °
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34. SHARE-BASED INCENTIVE SCHEMES 34. IR#ERBIEHE|(48E)

(Continued)

Share options do not confer rights on the holders
to dividends or to vote at general meetings.

Since the adoption of the 2011 Share Option
Scheme, no options were granted, lapsed or
cancelled under the 2011 Share Option Scheme.

The fair values of the share options granted during
the prior years amounted to HK$53,000,000,
of which the Group recognised share option
expenses of HK$1,401,000 (nine months ended
31 December 2013: HK$2,702,000) during the
year ended 31 December 2014.

2 2 8 Digital China Holdings Limited 2014 Annual Report
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34. SHARE-BASED
(Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements B4 1% 25 3% [

INCENTIVE SCHEMES

The fair values of the share options granted under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme were estimated
as at the dates of grant, using a binomial model,
taking into account of the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Granted on:

N

T

il
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34. Iz #E 3 B ET 81 (&)

11 January 2011

E-_ZT_SBEREFET
IRt AFEED
RERREERRA-ER
BEAGE RStk ERE
Z R ERRARE  TRE
SRR BRE 2 BB E #

21 May 2008

RHR:

o
—A+-H

—BENE
ARA=

+—8

Dividend yield (%)
& B & (EHL)

Expected volatility (%)

3.5 per annum
F435

48 per annum

3.5 per annum
F435

45 per annum

TEERE(E D)

Historical volatility (%)
BAEKER(BED L)

Risk-free interest rate (%)

EREBRMEX(BEDLL)

Weighted average share price (HK$ per share)
I T R ME (B IR B ¥ T)

FF48 H 45

48 per annum 45 per annum
HF48 FF45

2.1 per annum 2.6 per annum
FF21 F%26

14.98 5.89

The expected life of the options is based on the
historical data over the past three years and is
not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns
that may occur. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is
indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.
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34. SHARE-BASED INCENTIVE SCHEMES 34. IR#ERBIEHE|(48E)
(Continued)

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had
8,957,000 (31 December 2013: 9,317,000)
share options outstanding under the 2002
Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full of
the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 8,957,000 (31 December
2013: 9,317,000) additional ordinary shares
of the Company and additional share capital of
HK$896,000 (31 December 2013: HK$932,000)
and share premium of HK$89,879,000 (31
December 2013: HK$95,258,000) (before issue
expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial
statements, the Company had 8,848,000 share
options outstanding under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 0.81%
of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

2 30 Digital China Holdings Limited 2014 Annual Report

REFEQFEERLEFTA
PR LT -

RZE—WmF+=—A=+—
B ARQRaBRE-_ZTZ—
8 B% % 5F 2| ~ 58,957,000
B(Z2—=F+=_A=1+—
H : 9,317,000/ ) B& P& # i
KRITHE - RIBEARA R IR
BARZEE 2T EERE
1538 B %8 ) 8£ 178,857,000
—ET—=F+-A=+—8:
9,317,0000%) 2~ 2 &) & i f%
K {5 J% 7K 38 AN 7% #5896,000
T(ZE—=F+=A=+—
H : % #932,0007T) ' A &
IR 4 #89,879,0007T (=
T—=F+_fF=+—H:#B
#¥95,258,0007T) K I 15 &
BOCRIMBRETHAS) -

EhEUKRR2HER
NN T 8,848,000 A=
TR _FERESTEETH
RITEZHERE  (FERX
NAEEETRMDA0.81% °



Notes to Financial Statements B7 7% 3 2% [

34. SHARE-BASED
(Continued)

INCENTIVE SCHEMES

The Company’s RSA Scheme was adopted on 28
March 2011 for the purpose of rewarding and
motivating, among others, directors (including
executive and non-executive) and employees of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Participants”)
with the shares of the Company. The RSA Scheme
is intended to attract and retain the best available
personnel, and encourage and motivate the
Participants to work towards enhancing the value
of the Group and the Company’s shares by aligning
their interests with those of the shareholders of
the Company.

Pursuant to the RSA Scheme, existing shares of
the Company will be purchased by the trustee
of the RSA Scheme from the market out of
cash contributed by the Group and be held in
trust for the relevant Participants until such
shares are vested with the relevant Participants
in accordance with the provisions of the RSA
Scheme. The shares of the Company granted
under the RSA Scheme and held by the trustee
until vesting are referred to as the RSUs and
each RSU shall represent one ordinary share of
the Company.

No RSUs were granted to the Participants during
the year ended 31 December 2014 and the nine
months ended 31 December 2013.
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34. SHARE-BASED 34. BREEHMBEHEI(E)

(Continued)

INCENTIVE SCHEMES

2 3 2 Digital China Holdings Limited

A total number of 325,000 (nine months ended
31 December 2013: 1,596,100) RSUs lapsed
during the year ended 31 December 2014 and
totally 5,993,718 RSUs vested in September
2014 subject to fulfilment of certain performance
targets under the RSA Scheme.

The fair values of the RSUs granted were
calculated based on the market price of the
Company’s shares at the respective grant dates.
The expected dividend yield of 3.5% per annum
and the risk-free interest rates ranging from
0.633% to 1.154% per annum have been taken
into account when assessing the fair value of
these RSUs.

The weighted average fair value of the RSUs
granted during the year ended 31 March 2012
was HK$12.53 per share. The Group reversed
RSU expenses of HK$21,530,000 (nine months
ended 31 December 2013: HK$37,386,000) into
the consolidated statement of profit or loss during
the year ended 31 December 2014 because
the performance and/or service conditions for
the RSU granted to certain employees are not
fulfilled.
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35. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
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35. &

AEERAEFEREFREZ

movements therein for the current and prior years HELEBREHSEE2IRN
are presented in the consolidated statement VLB R E76 B E 77
of changes in equity on pages 76 to 77 of the BriremEeRA -
financial statements.

Reserve funds EHEER

Reserve funds are reserves set aside in
accordance with the relevant PRC regulations
applicable to the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China. These reserve funds can be used to offset

REEE/AAEERFTEX
EZHBARZETEARZE
RBLZFHE - ZEHEE
A AAEIEREEE - AT

accumulated losses but are not be distributable
in the form of cash dividends.

BEAREBREZHANIK -

Employee
Share share-based
premium Contributed Employee compensation Retained
account surplus share trust reserve profits Total
HBRB XN
BB EEZ
R4 & B BARE REES EA=1] REEF @t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
k33 BETT BETT BETT BT T BT T BETT
At 1 April 2013 R-ZF-=¥WNA—-R 2,058,336 623,689 (359,914) 167,875 197,625 2,687,611
Profit for the period and total 7% 5 & i il &2
comprehensive income for ABEEENE
the period k) - - - - 596,249 596,249
Exercise of share options id-1d 33 2,097 — — (508) — 1,591
Share-based compensation MRA X2 B 34 - - - (34,684) - (34,684)
Contribution to an employee EERFESHR
share trust 34(b) — — (9,983) — — (9,983)
Proposed final 2013 BE-ZT-—=F
dividend REIR S 12 — — - - (190,037) (190,037)
At 31 December RZE—=
2013 +=ZA=+-8 2,060,433 623,689 (369,897) 132,685 603,837 3,050,747
Loss for the year and total rEEHRR
comprehensive loss AFEZEER
for the year x| - - - - (3,658) (3,656)
Share-based compensation MR A X2 B 34 - - - (20,129) - (20,129)
Vesting of shares under the & X R AR 1D
restricted share award BB Em
scheme BERH — — 67,440 (77,448) — (10,008)
Proposed final 2014 BR-ZT-NF
dividend KERE S 12 — — - - (214,454) (214,454)
At 31 December 2014 R-F-—NF
+=ZRA=+-H 2,060,433 623,689 (302,457) 35,108 385,727 2,802,500
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35. RESERVES (Continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the excess of the fair value of the
shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to
a corporate reorganisation in preparation for
the listing of the Company’'s shares on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, over the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor. Under the Companies Act of Bermuda
(as amended) and the Bye-Laws of the Company,
the contributed surplus can be distributed to
the shareholders, provided that the Company will
be able to pay its liabilities as they fall due, and
subsequent to the distribution, the aggregate
amount of its total liabilities as well as the issued
share capital and premium is less than the
realisable value of its assets.

The employee share-based compensation reserve
comprises the fair value of options or RSUs
granted under the share-based incentive schemes
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained
in the accounting policy for employee benefits
in note 2.5 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share
premium account when the related options/RSUs
are exercised/transferred, or be transferred to
retained profits should the related options/RSUs
expire or be forfeited.

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION
In July 2014, DCIS, an indirect non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the acquisition
agreement for the acquisition of the 100% equity
interest in Zhongnong Xinda. Further details are
included in note 19 to these financial statements.
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 36. £ &6 (&)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities R ERBRREENTEREE
of the Zhongnong Xinda as at the date of acquisition REBEZATFEBENT:
were as follows:
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
A LT B B B SR
ZA¥EE
Notes HK$’000
ot &t BT T
Property, plant and equipment W - WE K& 14 3,829
Other intangible assets BEfmEEE 18 19,375
Available-for-sale investments AHEEZRE 25
Deferred tax assets BELEHIBEE 24 576
Inventories FE 839
Trade and bills W & 5 iR 3R K2
receivables fE U 1B 114,379
Prepayments, deposits and FERNFIE - EER
other receivables H b fE W 5K I8 6,195
Cash and cash equivalents ReEkReEED 6,866
Trade and bills FEE 5 R
payables & E % (35,296)
Other payables and accruals EH b A FIE R
EIRER (16,617)
Tax payable JFE B 75 1R (17,267)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIBEAE 24 (2,920)
Total identifiable net assets at Al @B B EFE
fair value ZRFEE 79,984
Goodwill on acquisition AWEEErzEmE 17 1,032,726
Satisfied by: FARPAE
— cash — R& 266,250
— issuance of shares — TR 846,460
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 36. £ EH(E)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the FRARBETEEEZREREDT
acquisition of Zhongnong Xinda is as follows: ONE
HK$’000
BT T
Cash consideration BHERE (266,250)
Other payables on behalf of the Original  EtEMNRBEARE
Shareholders of Zhongnong Xinda PFEEERAGRE 51,593
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FTkEReRREEEY 6.866
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents 5T A& & /& EHEY
included in cash flows from investing iﬁim%ﬁ’]fﬁﬁ&
activities SEHEEYRLFR (207,791)
Since its acquisition, Zhongnong Xinda and its BREE DREERBE_T—
subsidiaries contributed HK$37,919,000 to the Group’s ME+—A=+—HIEFERALE
turnover and HK$12,457,000 to the consolidated profit lﬁﬁﬁ”%%ﬁ%ﬁ@:ﬂ 919,000t &
for the year ended 31 December 2014. %R &8 Al 7 #12,457,0007T °
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of MaMeERFNEELE AEER
the year, the revenue from operations of the Group HE_Z-—OF+= )EJ +—H1t
and the profit of the Group for the year ended 31 FECEXBREE RN DB
December 2014 would have been HK$68,482,904,000 75 #68,482,904,0007T & /8 ¥
and HK$952,584,000, respectively. 952,584,0007T °
37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. HEKHBAE
The Group did not enter into any agreement relating REBEEZT—NE+=—A=1+—H
to disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 WEFEA  AEEVWEZEEME
December 2014. ALEEMB AR Z M -
During the nine months ended 31 December REBEEZTE—=F+=-A=1+—H
2013, the Group entered into the share transfer ERBEARA  NEBEEZ HRMD
agreements for the disposal of its equity interests EEHELEE THERAA 2K
in certain subsidiaries for a total considerations of ¥ - B EHRAE140,005,000
HK$140,005,000. JC °
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31 December 2014 —Z—WF+-H=+—H

il

37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. HEMB AT (E)

Details of the net assets disposed of under the share BERNDEZDZMINEEEE
transfer agreements and the financial impacts are FERAEVBZEMRNT

summarised below:

31 December

2013
—E—=
+ZA=+—H
Notes HK$’000
o &t BT T
Net assets disposed of: HEEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment Y- BEMEE 14 2,745
Inventories ey 144,562
Trade and bills FE U B 5 1R 3K I
receivables JE W 2 4% 440,563
Prepayments, deposits and TENFIE - E2 Rk
other receivables H At fE W R IE 166,845
Cash and cash equivalents ReEKREEED 11.244
Trade and bills B E SRR K
payables JEREE (559,869)
Other payables and H h fE N I K
accruals EIREH (75183)
Non-controlling interests IR R (4,529)
126,368
Gain on disposal of HEZEMBAR 2
subsidiaries Wz 5 13,637
140,005
Satisfied by cash TRRRE 140,005

NS ERABR QA 20144 237
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37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
An analysis of the cash inflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is
as follows:

31 December 2014 —Z—F+—-_A=+—H

37. HEMB AT (E)
LESHHBAT B RBESE
BYRNFEZONOT :

31 December

2013
—F—=

+=—A=+—H

HK$’000

BT T

Cash consideration RERE 140,005

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHERERBEEEEY (11,244)

Cash consideration for the settlement of & RKEARIZ

other receivables b fE U SR IE 38,116
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in HEZEWHB AR ZIRE M

respect of the disposal of subsidiaries ReEEMRAFRE 166,877

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities

38. I RER
PSR IR - R R b B S 3R 2

not provided for in the financial statements were as BZHARABENT :
follows:
Group Company
AEE AT

31 December
2014

R-ZT-—IF
+=A=+—8H
HK$’000
BETRT

REBATCER

Guarantees given for banking

facilities utilised by ZRITHE

subsidiaries REZER
Guarantees given to suppliers BB ARRET

for subsidiaries HEEZER

2 3 8 Digital China Holdings Limited | 2014 Annual Report

31 December [RelIBLELET T 31 December

2013 2014 2013
Roz-ms it
t=A=+-5 s

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T BT T

9,199,065 6,809,385

1,648,216 2,745,696

10,847,281 9,555,081
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39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS o EEHELH

The Group leases its investment properties (note
15 to the financial statements) under operating
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for
terms of ranging from one to seven years. The
terms of the leases generally also require the
tenant to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants
falling due as follows:

Within one year —FRX

In the second to fifth years, S _-_FEZFHF
inclusive (BEEEWE)

After five year FRF

The Group leases certain of its office
properties and warehouses under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties and
warehouses are negotiated for terms ranging
from six months to five years.

AEERBELEEERD
T H & W5 (e B 75 $R R Y
#15) P E HOME R T
—EtF - -BHOGKAEES
ERBEFPEXNRES X7
A& R 4% JE I T O E B R
B -

RZE—WF+=_F=+—
H REASESHERFSZE
FIZ AR 2 & E - 5
HEWRE 2 AR EEEEN
E QN

Group
rEE

December 31 December

2014 2013
~me [

SVERE-N - A=1—8

HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

22,422 10,846

73,815 8,616
17,719 —

113,956 19,562

AEERBEEHEREH
EEETHRAEMERER °
FEMERkEsHONME
RFENBAZRE -
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31 December 2014 —Z—F+—-_A=+—H

39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 39 &2 fHSE=H (&)
(Continued)

(b) As lessee (Continued) (b) EABEBEAGE)
At 31 December 2014, the Group and the RZE-—WOE+_A=1+—
Company had total future minimum lease H-  BEETTAREZE
payments under non-cancellable operating leases EHL - AEBERAAREH
falling due as follows: BNz RAREEEEMNK
W
Group Company
KEE AATH

AL 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-—mE —E-=4F —E-MF —E—=F
ToA=1+—H Rl +— A=+ —H [t =
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BETT BT IT

Within one year —FR 100,081 97,696
In the second to fifth E_FEERF
years, inclusive (BIEEREM
%)

81,515

152,217 179,211
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31 December 2014 —Z—F&+—-A=+—H

40. COMMITMENTS 40. 1
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed B EXH 39 F it LB E
in note 39(b) above, the Group and the Company had ZHEON RIRERR - AEE KA
the following capital commitments at the end of the NEMEH AT B AN EIE

reporting period:

Group Company

rEE ANHE
AR LTI 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
—B-mF T—= —E-ImF —T—=%
+=A=+-H +=A=+-0 R
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BT T BEF T

Contracted, but not provided BENBREE:

for:
Land and buildings Tt R AEF 651,073 567,977
Capital contributions payable MZMae%
to joint ventures TETE 10,313 765,277 —
Capital contributions payable f) — S B
to an associate NAEEE 51,184
Capital contributions payable ] — AT 4
to an available-for-sale HEZRE
investment AE

692,636 1,384,438

BNBBERARAT | 2014¢$&241
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31 December 2014 —Z—F+—-_A=+—H

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS a41. FEANLTRS
(a) Transactions with related parties: (a) EHEEALTZRS:
In addition to the transactions and balances Btk SRR EM I B2
detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, W2 ZERG KGRI K
the Group had the following material transactions SEENTE RNEBEAT
with related parties: LR
Group
rEE
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013

BE-Z-—MF BHE-T—=F
SRl -A=+-8

EEE EAEAR
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ik BETRT BT T
Digiwin Software Co., Ltd.+ and KEBZBE DA
its subsidiaries, associates SRBHERHERDA
of the Group: REWBEAT :
Provision of IT services by the Group REBERBITR 0] 3,221
PinHu Digital China BoHai Science & AEBZBE DR
Technology Co., Ltd.+, an associate of M A N B 188 R
the Group: BRAR :
Provision of IT services to the Group RAEERETRE i) 1,271
Digital China Chengdu Sobey Science & rEBzEERE
Technology Company Limited+, a joint venture A &P 48 L5 & B Rl i
of the Group: BERRA:
Sales of goods and provision of IT services A£EEEZEN R
by the Group REITRS (i),(ii) 68,806
Purchases of goods by the Group FEEEEZEY (iii) 33,715
Interest income of a loan BERZF B8k A (iv) —
Jiangsu Intelligent Harbor City Investment REBZEERE
Development Co., Ltd.+, a joint venture of IHEEEBNRERRE
the Group: BRRA:
Sales of goods and provision of IT services ASEHEEZENR
by the Group REITRS (i, (i) 13,088
Suzhou Digital China JieTong Technology REBEZEERE
Co., Ltd.+, a joint venture B NEISE R R
of the Group: BRRA:
Sales of goods and provision of AEBHEZENR
IT services by the Group REITRE (i), (i) —
Digital China Technology Industry REBZEERE
Investment Co., Ltd.+ (“DCTII") BMEERREZRRER
and its subsidiary, REMEDF (TR E
joint ventures of the Group: EREBEDREMBAR :
Interest income of loans B2 M B WA (iv) 29,860

Beijing China New Energy Co., Ltd.+, a joint ~A&£EZAZE

venture of the Group: JE R M 8 R
BRRA:
Interest income of a loan BERZA WA (iv) —
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Notes:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(i)

(i)

The prices for the provision of IT services/services were
determined at rates mutually agreed between the Group
and the corresponding related parties.

The sales were made with reference to the listed price
and conditions offered to the major customers of the
Group.

The purchases were made at prices mutually agreed
between the Group and the corresponding related
parties.

The interest income is calculated with reference to
market interest rates.

The English names of these companies are direct
transliterations of their Chinese registered names.

Details of the Group’s trade balances
with the joint ventures and associates as
at the end of the reporting period are
included in notes 28 and 31 to the financial
statements, respectively.

At 31 December 2014, the amounts due to
the Group’s joint ventures and associates
included in the Group’s other payables
and accruals totalled HK$589,000 (31
December 2013: HK$2,090,000).

N

T

il

31 December 2014 — &

—MmE+—A=t—8

a41. FAEANLTXS(E)

Wit -

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(i)

(ii)

N EIBERABR QA

REITIRT, R ERIIIR
BASEEEREEALE
77 1% FE A E e

FZEHEDBREAEEME T
RREPRMZATE R mE

7 o

WEWE R B A K E 8T
BB A 5t 2 (B
17 -

W BR B 7 B A A B 7 95
MEHE -

FZERAZEXBEIERR
AMBELZFH XA -

%

BEHKR  AEEHA
BERRRBERRZ
BoEBRIFRDRE
A L B 7% R Y iE 28 &%
31

i)

7

R-B-—WET_A=
T—B EBNXEES
BRERBERRZR
BEEREAREEZ i
EH%E&E%E%’
# 5t % ¥589,0007T
—~—7¢+ A=+

: /8 #2,090,000
ﬁ%

20144 ¥ 243
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(iii)

244 Digital China Holdings Limited

Included in the Group’s prepayments,
deposits and other receivables as at
31 December 2014 are (i) a loan of
HK$125,000,000 (31 December 2013:
Nil) to a joint venture of the Group, which
is unsecured, bears interest at a rate of
9.50% (31 December 2013: Nil) per annum
and is repayable within one year from
the end of the reporting period; and (ii)
a loan of HK$62,500,000 (31 December
2013: HK$226,4639,000) to a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group’s joint venture, DCTII,
which is secured by the entire interests
of DCTIl held by another joint venturer of
DCTIl, bears interest at a rate of 16.15% (31
December 2013: 16.15%) per annum and is
repayable within one year from the end of
the reporting period.

2014 Annual Report

31 December 2014 —Z—F+—-_A=+—H

41. FAEANLTXS(E)

(iii)

R-ZE—UF+=—A=
+—HB BEAEE
ZTENRE - B2 K
Hth W ERIEER : (i)/B
#125,000,0007T (=
E—=F+=-fF=+—
H:-E) ARAEE—
MeEhEREER-
REBHR ZEE
R EER BFIR
950% (ZF — =%+
—A=+—HB: 82
FEFE - TR —
FEREE A RG)BE
62,500,000 Tt (=& —
=F+=-A=+—8:%
#0D6,469,0007T) A
MAEEE & E W
BREEEREZZ2EHR
ENBRARIREER -
RmEHR  ZEXRA
HIERREXEEZS
—AEBEUHEAN
IR EXREN S
S EITERER
HFFIE1615% (ZF —
=EF=H=1=F"
16.15%) 2 F| & & -
TR —FRERE -
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41. BAEATRZS(E)
(Continued)
() Compensation of key management (c) AEBEBEBEEAEZR
B

personnel of the Group:

Nine months
Year ended ended

31 December 31 December
2014 2013

BE-T —NF EEEimiaiyss
T-A=+—H k=

EE IEE A
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEETR BT T
Short term employee benefits %2 8 {& 8 & 7 8,764
Post-employment benefits EEEE T 105
Share-based compensation AR 245 2 Bl & (7,259)
Total compensation paid to key X4 BEREREAB
management personnel 2 RN B st 10,490 1,610
Further details of directors’ emoluments are FHREEHNE 2 E— B
included in note 8 to the financial statements. B UL B 75 SR SR BT 528 o

BNBBERBRAR | 2014¢§&245
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42. ZEjEIoz2&mIT A

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REHRR SemIAER K
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting EERAT:

period are as follows:

Group RE
31 December 2014 —E-WNE+=-A=+—H
Financial assets T EE

Financial assets

at fair value Available-
through profit for-sale
or loss-held for Loans and LU ELE]
trading receivables assets
RATFEETE
BENERmEE EXRE AftHEZ
— FEEE A& tWMEE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T BET T BET T
Finance lease receivables FE Y b & & KB — 7,686
Available-for-sale investments AR EZRE — 2,916,433 2,916,433
Trade and bills FEWE SRR R
receivables e FE & 9,601,923 9,601,923
Financial assets included in BERENKIE  &e
prepayments, deposits and Fe H th, 18 W 5 78 AR
other receivables ZemMEE 1,054,836 1,054,836
Derivative financial instruments f$T4£ & @ T A = 32,841
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 4,119,557 4,119,557
32,841 14,784,002 2,916,433 17,733,276
. . e N (=
Financial liabilities THRE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REBHEALTE
ZeREE
HK$’'000
BT T
Trade and bills payables BT E SRR KR EMNEE 10,301,179
Financial liabilities included in other BERHEMENRERERER
payables and accruals hreRARE 2,552,466
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Mt 2 RITE R 8,124,987

20,978,632
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued) (4&)
Financial assets T EE
Financial assets
at fair value Available-
through profit for-sale
or loss-held for Loans and financial
trading receivables assets Total
BRATEETER
HHEMEE — BExk AHEEZ
FHIEER JE U 3R TE CREE # it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ST T ST T BT T ST T
Available-for-sale investments AHHEZRE — — 819,459 819,459
Trade and bills FEWE 5 R R &
receivables e — 11,494,720 — 11,494,720
Financial assets included in BERBRFE - Ee
prepayments, deposits and Ko H b & W 30 T8 AR
other receivables ZEREBE — 1,080,223 — 1,080,223
Derivative financial instruments  #7T4£ $ g T A 113,378 — — 113,378
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEEYD — 3,894,211 — 3,894,211
113,378 16,469,154 819,459 17,401,991
Financial liabilities T EE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REIENATE
ZERAE
HK$’000
BT T
Trade and bills payables EREBEZERRENERE 11,092,793
Financial liabilities included in other BEREMENFIEREBRER
payables and accruals PZeBAR 2,193,421
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Mt ERITER 6,034,040
19,320,254
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42 . #fER eI 2E£IT A

(Continued) (48)
Company ¥/ /N
Financial assets T EE

31 December 31 December

2014 2013
—E—F ZE—=F
t=A=+-5 [EEEEREE
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
BERRERRE EESGYLE S
HK$°'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T
Financial assets included in SRIEMNFIE - &S
prepayments, deposits and &ﬁf’@ﬂguﬁl KA
other receivables ZEMEE 45,652 19,279
Due from subsidiaries NG E ] 5,414,885 3,011,706
Cash and cash equivalents ReREEEEY 3,641 2,464
Financial liabilities THEE
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
—2-ImF —F=F
T=A=1—F [pyis
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised cost" EClyle]ual{=ls le{elsA
REHERAE s
ZEeRMEE ZEmARE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Financial liabilities included in BEREMENKIE
other payables and RERERAFZ
accruals TRBEE 16,828 17,874
Due to subsidiaries J&A<F B B8 & B k08 3,169,122 542,419

3,185,950 560,293
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 43.

HIERARCHY OF
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
and the Company’s financial instruments not measured
at fair value, other than available-for-sale investments
measured at cost included in non-current assets, of
which the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
so significant that the directors are of the opinion that
fair value cannot be measured reliably, and those with
carrying amounts approximated to their fair values
largely due to the short term maturities or floating
interest-bearing of these instruments, are as follows:

FINANCIAL

Carrying amounts

iR &

M ELE S 31 December
2013 2014 2013

2014
—s-m#E
Tr=EEr=[E
HK$’000
BET R

ERMEE
JE W Bl & AE B ROR

Financial assets

Finance lease receivables

The fair value of the financial assets are included at the
amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other
than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair value:

The fair value of the finance lease receivables have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities.

HK$'000
BT T

AFFEEREMIAZY
FEEEFR

BREERIFERBEEZRKAE
MAHEEZRERNGENAF(E
ERFHEERN  EFERAREQT
EETEASEFE  ARHENEH
AR EEH—LERMTA
ZIREEEE R FEEMEEAN
AEBEARRRZIFARFEER
EZEMTAZREAEEEQTVE
BRI

Fair values
AFRE

31 December 31 December

—F-mE —EB-=F
+=A=+-5 EECERE:
HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BETT

CREEZAFEEAZIARA
BR57 (MFREARFRIHE)E
ARG TZARZGEBAR - AT
TERBRERREE AFEE:

EUBMEBEERENLFEESE
BRRBEGRR  EERRENG
BIEER AR A B TR HE TR
KFRBEARKRERAE -
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 43. AFEBEERESMIEAEZA

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL FEEFRE)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Group (Continued) AEH(E)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs NTRRZE—NF+ZA=+—
to the valuation of financial instruments together with BT AMENEARATAHE
a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December AMERRECBEREDTHOE
2014: B g

Significant
Valuation unobservable Sensitivity of fair
techniques input Range value to the input

EXTUBEL EEHQAFEEW
=7 fh 5 5 B E &= #HE SRE

Finance lease receivables Discounted cash Discount rate 50% increase
flow method (decrease) in

discount rate would
result in decrease
(increase) in fair
value by HK$462,000
(HK$526,000)

FEU AL & F & 38 BRBEEREE AR 3R = 38 i Oft 2)
50% @ X EEEKRD
(3 hn) 7% % 462,0007T
(78 %526,0007T)
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31 December 2014 —Z—F&+—-A=+—H

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 43. AFEBERESMIAEZA

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial
instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

Group
As at 31 December 2014:

FEEFRE)

NP EESHR
TRINRAEESBRTAEZRVE
B EEH:

URFIEETEBHEE:
A EE
R-Z2-MFE+=-A=+—8:

Fair value measurement using

Quoted
prices

in active
markets
EEE™
SR HRE

(Level 1)
(EH/—)

HK$’000
BT T

Listed equity investments BEANHEEZRE
included in available-for-sale WEmEREE
investments 355,298

Derivative financial instruments $74 £ f T A

355,298

AT EEEER

Significant Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs Total

EXTHBE EATAERE
FHMEE FHHEE #at

(Level 2) (Level 3)

(B#&/=) (B#&=)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥ T BETT BT

355,298
32,841

32,841 — 388,139
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 43. AFEBEERESMIEAEZA
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL FEBEEFR(E)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

il

Notes to Financial Statements Bt 7% ¥} 3% Mt

Assets measured at fair value: [Continued) R FEEFTENEE: (&)
Group (Continued) KEEF(E)
As at 31 December 2013: R=-EB-—=5+=A=+-—H:

Fair value measurement using

AFEEAEFER

Quoted

prices  Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
EEBT BARAEE BATAHE
ZHWRE HOEE A= FCETY
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(FH—) (BH=) EH=)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT EBETET BETT BETET

Listed equity investments BAE A EEZ&E
included in available-for-sale W EmiEREE
investments 298,128 — — 298,128
Derivative financial instruments {74 &g T A — 113,378 — 113,378
298,128 113,378 — 411,506
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured RN-FE—mE+-—_A=+—8BK—
at fair value as at 31 December 2014 and 31 T—=#+-_HF=+—8 K&£HE
December 2013. T EAEMAR T EES BOBME o
The Company did not have any financial assets and NoTE—mE+-—_A=+— EI)SZ_
liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December 2—:$+_ﬂf+ B AR
2014 and 31 December 2013. ﬁﬁ?ﬁfﬂﬂ%@$%‘iﬁ§f§ﬁ@ﬁ§&
BiE -
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value 75A$¢rpq SRMEENREH—
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no S — v B EE N T E Gt
transfers into or out of Level 3 for financial assets § C MR ER = EE A i@ (5
(nine months ended 31 December 2013: Nil). - FT—=%+-_A=+—HItA
BA: &) -
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 43

HIERARCHY OF

Assets for which fair values are disclosed:

Group
As at 31 December 2014:

FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Pledged depaosit, non-current
portion

EIRFR - FERB

#5

AFEFREREMIAZS
FEEFRER)

AEEEZRE)
KEH
R-ZE—WNME+=A=+—H:

Fair value measurement using

AFEEEER

Quoted
prices

in active
markets

EEEHT
SR RE
(Level 1)
(&)
HK$’000
BT T

Significant Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs Total

EXTHBE EATAERE
FHMEE FHHEE et

(Level 2) (Level 3)
(B#&/=) (B#&=)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥ T BT BETR

8,414 8,414
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 BMERKEEBERBE

2 54 Digital China Holdings Limited

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group’s capital expenditure and operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade and bills receivables and trade and bills payables,
which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions,
including principally forward currency contracts. The
purpose is to manage the currency risks arising from
the Group’s operations and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, market risk, foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.
The Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives
are set out in note 2.5 to the financial statements.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
borrowings with floating interest rates.

At 31 December 2014, HK$7,711,223,000 (31
December 2013: HK$5,728,461,000) of the Group’s
interest-bearing borrowings bore interest at floating
rates. The Group believes that the exposure to the risk
of changes in market interest rates is minimal.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the
impact on floating rate borrowings).

31 December 2014 — &

a4,

—MmE+—A=t—8

HHEEREEREEERBR
(%)

RBERR  TRBERAEARE

) = 28 3 (T H b 28 BURHS &) 3
N6 B B B AT i B (38 38 % B A R
ERZEE)NGPRE -

|

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in profit
(decrease) in before tax for the

basis points year/period
KEEHE
E#tH R B A % F
(B& 1) g, (D)
HK$'000
BT T
31 December 2014 —EF-HmEt+tZA=+—H
HKS$ borrowings BB ER (46,231)
HKS$ borrowings BEER 46,231
31 December 2013 —E—=F+=ZA=+—H
HKS$ borrowings ok =N 100 (61,573)
HK$ borrowings BEER (100) 61,573
The Group trades in financial instruments including AEBEESMITABENTAT
derivatives. Ao
Market risk represents the risk that the fair values T 35 B B 5 f 1A T 35 B & Rl R %
or future cash flows of financial instruments will 9|\E@§bﬁﬁ%ﬁ(@ﬂlﬂ2ﬂ${f
fluctuate due to changes in market variables, such as B ARRES R EBTEE 2R
interest rates and foreign exchange rates. The Group is R ARBZITE SR T AEAR

exposed to market risk through its derivative financial
instruments.

™% Rk e
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 . HEREKEEBERBE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
exposures mainly arise from purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. Approximately 28% (31 December 2013:
21%) of the Group’s purchases were denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of
the operating units making the purchase. In order to
minimise the impact of foreign exchange exposure, the
Group has entered into forward currency contracts
with creditworthy banks to manage its exchange rate
exposure.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the RMB exchange rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets
and liabilities).

(&)

AEBARERZEERR - LR
REIBRNEEEMABMES
BLNNEBETZRE - ~EEHHE
HeB% (T —=F+=-A=+—
H:21%) 2 REBARBEEEMNY
REEBUINNEBIIE - REEMR
ENER R 2 F & ARED HEA
ERZRITAILEHEESHNNE
% HE R AR

TRERRBEHAEL ST
805 R T - A5 8 18 Bt A i
(MREHAERAENDTHEE
2B URARKEENABEE
5 B BB ©

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in profit

(decrease) in before tax for the

RMB rate year/period
NEE BB
ARBER R B A 2% F
EH (B E) #1n, Orl 4)
% HK$'000
BOt BEET T
31 December 2014 —ZE-WE+=A
=+—H
If RMB weakens against US$ EAREHEEETER (49,414)
If RMB strengthens against US$ A ARBHEEETEE 49,414
31 December 2013 —E—=%+=A
=+—H
If RMB weakens against US$ BEAREHEYEETER (1) (62,972)
If RMB strengthens against US$ & ARG FETERHE 1 62,972
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-
for-sale financial investments, other receivables and
certain derivative instruments, arises from default
of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these instruments. The
Company is also exposed to credit risk through the
granting of financial guarantees, further details of which
are disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement
for collateral. Over 90% of the Group’s customers
and operations are located in Mainland China.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by industry
sector and customer.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and bills
receivables are disclosed in note 28 to the financial
statements.

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g., trade and bills receivables) and
projected cash flows from operations.

(%)
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ERZRERR - i BURFIRAE
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AEEE S 2 RRERTAK
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EEY AHEEZERERE -
Hi YRR RETIOIETR) 215
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MATAEZ &= R RS BHEERZ
ETAZIREE - AAF TFERH
MBERMEHEERR &2
BRI ML B T R MY RE38 -

RAAREEERERTREEBEZ
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 HEEKREEHERBSE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (48)

Liquidity risk (Continued) B MR B ()

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between AEEZEERBEBERMERIT
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of ERARHEAAIEG 2 & € KR -
interest-bearing bank borrowings and other available HIFESEE TR 2T -
sources of finances. In addition, banking facilities have gEoh - AN BIREG IRITRE E AR
been put in place for contingency purposes. EaszHRA-

The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s NTEIAEERARBRRE S
financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, RAReeBmABEIHAMREDITDN
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as HERBBERIERFTE)

follows:

Group rEHE

31 December 2014
—F-mFt=A=t-H
3 to
Less than less than 1to5 Over 5

3 months 12 months years years Total

SE3
Ik =@ANLT +=@EAR —ZHF BBRAF # st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BT BETR BETT

Interest-bearing bank borrowings M B RITER — 3,694,626 3,445,951 1,080,729 8,221,306
Trade and bills payables (3L T O ¥ AN ES 1,643,175 8,533,111 124,862 31 10,301,179
Financial liabilities included in other BE R E A OR R

payables and accruals REATzERAR 1,713,793 222,214 616,459 2,552,466

12,449,851 187, 1,080,760 21,074,951

31 December 2013
—Z-=Ff+-RA=+—H

3 to
On Less than less than 1to5 Over 5
demand 3 months 12 months years years Total
=F
) ZEANRT +=EAR —EhF BBLF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BRI BRI BT BETT BETT BT

Interest-bearing bank borrowings M B RITE R — 2,158,789 1,638,218 2,369,415 — 6,166,422
Trade and bills payables ERESRAREFEE 1,866,408 8,695,128 531,257 — — 11,092,793

Financial liabilities included in other BEREMENRERR
payables and accruals REAPzZERAR 1,461,812 202,956 528,653 - — 2193421
3,328,220 11,056,873 2,698,128 2,369,415 — 19,452,636

2 5 8 Digital China Holdings Limited | 2014 Annual Report
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 . B ERAKEEBERBE
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (48)
Liquidity risk (Continued) T B 14 R B ()
Company NN

31 December 2014
—®-mEt=-A=t-A
3 to
On Less than less than 1to5 Over 5

demand 3 months 12 months years years Total

=E3
B9 =@ANLT +=@EAR —ZHF BBRAF st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BETT BETT BETR BET T BETT

Due to subsidiaries FEASF B B 2 B) R OE 3,169,122 — 369,122
Financial liabilities included in other BERAMENFERE
payables and accruals REAPZEMAE 16,828 16,828

3,185,950 — 3,185,950

31 December 2013
—F-=#t-A=t-H

3 to
On Less than less than 1to05 Over 5
demand 3 months 12 months years years Total
==
BN EA ZSEART  +ZEAR —EhF BBRF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT  B¥TR EETT

Due to subsidiaries A FHY B 2 B 3ROB 542,419 - - - - 542,419
Financial liabilities included in other BEREMENRERE

payables and accruals REAPZEMAE 17,874 — — — — 17,874

560,293 — - - — 560293

Capital management BERE®E
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital AEREEAERCETRENERT
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to BRAREARIFZERFRMNE
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy BZEARLRUAXIHEEBREE
capital ratios in order to support its business and RERREE -

maximise shareholders’ value.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 BMERKEEBERBE

2 60 Digital China Holdings Limited

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristic of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
year ended 31 December 2014 and the nine months
ended 31 December 2013.

2014 Annual Report
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 . HEEKREEHERBSE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (48)
Capital management (Continued) EXREE (&)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which REBEREEARREEEN
is net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. AR T BHBEFERABER N
The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio as BEFEINMGTE - NEBAEEK
low as possible. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank EEE=ERBEERGELRER
borrowings, trade and hills payables, other payables ERKE - AEFHEBEN SR
and accruals, less cash and cash equivalents. Capital o ENEBEIERRENER -
represents equity attributable to equity holders of HtmENREBERERERRRER
the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end of the REEEBY - EXARRERTRE
reporting periods were as follows: EiEER - RBEHRARZEERE
KT
Group
rEE
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
—®F-AF —EB—=F
p=V: Rzl +—A=+—H
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BETR BT T
Interest-bearing bank borrowings MIBRITER 8,124,987 6,034,040
Trade and bills R E SRR K
payables e R % 10,301,179 11,092,793
Other payables and Hh A HRIE R
accruals BRREHM 4,021,434 3,499,189
Less: Cash and cash equivalents IR eRREEEY (4,119,557) (3.894,211)
Net debt BEFR 18,328,043 16,731,811

Equity attributable to equity holders & 2 &) A% 5 &1
of the parent = 8,600,356 7,725,877
Total capital AR 8,600,356

7,725,877
Total capital and net debt BEXRMBERE 26,928,399 24,457,688
Gearing ratio BEEREX 68%

BNBBERBRAR | 2014@?&261
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45. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 45 BHBE8BERZE&E

STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised W EBRERER-_E—RAF=A=
for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2015. THRSEEeHEREETE -
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Particulars of Properties

/e

Investment properties as at 31 December 2014:

Location

i 2h

Usage

J5iges

RZE—WF+_A=+—HZEEY
3

Attributable

interest of the

Tenure Group
E3

1 B 15 E 3%

Digital China Xi'an Science and
Technology Park,

No. 20 Zhangba 4th Street,
Xi'an Gaoxin Technology
Development District,

Xi'an, Shaanxi Province,

The PRC

hERAEE
AXmeMRMERMER
SO\ #5205
NS B R E

Digital China Wuhan Science and
Technology Park,

North of Da Shu Road East,
East of Guang Gu Road,
Wuhan Donghu Technology
Development District,
Wuhan, Hubei Province,
The PRC

FREHIE A

% T SR8 T B 1 B B R
KBRBUAR

A& RE& AL

N B0 B2 B B E

Digital China Qilin Street,

Science and Technology Innovation Park,

Jiangning District,

Nanjing, Jiangsu Province,
The PRC

BT A

EARTIER

TN BN B T B R R R

Office building
NN

Office building
NN

Office building
NP

Medium term lease 100%

RHEIE X

Medium term lease 100%

PHEIE X

Medium term lease 100%

REIAE A

NS ERABR QA 20144 263
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Particulars of Properties #3518

=

Investment properties as at 31 December 2014: (continued) RZE-—MEF+_A=+—HZEKEY

%¥: (%)
Attributable
interest of the
Location Usage Tenure Group
REE
Hb B 5= F 5 iR
Digital China Chongging Science and Office building Medium term lease 100%
Technology Park, FI/NYN = Hr ER AR 49
No. 24 and 26, Science and
Technology Innovation Park,
Hong Hu Road West,
Yubei District,
Chongging Province,
The PRC
REEET LR
HEW 78 Bk 24 ZE 2655 B X 8l FTE
MNBEEERRE
Digital China Kunshan Logistics Park, Logistics and storage Medium term lease 100%
No. 1 Shuang He Road, DS =R- ] Hr ER AR 49

Dian Shan Hu Town,

Kunshan City, Jiangsu Province,
The PRC

REI# A

B2 L TR ORR 1L A R

L FER15%

INEAS B L in B

2 64 Digital China Holdings Limited 2014 Annual Report



Particulars of Properties % 3 &

Properties under development as at 31 December 2014:

The

Group’s
Property interest

REE
LIE S e &=

Location

&

RZE—MFEF+_A=+—RHZEEY

E

Total GFA
attributable
to the Group’s
interest

(000 sq.m) Usage
FEREAKER
WEEEE

(FEHK) AR

Expected
date of
completion

A H 5T TR

Guanggu Zhihui Park 100%
RABEHE

Digital China 100%
Information Service
Industry Base

e B Ik T A R

PR 75 72 25 E i

Digital China Wuhan Science
and Technology Park,

North of Da Shu Road East,
East of Guang Gu Road,
Wuhan Donghu Technology
Development District,
Wuhan, Hubei Province,

The PRC

hERIE A

B T BROH R £ 40 B 3
KB KEAR
KEF R B LA DL

A 0] B 0% B £

Digital China Qilin Street,
Science and Technology
Park, Jiangning District,
Nanjing, Jiangsu Province,
The PRC

PRI EE

B RmIERR
e SRS B g B R R AT

75 Office building
/NN

161 Office building
NN

2015

2017

NS ERABR QA
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Five-Year Financial Summary
LEUBRHE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities ASEBFRAEMBKEFEREEEAMH
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five @ REEZUKER %48 LE BER
financial years, as extracted from the published audited EERERBENAT -

financial statements, is set out below.

RESULTS 4

\CEEL GRS Nine months ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 March 31 March 31 March
2014 2013 2013 2012 2011

BE-2-mf HE-ZT-=F HEZZ-=F HEZT--F HEZZT——F%

SVERLNM  t-A=t-R  =A=t-B =A=t-8 ZA=t-8

LEE IEA{EA LEE FFE IEFE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT EETT EETT BETT EETT

REVENUE WA 52,264,534 73,498,913 70,319,367 56,803,774

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX KRR (BB) 1,141,506 (291,399) 1,851,274 1,653,166 1,264,841
Income tax expense FEHER (239,256) (171,245) (332.122) (314,478) (208,502)

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR/ AEE/HEEH/

PERIOD (B1#8) 902,250 (462,644) 1,519,152 1,338,688 1,056,339
Attributable to: FER:
Equity holders BRAKR
of the parent B 700,953 84,103 1,367,369 1,244,813 1,005,385
Non-controlling interests FERER 201,297 (546,747) 151,783 93,875 50,954

902,250 (462,644) 1,519,152 1,338,688 1,056,339

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING ¥ E - BB EER#ER

INTERESTS
31 December 31 December 31 March 31 March 31 March
2014 2013 2013 2012 201
—B-mE —E-=% —E-=F —B-CF —FF
+=A=t+-H TZA=t-H ZA=t-H ZA=+-H ZA=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BETT BETT BETT BETFT
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 33,707,772 30,099,973 28,407,870 26,821,783 19,945,575
TOTAL LIABILITIES “BafE (22,843,597) (21,053,585) (19,736,736) (19,298,356) (13,374,742)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERES (2,263,819) (1,320,511) (844,636) (702,240) (637,837)

8,600,356 7,725,877 7,826,498 6,821,187 6,032,996
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